# NUREG-1556 Vol. 16

# **Consolidated Guidance About Materials Licenses**

Program-Specific Guidance About Licenses Authorizing Distribution to General Licensees

Final Report

# **U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission**

Office of Nuclear Material Safety and Safeguards

S. Minnick, C. Mattsen, J. McCausland, B. Parker, D. Wiedeman



#### AVAILABILITY OF REFERENCE MATERIALS IN NRC PUBLICATIONS

NRC Reference Material	Non-NRC Reference Material
As of November 1999, you may electronically access NUREG-series publications and other NRC records at NRC's Public Electronic Reading Room at www.nrc.gov/NRC/ADAMS/index.html. Publicly released records include, to name a few, NUREG-series publications; <i>Federal Register</i> notices; applicant, licensee, and vendor documents and correspondence; NRC correspondence and internal memoranda; bulletins and information notices; inspection and investigative reports: licensee event	Documents available from public and special technical libraries include all open literature items, such as books, journal articles, and transactions, <i>Federal</i> <i>Register</i> notices, Federal and State legislation, and congressional reports. Such documents as theses, dissertations, foreign reports and translations, and non- NRC conference proceedings may be purchased from their sponsoring organization.
reports; and Commission papers and their attachments.	<b>Copies of</b> industry codes and standards used in a <b>substantive manner</b> in the NRC regulatory process are <b>maintained</b> at—
<ul> <li>NRC publications in the NUREG series, NRC regulations, and <i>Title 10, Energy</i>, in the Code of <i>Federal Regulations</i> may also be purchased from one of these two sources.</li> <li>1. The Superintendent of Documents</li> </ul>	The NRC Technical Library Two White Flint North 11545 Rockville Pike Rockville, MD 20852–2738
<ul> <li>U.S. Government Printing Office</li> <li>P. O. Box 37082</li> <li>Washington, DC 20402–9328</li> <li>www.access.gpo.gov/su_docs</li> <li>202–512–1800</li> <li>2. The National Technical Information Service</li> <li>Springfield, VA 22161–0002</li> <li>www.ntis.gov</li> <li>1–800–533–6847 or, locally, 703–605–6000</li> </ul>	These standards are available in the library for reference use by the public. Codes and standards are usually copyrighted and may be purchased from the originating organization or, if they are American National Standards, from American National Standards Institute 11 West 42 <sup>nd</sup> Street New York, NY 10036–8002 www.ansi.org
A single copy of each NRC draft report for comment is available free, to the extent of supply, upon written request as follows:	212-642-4900
Address: Office of the Chief Information Officer, Reproduction and Distribution Services Section U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission Washington, DC 20555-0001 E-mail: DISTRIBUTION@nrc.gov Facsimile: 301–415–2289 Some publications in the NUREG series that are posted at NRC's Web site address www.nrc.gov/NRC/NUREGS/indexnum.html are updated periodically and may differ from the last printed version. Although references to material found	The NUREG series comprises (1) technical and administrative reports and books prepared by the staff (NUREG-XXXX) or agency contractors (NUREG/CR-XXXX), (2) proceedings of conferences (NUREG/CP-XXXX), (3) reports resulting from international agreements (NUREG/IA-XXXX), (4) brochures (NUREG/BR-XXXX), and (5) compilations of legal decisions and orders of the Commission and Atomic and Safety Licensing Boards and of Directors' decisions
accessed, the material available on the date cited may subsequently be removed from the site.	(NUREG=0750).

. ...,

i este

, i

# **Consolidated Guidance About Materials Licenses**

Program-Specific Guidance About Licenses Authorizing Distribution to General Licensees

# **Final Report**

Manuscript Completed: December 2000 Date Published: December 2000

Prepared by S. Minnick, C. Mattsen, J. McCausland, B. Parker, D. Wiedeman

Division of Industrial and Medical Nuclear Safety Office of Nuclear Material Safety and Safeguards U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission Washington, DC 20555-0001



# ABSTRACT

This guide has been developed in parallel with the rulemaking on 10 CFR Parts 30, 31, and 32, "Requirements for Certain Generally Licensed Industrial Devices Containing Byproduct Material." This guidance document is consistent with the final rule.

As part of its redesign of the materials licensing process, NRC is consolidating and updating numerous guidance documents into a single comprehensive repository as described in NUREG-1539, "Methodology and Findings of the NRC's Materials Licensing Process Redesign," dated April 1996, and draft NUREG-1541, "Process and Design for Consolidating and Updating Materials Licensing Guidance," dated April 1996. NUREG-1556, Vol. 16, "Consolidated Guidance about Materials Licenses: Program-Specific Guidance about Licenses Authorizing Distribution to General Licensees," dated December 2000, is the sixteenth program-specific guidance document developed for the new process and is intended for use by applicants, specific and general licensees, and NRC staff. It also will be available to Agreement States.

The requirements for an NRC general license for persons who receive, possess, use, transfer, own, or acquire byproduct material in generally licensed products are provided in 10 CFR Part 31, "General Domestic Licenses for Byproduct Material." The requirements to obtain an NRC general distribution license for persons who distribute or initially transfer byproduct material in generally licensed products are provided in 10 CFR Part 32, "Specific Domestic Licenses to Manufacture or Transfer Certain Items Containing Byproduct Material." Generally licensed products include static elimination devices, gauging devices, gas chromatograph detector cells, tritium signs, *in vitro* clinical or laboratory kits, and check sources. These devices/products are distributed to general licensees by companies who have a specific license from NRC or an Agreement State authorizing such distribution. This document combines and supersedes the guidance previously found in Information Notices and Policy and Guidance documents listed in Table A.1 of this NUREG.

This document provides assistance to applicants in preparing license applications for a specific license to distribute generally licensed devices. It also describes both the methods acceptable to NRC license reviewers in implementing the regulations and the techniques used by the reviewers in evaluating the applications to determine if the proposed general distribution activity is acceptable for licensing purposes. This document was not intended for providing guidance to applicants requesting a specific license for possession and use of radioactive materials.

Appendices K and L are intended to assist specific licensees in providing their customers (general licensees) with information. They provide the general licensee with a concise listing of the regulatory requirements that apply to generally licensed devices. Appendix L does so specifically for users of self-luminous exit signs. Specific licensees may forward Appendices K or L to their customers. It is not intended, however, to take the place of the information requirements in 10 CFR 32.51a (a), (b), and (c).

## CONTENTS

AB	STRA	ст	ii	ii
FOREWORD ix				
AC	ACKNOWLEDGMENTS xi			
AB	BREV	IATIONS		ii
1	PURI	POSE OF H	REPORT	1
2	NRC	REGIONS	AND AGREEMENT STATES 2-	1
3	MAN	AGEMEN	T RESPONSIBILITY 3-	1
4	APPI	ICABLE	REGULATIONS 4-	1
5	GEN	ERAL LIC	ENSE DISTRIBUTION 5-	1
	5.1	GENERAL	L	1
	5.2	LICENSIN	IG AND SEALED SOURCE/DEVICE REGISTRATION	2
	5.3	TYPES O	F GENERALLY LICENSED DEVICES	3
	5.4	PROPRIE	FARY AND PRIVATE INFORMATION       5-	7
	5.5	FOREIGN	VENDORS	8
6	HOW	/ TO FILE	б-	1
	6.1	PAPER A	PPLICATION	1
	6.2	ELECTRO	ONIC APPLICATION	2
	6.3	WHERE T	°O FILE	2
7	APPI	ICATION	AND ANNUAL FEES	1
8	CON	TENTS OF	FAN APPLICATION	1
	8.1	ITEM 1: 1	LICENSE ACTION TYPE 8-	1
	8.2	ITEM 2: A	APPLICANT'S NAME AND MAILING ADDRESS	1
		8.2.1	TIMELY NOTIFICATION OF TRANSFER CONTROL	2
		8.2.2	NOTIFICATION OF BANKRUPTCY PROCEEDINGS	3
	8.3	ITEM 3: A	ADDRESS(ES) FROM WHICH LICENSED MATERIAL WILL BE DISTRIBUTED 8-	4
	8.4	ITEM 4: 1	PERSON TO BE CONTACTED ABOUT THIS APPLICATION	4
	8.5	ITEMS 5	AND 6: RADIOACTIVE MATERIAL AND PURPOSE(S) FOR WHICH LICENSED	5
	0 6	MATERIA	AL WILL BE USED	5
	0.0 9 7	ITEM 10.	PADIATION SAFETY DOCCDAM (DECLIDEMENTS FOR A CENEDAI	U
	0.7	DISTRIBU	JTION LICENSE)	6
		8.7.1	10 CFR 32.51: REQUIREMENTS FOR INITIAL TRANSFER OF DEVICES FOR USE UNDER 10 CFR 31.5 (CERTAIN MEASURING, GAUGING, OR CONTROLLING	6
		8.7.2	10 CFR 32.53: REQUIREMENTS FOR INITIAL TRANSFER OF LUMINOUS SAFETY DEVICES FOR USE IN AIRCRAFT	0
		8.7.3	10 CFR 32.57: REQUIREMENTS FOR INITIAL TRANSFER OF CALIBRATION OR REFERENCE SOURCES CONTAINING AMERICIUM-241	0
		8.7.4	10 CFR 32.61: REQUIREMENTS FOR INITIAL TRANSFER OF ICE DETECTION DEVICES CONTAINING STRONTIUM-90	1
		8.7.5	10 CFR 32.71: REQUIREMENTS FOR INITIAL TRANSFER IN VITRO KITS UNDER 10 CFR 31.11	2

#### CONTENTS

	8.8	ITEM 12: FEES	8-14
	8.9	ITEM 13: CERTIFICATION OF APPLICATION	8-14
9	DEFI	CIENCY IN THE APPLICATION	9-1
10	ISSU	ANCE OF A LICENSE	10-1
11	AME	NDMENTS AND RENEWALS TO A LICENSE	11-1
12	APPL	ICATIONS FOR EXEMPTIONS	12-1
13	TERN	MINATION OF ACTIVITIES	13-1

1

1

# **APPENDICES**

Appendix A List of Documents Considered in Development of this NUREG
Appendix B
United States Nuclear Regulatory Commission Form 313 B-1
Appendix C         An Example of a Scaled Source and Device (SSD) Registration Certificate for Generally Licensed         Products       C-1
Appendix D 10 CFR 2.790: Withholding Letter
Appendix E Information Needed for Transfer of Control Application (Excerpted from Information Notice 89-25) E-1
Appendix F         Review Checklist for General Distribution License Application: Certain Measuring, Gauging, or         Controlling Devices (10 CFR 32.51)         F-1
Appendix G         Review Checklist for General Distribution License Application: Luminous Safety Devices for Use         in Aircraft (10 CFR 32.53)         G-1
Appendix H         Review Checklist for General Distribution License Application: Americium-241 in the Form of         Calibration or Reference Sources (10 CFR 32.57)         H-1
Appendix I         Review Checklist for General Distribution License Application: Strontium-90 in Ice Detection Devices         (10 CFR 32.61)         Image: I
Appendix J         Review Checklist for General Distribution License Application: Certain In Vitro Clinical or Laboratory         Testing (10 CFR 32.71)         J-1
Appendix K Guidance for 10 CFR 31.5 General Licensees (Q&As)
Appendix L Guidance on Self-Luminous Exits (Q&As) L-1
Appendix M NRC Form 664 – General License Registration Form for Certain Devices Listed in 10 CFR 31.5 M-1
Appendix N NRC Form 374 – Materials License

#### CONTENTS

Appendix O
Deemed Timely Letter
Appendix P
NRC Form 483 – Registration Certificate In Vitro Testing with Byproduct Material Under General
License
Appendix Q
NRC Form 653 – Transfers of Industrial Devices Report Q-1

# **FIGURES**

Figure 5.1 Gas Chromatograph Units	5-3
Figure 5.2 Fixed Gauging Devices	5-4
Figure 5.3 Static Eliminators	5-4
Figure 5.4 Tritium Exit Signs	5-5
Figure 5.5 Luminous Exit Sign	5-5
Figure 5.6 Calibration Standards	5-6
Figure 5.7 In Vitro Kit	5-7
Figure 8.1 Label	3-11
Figure 8.2 Package Label	3-13
Figure K.1 Fixed Gauges	K-1
Figure K.2 Gas Chromatograph Unit	K-1
Figure K.3 Self-Luminous Exit Sign	K-2
Figure K.4 U.S. Map	K-8
Figure L.1 Self-Luminous Exit Sign	L-1

# TABLES

Table A.1	List of Documents Considered in the Preparation of this Report	A-1
-----------	--	-----

# FOREWORD

The United States Nuclear Regulatory Commission (NRC) is using Business Process Redesign (BPR) techniques to redesign its materials licensing process. This effort is described in NUREG-1539, "Methodology and Findings of the NRC's Materials Licensing Process Redesign," dated April 1996. A critical element of the new process is consolidating and updating numerous guidance documents into a NUREG series of reports. Below is a list of volumes currently included in the NUREG-1556 series.

Vol. No.	Volume Title	Status
1	Program-Specific Guidance About Portable Gauge Licenses	Final Report
2	Program-Specific Guidance About Radiography Licenses	Final Report
3	Applications for Sealed Source and Device Evaluation and Registration	Final Report
4	Program-Specific Guidance About Fixed Gauge Licenses	Final Report
5	Program-Specific Guidance about Self-Shielded Irradiators	Final Report
6	Program-Specific Guidance about 10 CFR Part 36 Irradiators	Final Report
7	Program-Specific Guidance about Academic, Research and Development, and Other Licenses of Limited Scope	Final Report
8	Program-Specific Guidance about Exempt Distribution Licenses	Final Report
9	Program-Specific Guidance about Medical Use Licenses	Draft
10	Program-Specific Guidance about Master Material Licenses	Draft
11	Program-Specific Guidance about Licenses of Broad Scope	Final Report
12	Program-Specific Guidance about Possession Licenses for Manufacturing and Distribution	Draft
13	Program-Specific Guidance about Commercial Radiopharmacy Licenses	Final Report
14	Program-Specific Guidance about Well Logging, Tracer, and Field Flood Study Licenses	Final Report
15	Guidance About Changes of Control and About Bankruptcy Involving Byproduct, Source, or Special Nuclear Materials Licenses	Final Report
16	Program-Specific Guidance About Licenses Authorizing Distribution To General Licensees	Final Report
17	Program-Specific Guidance About Licenses for Special Nuclear Material of Less Than Critical Mass	Final Report

#### FOREWORD

Vol. No.	Volume Title	Status
18	Program-Specific Guidance About Service Provider Licenses	Final Report
19	Guidance For Agreement State Licensees Proposing to Work in NRC Jurisdiction (Non-Agreement States, Areas of Exclusive Federal Jurisdiction, or Offshore Waters) and Guidance For NRC Licensees Proposing to Work in Agreement State Jurisdiction (Reciprocity)	Final Report
20	Guidance About Administrative Licensing Procedures	Final Report

The current document, NUREG-1556, Vol. 16, "Consolidated Guidance about Materials Licenses: Program-Specific Guidance about Licenses Authorizing Distribution to General Licensees," dated December 2000, is the sixteenth program-specific guidance developed for the new process. It is intended for use by applicants, licensees, NRC license reviewers, and other NRC personnel.

A team composed of NRC staff from Headquarters and Regional Offices drafted this document, drawing on their collective experience in radiation safety in general and knowledge of general distribution of radioactive products. A representative of NRC's Office of the General Counsel provided a legal perspective.

This document represents a step in the transition from the current paper-based process to the new electronic process. It is available on the Internet at the following address:

<http://www.nrc.gov/NRC/NUREGS/SR1556/V16/index.html>.

This document is not a substitute for NRC regulations, and compliance is not required. The approaches and methods described in this report are provided for information only.

Conald I. Cal

Donald A. Cool, Director Division of Industrial and Medical Nuclear Safety Office of Nuclear Material Safety and Safeguards

## ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

The writing team thanks the individuals listed below for assisting in the development and review of the final report. All participants provided valuable insights, observations, and recommendations.

The team also thanks Dianne Geshen, Rolonda Jackson, Tamra King, D.W. Benedict Llewellyn, Agi Seaton, and Nora Younger of Computer Sciences Corporation.

### **The Participants**

Baggett, Steven L. Brown, Carrie Burgess, Michele L. Cain, Charles L. Camper, Larry W. Caniano, Roy J. Collins, Douglas M. Combs, Frederick C. Cool. Donald A. Costello, Francis M. Hickey, John Johansen, Jenny M. Lubinski, John W. Kinneman, John D. Mattsen, Catherine R. McCausland, Jayne M. Merchant, Sally L. Minnick, Sheri A. Pangburn, George C. Parker, Bryan A. Pederson, Cynthia D. Roe, Mary Louise Schwartz, Maria E. Treby, Stuart A. Wiedeman, Darrel G.

# ABBREVIATIONS

AEC	Atomic Energy Commission
ALARA	As Low as Is Reasonably Achievable
ANSI	American National Standards Institute
BPR	Business Process Re-engineering
Bq	Becquerel
CFR	Code of Federal Regulations
Ci	Curie
DOE	United States Department of Energy
DOT	United States Department of Transportation
FR	Federal Register
GBq	gigabecquerel
GL	general license, generally licensed
GPO	Government Printing Office
IL	Interpretive Letter
IMNS	Division of Industrial, Medical, and Nuclear Safety
IN	Information Notice
kBq	kilobecquerel
MBq	Megabecquerel
mCi	millicurie
MSIB	Materials Safety and Inspection Branch
NA	not applicable
NMSS	Office of Nuclear Material Safety and Safeguards
NRC	Nuclear Regulatory Commission
OCFO	Office of the Chief Financial Officer
OCR	optical character reader
OGC	Office of the General Counsel
OMB	Office of Management and Budget
QA	quality assurance
QC	quality control

#### ABBREVIATIONS

R	roentgen
RG	Regulatory Guide
RI	responsible individual
RSO	radiation safety officer
SI	International System of Units (abbreviated SI from the French Le Systeme Internationale d'Unites)
SSD	sealed source and device
std	standard
TAR	technical assistance request
USC	United States Code
μCi	microcurie

1

1

# **1 PURPOSE OF REPORT**

This report provides both guidance to an applicant in preparing an application to distribute generally licensed products or devices and NRC criteria for evaluating a general distribution license application. It also provides guidance to general licensees covered in 10 CFR 31.5 on the use, possession, and registration requirements for general licensees.

General distribution licenses authorize the distribution (initial transfer) of byproduct material to persons generally licensed by 10 CFR 31.3, 31.5, 31.7, 31.8, 31.10 and 31.11.

This report identifies the information needed to complete NRC Form 313 (Appendix B), "Application for Material License," for the use of byproduct material contained in devices or products distributed to general licensees. The information collection requirements in 10 CFR Parts 30, 31, and 32, NRC Form 313, and NRC Form 483 have been approved under the Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Clearance Nos. 3150-0017, 3150-0016, 3150-0001, 3150-0120, and 3150-0038 respectively. NRC Form 653 is also included under OMB Clearance No. 3150-0001.

The format within this document for each item of technical information is as follows:

- Regulations references the regulations applicable to the item.
- Criteria outlines the criteria NRC uses to judge the adequacy of the applicant's response.
- Discussion provides additional information on the topic sufficient to meet the needs of most readers.
- Response from Applicant provides suggested response(s), offers the option of an alternative reply, or indicates that no response is needed on that topic during the licensing process.

Notes and references are self-explanatory and may not be found for each item on NRC Form 313.

# 2 NRC REGIONS AND AGREEMENT STATES

Certain states, called Agreement States (see Figure 2.1), have entered into agreements with NRC that give them the authority to license and inspect byproduct, source, or special nuclear materials used or possessed within their borders. Any applicant, other than a Federal Agency, who wishes to possess or use byproduct, source, or special nuclear material in one of these Agreement States needs to contact the responsible officials in that State for guidance on preparing an application. A current list of Agreement States, including the names, addresses, and telephone numbers of responsible officials, may be obtained upon request from NRC's Regional Offices. This information can also be found on the NRC Office of State and Tribal Programs' web site at <a href="http://www.hsrd.ornl.gov/nrc/asframe.htm">http://www.hsrd.ornl.gov/nrc/asframe.htm</a>.



Figure 2.1 U.S. Map. Location of NRC Offices and Agreement States.

Table 2.1 provides a quick way to determine which Agency has regulatory authority over the possession and use of byproduct, source, or special nuclear material.

### Table 2.1Who Regulates the Activity?

Applicant and Proposed Location of Work	Regulatory Agency
Federal Agency regardless of location (except that Department of Energy [DOE] and, under most circumstances, its prime contractors are exempt from licensing [10 CFR 30.12])	NRC
Non-Federal entity in non-Agreement State, U.S. territory, or possession	NRC
Non-Federal entity in Agreement State at non-Federally controlled site	Agreement State
Non-Federal entity in Agreement State at Federally-controlled site not subject to exclusive Federal jurisdiction	Agreement State
Non-Federal entity in Agreement State at Federally-controlled site subject to exclusive Federal jurisdiction	NRC
Any entity in any State requesting authorization to distribute devices for use under 10 CFR 31.3	NRC

1

# **3 MANAGEMENT RESPONSIBILITY**

NRC recognizes that effective radiation safety program management is vital to achieving safe and compliant operations. NRC believes that consistent compliance with its regulations provides reasonable assurance that licensed activities will be conducted safely. NRC also believes that effective management will result in increased safety and compliance.

"Management" refers to the processes for conducting and controlling radiation safety programs and to the individuals who are responsible for those processes and who have the authority to provide necessary resources to achieve regulatory compliance.

To ensure adequate management involvement, a management representative must sign the submitted application acknowledging management's commitments and responsibility for the following:

- Completeness and accuracy of all information provided to NRC (10 CFR 30.9);
- Knowledge about the contents of the license and application;
- Compliance with current NRC and Department of Transportation (DOT) regulations;
- Prohibition against discrimination of employees engaged in protected activities (10 CFR 30.7);
- Commitment to provide information to employees regarding the employee protection and deliberate misconduct provisions in 10 CFR 30.7 and 10 CFR 30.10, respectively;
- Obtaining NRC's prior written consent before transferring control of the license;
- Notifying the appropriate NRC Regional Administrator in writing, immediately following filing of a petition for voluntary or involuntary bankruptcy; and
- Ensuring that all generally licensed devices are distributed in accordance with NRC requirements.

For information on NRC inspection, investigation, enforcement, and other compliance programs, see the current version of "General Statement of Policy and Procedures for NRC Enforcement Actions," NUREG-1600. NUREG-1600 is available electronically at <a href="http://www.nrc.gov/OE">http://www.nrc.gov/OE</a>>. For hard copies of NUREG-1600, see the Availability Notice (on the inside front cover of this report).

# **4** APPLICABLE REGULATIONS

The primary regulations applicable to persons who possess byproduct material in generally licensed products are located in 10 CFR Part 31, "General Domestic Licenses for Byproduct Material." Part 32, "Specific Domestic Licenses to Manufacture or Transfer Certain Items Containing Byproduct Material," outlines, in part, the information required to initially transfer for sale or distribute products containing byproduct material. The following is a list of the regulations for general licensees in Part 31 and the corresponding requirements for distributors of generally licensed products in Part 32.

<u>§ 31.3</u>	Certain devices and equipment	
	Licenses for distribution of general licensed devices authorized under 10 CFR 31.3 can be issued only by NRC. There are no corresponding regulations in 10 CFR Part 32. Each device is evaluated on a case-by-case basis.	
<u>§ 31.5</u>	Certain measuring, gauging, or controlling devices	
§ 32.51	Byproduct material contained in devices for use under 10 CFR 31.5; requirements for license to manufacture or initially transfer	
§ 32.51a	Conditions of licenses	
§ 32.52	Material transfer reports and records	
<u>§ 31.7</u>	Luminous safety devices for use in aircraft	
§ 32.53	Luminous safety devices for use in aircraft; requirements for license to manufacture, assemble, repair, or initially transfer	
§ 32.54	Labeling of devices	
§ 32.56	Material transfer reports	
<u>§ 31.8</u>	Americium-241 in the form of calibration or reference sources	
§ 32.57	Calibration or reference sources containing americium-241; requirements for license to manufacture or initially transfer	
§ 32.58	Labeling of devices	

#### APPLICABLE REGULATIONS

<u>§ 31.10</u>	General license for strontium-90 in ice detection devices	
§ 32.61	Ice detection devices containing strontium-90; requirements for license to manufacture or initially transfer	
<u>§ 31.11</u>	<u>General license for use of byproduct material for certain <i>in vitro</i> clinica or laboratory testing</u>	
§ 32.71	Manufacture and distribution of byproduct material for certain <i>in vitro</i> clinical or laboratory testing under general license.	

Additional regulations applicable to holders of a general license and distributors of generally licensed products are found in the following 10 CFR Parts:

- 10 CFR Part 19, "Notices, Instructions, and Reports to Workers: Inspection and Investigations"
- 10 CFR Part 20, "Standards for Protection Against Radiation"
- 10 CFR Part 21, "Reporting of Defects and Noncompliance"
- 10 CFR Part 30, "Rules of General Applicability to Domestic Licensing of Byproduct Material"
- 10 CFR Part 71, "Packaging and Transportation of Radioactive Material"
- 10 CFR Part 110, "Export and Import of Nuclear Equipment and Material"
- 10 CFR Part 170, "Fees for Facilities, Materials, Import and Export Licenses, and Other Regulatory Services Under the Atomic Energy Act of 1954, as Amended"
- 10 CFR Part 171, "Annual Fees for Reactor Operating Licenses, and Fuel Cycle Licenses and Materials Licenses, Including Holders of Certificates of Compliance, Registrations, and Quality Assurance Program Approvals and Government Agencies Licensed by NRC."

It is the applicant's or licensee's responsibility to have up-to-date copies of applicable regulations, read them, and abide by each applicable regulation.

To request copies of the above documents, call GPO's order desk in Washington, DC at (202) 512-1800. Order the two-volume bound version of Title 10, Code of Federal Regulations, Parts 0-50 and 51-199 from the GPO, Superintendent of Documents, Post Office Box 371954, Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania 15250-7954. You may also contact the GPO electronically at <http://www.gpo.gov>. Request single copies of the above documents from NRC's Regional Offices (see Figure 2.1 for addresses and telephone numbers). Note that NRC publishes amendments to its regulations in the *Federal Register*.

### 5.1 GENERAL

On February 12, 1959 (24 FR 1089) (*Federal Register*, Volume 24, page 1089), the Atomic Energy Commission (AEC) amended its regulations to provide a general license for the use of byproduct material contained in certain measuring, gauging, or controlling devices. Under current regulations (10 CFR 31.5), certain persons may receive and use a device containing byproduct material under this general license if the device has been manufactured and distributed according to the specifications contained in a specific license issued by NRC or by an Agreement State. A specific license authorizing distribution of generally licensed devices is issued if a regulatory authority determines that the safety features of the device and the instructions for safe operation of that device are adequate and meet regulatory requirements. The general licensee must comply with the requirements for labeling, instructions for use, and proper storage or disposition of the device.

A generally licensed device usually consists of radioactive material, contained in a sealed source, within a shielded device. The device is designed with inherent radiation safety features so that it can be used by persons with no radiation training or experience; thus, the general license is meant to simplify the licensing process so that a case-by-case determination of the adequacy of the radiation training or experience of each user is not necessary.

The distributor of the generally licensed product/device is required to assure NRC or the Agreement State that all products are distributed in accordance with the specifications provided in its license application. These specific licenses are issued by NRC or the Agreement State and are referred to as "general distribution" licenses. See Appendix N for an example of a general distribution license.

General distribution licenses only authorize the distribution of products and device(s) to general licensees and do not authorize possession or use of radioactive material; therefore, applicants for general distribution licenses will need to file a separate application for a specific license authorizing possession and use of byproduct material, with the NRC Regional Office or the Agreement State for the State in which the material will be possessed and/or used. However, the determination of where to file the general distribution license application should be made based on the location from which the applicant wishes to distribute, not necessarily where the applicant possesses and/or uses the byproduct material (i.e., where the product is manufactured). The four Regions and the Regional Office addresses are provided on NRC Form 3, in 10 CFR Part 20, Appendices K and L, and in Section 2 of this document (Figure 2.1).

A license authorizing distribution to general licensees cannot be issued until the applicant (1) obtains a registration certificate (see Section 5.2) for the device (if applicable); and (2) obtains a possession and use license. To expedite the licensing process, the applicant should apply for the possession license and registration certificate concurrently, then apply for authorization to distribute once the registration certificate has been issued.

### 5.2 LICENSING AND SEALED SOURCE/DEVICE REGISTRATION

Applicants of a general distribution license are required to provide specific information about the sources and products, as outlined in 10 CFR 32.51, 32.53, 32.57, 32.61, and 32.71, concerning the radionuclides and activities, containment and construction, labeling, quality control and assurance programs, etc. NRC will evaluate the information submitted in the application to ensure it meets all applicable standards and regulations and will contact the applicant, if necessary, to obtain additional clarification or information.

A sealed source and device (SSD) safety evaluation will be performed on the sealed sources and devices the applicant proposes to distribute to general licensees. Information about the review and approval process for SSDs is contained in NUREG-1556, Vol. 3. Upon completion of the SSD evaluation, a registration certificate will be issued. The registration certificate must be complete and available before the licensing reviewer may issue the license. An SSD evaluation and registration certificate is required for all devices authorized in 10 CFR 31.3, 31.5, 31.7, and 31.10. An SSD evaluation is *not* required for devices/products authorized in 10 CFR 31.8 and 31.11. An example of a registration certificate is provided in Appendix C of this document.

#### Note:

- The licensee can only distribute devices as described in the registration certificate.
- Modifications to a device require an amendment to the registration certificate.
- Devices that have been modified cannot be distributed until the registration certificate has been amended.

After the issuance of a license, licensees must conduct their programs for the distribution of generally licensed products/devices in accordance with the following:

- Statements, representations, and procedures contained in their application, and other correspondence with NRC;
- Terms and conditions of the license;
- Device registration, if applicable;
- Applicable NRC regulations.

Section 30.9 of 10 CFR Part 30, "Rules of General Applicability to Domestic Licensing of Byproduct Material," requires that the information provided in the application be complete and accurate in all material respects. Information is considered to be material if it is likely to change or affect an Agency decision on issuing the license; therefore, information should be clear, specific, and accurate. Section 30.10, 10 CFR Part 30, "Deliberate misconduct," states that those

providing information concerning a licensee's activities may not deliberately engage in misconduct or provide incomplete or inaccurate information to NRC.

It is important that applicants and licensees understand that the information provided in an application and approved in the license is considered a limitation by NRC on the licensee to engage only in those activities and products as described in the application or license. NRC should be notified of any changes or additions to the information submitted in the application. While some changes may not result in an amendment to the license, licensees should not assume that an amendment is not needed or that an amendment request has been granted until they receive a written confirmation in the form of a letter or license amendment.

### 5.3 TYPES OF GENERALLY LICENSED DEVICES

General distribution licenses are based on the types of products/device(s) to be distributed according to the six categories of products/device(s) found in 10 CFR Part 31. The following provides the applicable regulation and some examples of products/device(s) that may be distributed under a general distribution license and possessed by a general licensee:

#### § 31.3 and 31.5 Certain measuring, gauging or controlling devices

• Byproduct material contained in devices designed and manufactured for the purpose of detecting, measuring, gauging, or controlling thickness, density, level, interface location, radiation, leakage, or qualitative or quantitative chemical composition, or for producing light or an ionized atmosphere.



092000

**Figure 5.1 Gas Chromatograph Units.** *Certain gas chromatograph units (detector cells) used for analysis of chemical composition can be possessed under a general license (10 CFR 31.5).* 



Figure 5.2 Fixed Gauging Devices. Certain nuclear gauges can be possessed under a general license (10 CFR 31.5).



**Figure 5.3 Static Eliminators.** Certain static elimination devices can be possessed under 10 CFR 31.5.

Т



**Figure 5.4 Tritium Exit Signs.** Certain tritium exit signs can be possessed under 10 CFR 31.5 (typical devices contain 25 Ci of tritium per sign).

#### § 31.7 Luminous safety devices for use in aircraft

- Luminous safety devices containing only hydrogen-3 (tritium) or promethium-147;
- Tritium devices not to exceed 370 gigabequerels (GBq) (10 Ci) per device;
- Promethium-147 devices not to exceed 11 GBq (300 mCi) per device.



Figure 5.5 Luminous Exit Sign. Safety devices, such as luminous exit signs, containing tritium or promethium-147 that are used in aircraft may be used under the 10 CFR 31.7 general license.

#### § 31.8 Americium-241 in the form of calibration or reference standards

• Single source not to exceed 185 kilobequerels (kBq) (5.0 μCi) at any one time and/or location of use or storage.



Figure 5.6 Calibration Standards. Certain calibration and reference sources containing americium-241 can be possessed under a general license authorized in 10 CFR 31.8.

#### <u>§ 31.10</u> Strontium-90 in ice detection devices

• Single sources not to exceed 1.850 kBq (50  $\mu$ Ci) per source.

### § 31.11 Byproduct material for certain *in vitro* clinical or laboratory testing

- Iodine-125 not to exceed 370 kBq (10  $\mu$ Ci);
- Iodine-131 not to exceed 370 kBq (10 μCi);
- Carbon-14 not to exceed 370 kBq (10 μCi);
- Hydrogen-3 not to exceed 1,850 kBq (50 μCi);
- Iron-59 not to exceed 740 kBq (20 μCi);
- Selenium-75 not to exceed 370 kBq (10  $\mu$ Ci);
- Mock iodine-125 not to exceed 1.85 kBq (0.05  $\mu$ Ci) of iodine-129 and 0.18 kBq (0.005  $\mu$ Ci) of americium-241.

I



Figure 5.7 In Vitro Kit. Certain in vitro kits used in medicine, veterinary medicine, hospitals, and clinical laboratories are authorized in 10 CFR 31.11.

### 5.4 **PROPRIETARY AND PRIVATE INFORMATION**

License applications are generally made available for review by the public. Private information, including employee personal information (i.e., home address, home telephone number, Social Security Number, date of birth, and radiation dose information), should not be submitted unless specifically requested by NRC. Also, proprietary information as described in 10 CFR 2.790 (i.e., information not to be disclosed to the public) should not be included in an application unless necessary.

Any proprietary or financial information submitted should be clearly marked by the applicant as "Proprietary Information." In addition, the applicant must support the request to withhold by submitting an affidavit following the procedure in 10 CFR 2.790, "Public inspection, exemption, requests for withholding." Failure to follow this procedure may result in disclosure of the proprietary information to the public or substantial delays in processing the application.

Applications containing information marked as "Proprietary Information," will be reviewed to determine if this information is necessary to issue the license. If the information is determined unnecessary, it will be returned to the applicant. If the information is deemed necessary to issue the license, it will be reviewed by NRC to determine if it is indeed proprietary or confidential and should be withheld from public disclosure.

If NRC determines that the affidavit is deficient, i.e., does not contain the required information as outlined in 10 CFR 2.790(b)(4), the applicant will be notified that additional information is needed and that the review will continue when the required information is received. Applicants will be informed that NRC must review the information before determining whether to withhold it from public disclosure and that the review of their request for licensing may continue. If NRC determines that the information is not proprietary, but the applicant does not want the information

released to the public, the information will be returned to the applicant. A license cannot be issued until the request to withhold information is resolved.

Once NRC has reviewed the application and affidavit and determined whether or not to withhold the information from public disclosure, NRC will notify the licensee by letter of its decision and the appropriateness of the 10 CFR 2.790 affidavit (see Appendix D). Appendix D also includes a checklist for requests for withholding the information.

Applicants should write "Proprietary Information" on the top and bottom of the front page of each document containing proprietary information. The license reviewer will place a Proprietary Information cover sheet (NRC Form 190) on the document.

*Note:* Additional procedures for the handling of proprietary information can be found in Directive 12.6 (formerly MC 2101), "NRC Sensitive Unclassified Information Security Program."

### 5.5 FOREIGN VENDORS

Foreign vendors are unique in that NRC has no jurisdiction over the foreign entities. Pursuant to 10 CFR 110.53, "United States address, records, and inspections," foreign vendors or licensees involved in importing and exporting nuclear material and equipment are required to establish an address in the United States where papers may be served, where records can be maintained, and where NRC can inspect the applicant's activities and records as necessary to accomplish its mission. A general distribution license will, therefore, not be issued to a foreign vendor unless the requirements set forth in 10 CFR 110.53 have been satisfied.

1

# 6 HOW TO FILE

### 6.1 PAPER APPLICATION

Applicants wishing to distribute or initially transfer products containing byproduct material to persons generally licensed under 10 CFR Part 31 should complete NRC Form 313, "Application for Material License" (Appendix B). An application for a distribution license should contain information concerning the distribution of radioactive material only (not possession and use).

Applicants for a materials license should do the following:

- Be sure to use the most recent guidance in preparing an application.
- Complete NRC Form 313 (Appendix B), Items 1 through 4, 12, and 13 on the form itself.
- Complete Items 5, 6 and 10, as applicable, and attach separately.
- Items 7, 8, 9 and 11 are not applicable to distribution licenses.
- Submit all typed pages, sketches, or drawings on 8-1/2 x 11-inch paper to facilitate handling and review. Larger drawings should be folded to 8-1/2 x 11 inches.
- Avoid submitting proprietary information unless it is absolutely necessary.
- Submit an original, signed application and one copy.
- Retain one copy of the license application for future reference.

As required by 10 CFR 30.32(c), applications must be signed by a duly authorized representative; see Section 8.9, Certification of Application.

Using the suggested wording of responses and committing to using any model procedures in this report will expedite NRC's review.

Please note that if it is necessary when filing for a license to reference information contained in other licensees' file(s) or registration certificate(s), whether current, retired or inactive, the information should be submitted, in its entirety, as part of the application.

All license applications will be available for review by the public. If it is necessary to submit proprietary information, follow the procedure in 10 CFR 2.790. Failure to follow this procedure could result in disclosure of the proprietary information to the public or substantial delays in processing the application. Employee personal information (i.e., home address, home telephone number, Social Security Number, date of birth, and radiation dose information), should not be submitted unless specifically requested by NRC. See Section 5.4, Proprietary and Private Information, for guidance.

#### HOW TO FILE

As explained in the Foreword, NRC's new licensing process will be faster and more efficient, in part, through acceptance and processing of electronic applications at some future date. NRC will continue to accept paper applications. However, these will be scanned and put through an optical character reader (OCR) to convert them to electronic format. To ensure a smooth transition, applicants are asked to follow these suggestions:

- Submit printed or typewritten, not handwritten, text on smooth, crisp paper that will feed easily into the scanner.
- Choose 12-point or larger font size.
- Avoid stylized fonts (or type faces) such as script, italic, etc.
- Be sure the print is clear and sharp.
- Be sure there is high contrast between the ink and paper (black ink on white paper is best).

### 6.2 ELECTRONIC APPLICATION

As the electronic licensing process develops, it is anticipated that NRC may provide mechanisms for filing applications via diskettes, CD-ROM, and through the Internet for those applicants/licensees who choose to file electronically. Additional filing instructions will be provided as these new mechanisms become available. The existing paper process will be solely used until the electronic process is available.

### 6.3 WHERE TO FILE

Applicants wishing to distribute or initially transfer products (containing byproduct material to persons generally licensed under 10 CFR Part 31 or equivalent Agreement State regulations) from any State or U.S. territory or possession subject to NRC jurisdiction, must file an application with the NRC Regional Office in the locale from which the material will be distributed or initially transferred. Figure 2.1 in Section 2 shows NRC's four Regional Offices and their respective areas for licensing purposes and identifies Agreement States.

In general, applicants wishing to distribute or initially transfer such products from a location in an Agreement State must file an application with the Agreement State, not NRC. See Section 2, NRC Regions and Agreement States, for additional information.

Requests for safety evaluations of sealed sources or devices are submitted directly by applicants to the Division of Industrial and Medical Nuclear Safety, Office of Nuclear Material Safety and Safeguards, U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission, Washington, DC 20555-0001 (address is also found at the top of NRC Form 313).

1

# 7 APPLICATION AND ANNUAL FEES

Each application for which a fee is specified must be accompanied by the appropriate fee. Refer to 10 CFR 170.31, "Schedule of fees for materials licenses and other regulatory services, including inspections, and import and export licenses," to determine the amount of the fee that must accompany your application. NRC will not issue the new license before receiving the fee. Once technical review has begun, no fees will be refunded; application fees will be charged regardless of NRC's disposition of an application or the withdrawal of an application.

For applicants wishing to distribute items containing byproduct material pursuant to 10 CFR 31.3, 31.5, 31.7, and 31.10 that require a source or device evaluation, the fee categories are 3B for possession and use license, 3J for distribution license, and 9A for the device evaluation or 9C for source evaluation. For applicants wishing to distribute items pursuant to 10 CFR 31.8 and 31.11 that do not require a source or device evaluation, the fee categories are 3B for possession and use and 3K for distribution.

Most NRC specific licensees are also subject to annual fees; refer to 10 CFR 171.16. The same fee categories that applied to the application, renewal, and registration fees also apply to the annual fees. Consult 10 CFR 171.11 for additional information on exemptions from annual fees and 10 CFR 171.16(c) on reduced annual fees for licensees that qualify as "small entities."

Direct all questions about NRC's fees or completion of Item 12 of NRC Form 313 (Appendix B) to the Office of the Chief Financial Officer (OCFO) at NRC Headquarters in Rockville, Maryland, (301) 415-7554. Or call NRC toll free at (800) 368-5643, extension 415-7554.

NRC conducts rulemaking each year to establish the Part 171 annual fees and to make any necessary changes to the Part 170 licensing and inspection fees. The proposed changes to the fees are published in the *Federal Register* for public comment, and a copy of the proposed rule is mailed to all specific licensees. After consideration of the comments received, a final rule is published in the *Federal Register* and a copy is mailed to all licensees. At that time, invoices are issued for the annual fees. Although the invoices are issued for the full amount of the annual fee, the amount due may be reduced, as provided in 10 CFR 171.16(c), if the licensee qualifies as a small entity under NRC's size standards and so certifies by completing and returning NRC Form 526, "Small Entity Certification," which is enclosed with each annual fee invoice. A new certification must be submitted with the annual fee payment each year.

The following comments apply to the indicated items of NRC Form 313 (see Appendix B).

### 8.1 ITEM 1: LICENSE ACTION TYPE

THIS IS AN APPLICATION FOR (Check appropriate item)

Type of Action	License No.
□ A. New License	Not Applicable
D B. Amendment	XX-XXXXX-XX
C. Renewal	XX-XXXXX-XX

Check box A for a new license request.

Check box B for an amendment<sup>1</sup> to an existing license, and provide license number.

Check box C for a renewal<sup>1</sup> of an existing license, and provide license number.

### 8.2 ITEM 2: APPLICANT'S NAME AND MAILING ADDRESS

List the legal name of the applicant's corporation or other legal entity with direct control over the distribution of the radioactive material (product). A division or department within a legal entity may not be a licensee. An individual may be designated as the applicant only if the individual is acting in a private capacity and the distribution of the radioactive material (product) is not connected with employment in a corporation or other legal entity. Provide the mailing address where correspondence should be sent. A Post Office Box number is an acceptable mailing address.

*Note:* While a U.S. address is required in order to issue a license, it is acceptable for the licensee's mailing address and the state code in the license number to be based on an address located in Puerto Rico, Canada, or the U.S. Virgin Islands.

Notify NRC of changes in mailing address; these changes do not require a fee.

See Section 11, Amendments and Renewals to a license. Licensees may request an amendment to an existing license to add changes or modifications to their existing radiation safety procedures, location of use, name of Radiation Safety Officer, etc.

*Note:* NRC must be notified before control of the license is transferred, and the licensee must receive written consent from NRC prior to the change of control. NRC must also be notified when bankruptcy proceedings have been initiated. See below for more details.

NRC Information Notice (IN) 97-30, "Control of Licensed Material during Reorganizations, Employee-Management Disagreements, and Financial Crises," dated June 3, 1997, discusses the potential for the security and control of licensed material to be compromised during periods of organizational instability.

NUREG-1556, Volume 15, "Consolidated Guidance About Materials Licenses: Guidance About Changes of Control and Bankruptcy Involving Byproduct, Source, or Special Nuclear Material Licenses," provides additional information about NRC requirements related to both changes of control and bankruptcy.

### 8.2.1 TIMELY NOTIFICATION OF TRANSFER CONTROL

Regulations: 10 CFR 30.34(b).

**Criteria:** Licensees must provide full information and obtain NRC's prior written consent before transferring control of the license.

**Discussion:** Control over licensed activities can be construed as the authority to decide when and how that license (licensed material and/or activities) will be used. A change of ownership may be an example of a change of control, depending on whether the authority over the license has been transferred from one person to another. For example, a change may result from a merger or buyout. The transfer of stock or other assets is not a change of control, unless there is a change of authority over the license.

It is not NRC's intent to interfere with the business decisions of licensees. NRC will require licensees to submit only such business information as is necessary to determine whether a change of control will take place. This information is required to ensure that all NRC requirements are followed.

#### **Response from the Applicant:**

- None from an applicant for a new license.
- For existing licensees undergoing change of control, refer to Appendix E, excerpted from IN 89-25 (Rev. 1), "Unauthorized Transfer of Ownership or Control of Licensed Activities," dated December 7, 1994, which identifies the information to be provided about changes of control.

**Reference:** See the Availability Notice on the inside front cover of this report to obtain copies of:

- Information Notice 89-25 (Rev. 1), "Unauthorized Transfer of Ownership or Control of Licensed Activities," dated December 7, 1994;
- Information Notice 97-30, "Control of Licensed Material during Reorganizations, Employee-Management Disagreements, and Financial Crises," dated June 3, 1997.

Information Notices are available on NRC's web site at <www.nrc.gov/NRC/reference.html>.

### 8.2.2 NOTIFICATION OF BANKRUPTCY PROCEEDINGS

#### Regulations: 10 CFR 30.34(h).

**Criteria:** Immediately following filing of a voluntary or involuntary petition for bankruptcy, specific licensees (as well as general licensee registrants) must notify the appropriate NRC Regional Administrator, in writing, identifying the bankruptcy court in which the petition was filed and the date of filing.

**Discussion:** Even though a licensee may have filed for bankruptcy, the licensee remains responsible for all regulatory requirements. NRC needs to know when licensees are in bankruptcy proceedings in order to determine whether all NRC requirements are followed prior to the completion of the bankruptcy actions. NRC shares the results of its determinations with other involved entities (e.g., trustee) so that health and safety issues can be resolved before bankruptcy actions are completed.

#### **Response from Applicant:**

- No response is required at time of application for a new license.
- Licensees must notify NRC immediately following filing a bankruptcy petition.

#### **References:**

- Inspection Procedure 87103, "Inspection of Material Licensees Involved in an Incident or Bankruptcy Filing."
- Policy and Guidance Directive PG 8-11, "NMSS Procedures for Reviewing Declarations of Bankruptcy," dated August 8, 1996.

# 8.3 ITEM 3: ADDRESS(ES) FROM WHICH LICENSED MATERIAL WILL BE DISTRIBUTED

An applicant for a general distribution license must be an organization with an address in the United States from which it will distribute the items. The applicant must specify the street address, city, and state or other descriptive address (e.g., on Highway 10, 5 miles east of the intersection of Highway 10 and State Route 234, Anytown, State) for each and every facility used as a location from which distribution will occur. A Post Office Box address is *not* acceptable. Each point of distribution will be listed on the general distribution license.

Being granted an NRC license does not relieve a licensee from complying with other applicable Federal, State, or local requirements (e.g., local zoning requirements or local ordinances requiring registration of radioactive material).

# 8.4 ITEM 4: PERSON TO BE CONTACTED ABOUT THIS APPLICATION

Identify the individual who can provide information and answer questions about the application and the product(s) to be distributed, and include his or her telephone number. This is typically the RSO for the license for possession and use of the material, unless the applicant has named a different person as the contact. NRC will contact this individual if there are questions about the application.

Notify NRC if the contact person or his or her telephone number changes so that NRC can contact the applicant or licensee in the future regarding questions, concerns, or information. Notification of a contact change is for information only and would not be considered an application for license amendment.

The individual named in Item 4 of the application may or may not be the same individual who signs the application as the "certifying official" on behalf of the licensee and has the authority to make commitments to NRC (see Item 13 on Form 313, Appendix B). Any commitments made by the applicant should be signed by the individual named in Item 13, since only that individual is considered by NRC to have the authority to make commitments on behalf of the applicant. NRC will not, therefore, accept license amendments or renewals signed by the individual identified in Item 4, if this person differs from the one named in Item 13.

NRC recognizes that licensees may use a consultant or consultant group to help prepare the license application and provide support to the radiation protection program. Licensees are reminded that regardless of the role of the consultant in radiation protection program management, the licensee remains ultimately responsible for all aspects of the licensed program,

1 1

including the services performed by the consultant. When selecting the person to be contacted, be aware that further important NRC communications will be directed to this person.

### 8.5 ITEMS 5 AND 6: RADIOACTIVE MATERIAL AND PURPOSE(S) FOR WHICH LICENSED MATERIAL WILL BE USED

**Regulations:** 10 CFR 30.33; 10 CFR 32.51; 10 CFR 32.53; 10 CFR 32.57; 10 CFR 32.61; 10 CFR 32.71.

**Criteria:** An application for a general distribution license will be approved if the requirements of 10 CFR 30.33, and the applicable requirements of 10 CFR 32.51, 10 CFR 32.53, 10 CFR 32.57, 10 CFR 32.61, and/or 10 CFR 32.71 are met.

**Discussion:** Applicants should determine what devices or products are to be distributed and provide information about each type of product. Describe in general terms the purpose of each product. Activity should be specified in terms of "XX becquerels (YY curies)." For example, "the maximum activity per sealed source is 370 MBq (10 mCi) of cesium-137."

A safety evaluation of sealed sources and devices is required on certain generally licensed devices. An SSD evaluation is required for all devices authorized in 10 CFR 31.3, 31.5, 31.7, and 31.10. An SSD evaluation is *not* required for devices/products authorized in 10 CFR 31.8 and 31.11. This evaluation is performed by NRC or an Agreement State before authorizing a manufacturer (or distributor) to distribute the device to general licensees. The safety evaluation is documented in an SSD Registration Certificate. Information on SSD registration certificates is available on NRC's web site at <http://www.hsrd.ornl.gov/nrc/ssdrform.htm>. Information may also be obtained by contacting the Registration Assistant at NRC's toll free number, (800) 368-5642, extension 415-7231. For additional guidance relating to sealed sources and devices, also see NUREG-1556, Vol. 3, "Applications for Sealed Source and Device Evaluation and Registration."

You may not apply for a distribution license for devices that require an SSD evaluation and have not yet been through the above procedure. First obtain an SSD Registration Certificate, and then apply for a distribution license.

**Response from Applicant:** The applicant should provide the following information for each device to be distributed:

- Isotope;
- Manufacturer and model number;
- Maximum activity per device;

- Purpose of the device;
- SSD Registration Certificate Number for all devices authorized for use under 10 CFR 31.3, 31.5, 31.7, and 31.10.

**References:** See the Availability Notice (on the inside front cover of this report) to obtain a copy of NUREG-1556, Vol. 3, "Consolidated Guidance about Materials Licenses: Applications for Sealed Source and Device Evaluation and Registration." Also, see the Sample Registration Certificates for Generally Licensed Products, in Appendix C of this document.

### 8.6 ITEMS 7, 8, 9 AND 11: NOT APPLICABLE

These items on Form 313 are not applicable for general distribution licenses.

### 8.7 ITEM 10: RADIATION SAFETY PROGRAM (REQUIREMENTS FOR A GENERAL DISTRIBUTION LICENSE)

### 8.7.1 10 CFR 32.51: REQUIREMENTS FOR INITIAL TRANSFER OF DEVICES FOR USE UNDER 10 CFR 31.5 (CERTAIN MEASURING, GAUGING, OR CONTROLLING DEVICES)

Regulations: 10 CFR 31.5; 10 CFR 32.51; 10 CFR 32.51a; 10 CFR 32.52.

**Criteria**: Applicants for a specific license to distribute generally licensed devices, as specified in 10 CFR 31.5, should provide information relative to the material transfer reports and records. Applicants should also provide a copy of the information packet to be sent to customers before transfer. An SSD review is required (See Section 5.2). All other requirements of 10 CFR 32.51 are handled in the SSD review.

**Discussion**: The following information must be submitted or addressed as part of the license application.

#### **Quarterly Material Transfer Reports**

Licensees are required to file a report with NRC within 30 days of the end of each calendar quarter in accordance with 10 CFR 32.52. Appendix Q contains NRC Form 653 entitled "Transfers of Industrial Devices Report." This form may be used to submit these quarterly reports. Alternatively, the licensee may use another report format as long as the report includes the following information:

- 1. Name and license number of the specific licensee submitting the report.
- 2. Name and address of each General Licensee to which a product was transferred.

This address is to be the mailing address of the location of use of the device. For devices that are portable, this address shall be the mailing address of the primary place of storage of the device.

When a customer has multiple locations of use, each location of use should be listed as a separate transfer, with the corresponding mailing address of each location of use (unless the multiple locations are contained within the same business campus or industrial complex). For example, suppose you transfer GL devices to Company A at two different locations (Plant 1 and Plant 2). Company A is considered two separate general licensees, one for each location of use. In other words, Company A-Plant 1 is considered a separate General Licensee from Company A-Plant 2. Both General Licensees, to which a product was transferred, should be reported.

Different facilities at the same industrial complex or business campus are not considered separate locations.

If there is no mailing address for the location of use, an alternative address for the general licensee should be submitted, along with information on the actual location of use.

Reports to NRC should only include transfers of devices where the place of use is within NRC jurisdiction, or for portable devices, the primary place of storage of the device is within NRC jurisdiction.

3. Name, title, and phone number of each General Licensee's responsible individual (RI).

The RI is required to be an individual designated by the General Licensee to be responsible for having knowledge of and authority to take required actions to ensure the day-to-day compliance with the appropriate regulations and requirements. Each General Licensee must designate one RI per location and cannot designate more than one RI per location. An RI can, however, be assigned to more than one general licensee. This individual is not necessarily someone who works onsite at the place of use of the device and is not necessarily conducting all required actions, but is responsible for ensuring that required actions are taken.

- 4. Date of transfer.
- 5. Type, model number, and serial number of each product transferred.
- 6. Quantity and type of byproduct material contained in the product.

#### **Important Notes on Transfer Reports:**

• If one or more "intermediate persons" will temporarily possess the device at the intended place of use before the intended user takes possession, the report must include the same information for each intermediate person, and clearly designate that person as an intermediate person. The term "intermediate persons" means a person, company, or corporation that will temporarily possess the device at an intended place of use prior to its possession by the intended user. For
example, if XYZ Building Company owns an office building during its construction and the building contains self-luminous tritium exit signs (GL devices), XYZ Building Company is the intermediate person. When XYZ Building Company sells the office building to Company 123, then Company 123 becomes the general licensee. Note that an intermediate person should not hold a device in storage for longer than two years (10 CFR 31.5(c)(15)).

- If a company will be a warehouseman prior to delivery to the final destination, the warehouseman is exempted under 10 CFR 30.13 to the extent that the company stores the GL device for the end user. The company does not need to be documented on the transfer report. For example, suppose Company A purchases a tritium exit sign through Electric Company X (a warehouseman), for use at a particular location L, which is currently under construction. Electric Company X can store the exit sign at their place of business prior to shipment to its final destination. The distributor (specific licensee with license for distribution) must list the General Licensee as Company A at location L on the quarterly transfer report. The distributor cannot ship the exit sign to Electric Company X without knowing who Company X has sold the sign to, i.e., the end user or General Licensee company A for them to maintain in stock for resale, unless Electric Company X has a specific license for distribution of GL devices.
- If you receive a device from a 10 CFR 31.5 General Licensee, the report must note this and identify the General Licensee by name and address, the type, model number, and serial number of the device received, the date of receipt, and in the case of devices not initially transferred by the reporting licensee, the name of the manufacturer or initial transferor.
- If no transfers or receipts were made during the reporting period, a report of no activity is required.
- If you make changes to a 10 CFR 31.5 device, such that the label must be changed to update required information, the report must identify the General Licensee, the device, and the change to information on the device label.
- Licensees must also submit a report containing the same information outlined above to the responsible Agreement State Agency for transfers to or from General Licensees in Agreement States. However, a report of no transfers is only required if an Agreement State requests it.

## Recordkeeping

Information on all 10 CFR 31.5 transfers and receipts that supports the above reports, are required to be maintained for 3 years after the recorded event.

Licensees are required to make available, upon request, to the various regulatory agencies, records of final disposition of devices in the event the licensee files for bankruptcy or requests termination of the license.

# Information to be Supplied to Customers

Licensees are required to provide information to their generally licensed customers before transfer of devices in accordance with 10 CFR 32.51a (a) and (b). The intent is for the customer to be aware of this information prior to making a commitment to purchase (e.g., so they can consider the requirements associated with the general license and the costs of disposal of the device in making a decision to purchase). The following information must be provided:

- 1. A copy of 10 CFR 30.51, 31.2, 31.5, 20.2201, and 20.2202;
- 2. A list of services that can only be performed by a specific licensee;
- 3. Information on acceptable disposal options and estimated cost of disposal;
- 4. An indication that NRC's policy is to issue high civil penalties for improper disposal.

If the customer is planning to use the device in an Agreement State, a copy of applicable state regulations and the name, address, and phone number of the contact at the Agreement State Regulatory Agency should be provided. A copy of the NRC regulations listed in Item 1 above can be substituted for the Agreement State regulations, with a note that the device is regulated by the Agreement State regulations. Item 4 is not applicable in this case.

Note that Appendices K and L can be supplied to customers for information as well. In the easyto-read question and answer format, these Appendices contain useful information regarding generally licensed devices. Appendix K may be helpful to a wide range of generally licensees, and Appendix L may be helpful to general licensees who use Self-Luminous Exit signs.

## Response from Applicant: Submit the following:

A statement that: "We will provide quarterly transfer reports in accordance with 10 CFR 32.52(a) and (b) and will maintain records in accordance with 10 CFR 32.52(c). We will provide information to customers prior to purchase in accordance with 10 CFR 32.51a (a) and (b)."

**References:** Appendix F contains a checklist for use in reviewing general distribution license applications for 10 CFR 31.5 devices. Appendix K contains guidance for General Licensees in the form of questions and answers. Appendix L contains guidance specific to Self-Luminous Exit Signs (tritium exit signs) in the form of questions and answers. Appendix Q contains a form for use in submitting quarterly material transfer reports.

# 8.7.2 10 CFR 32.53: REQUIREMENTS FOR INITIAL TRANSFER OF LUMINOUS SAFETY DEVICES FOR USE IN AIRCRAFT

Regulations: 10 CFR 31.7; 10 CFR 32.53; 10 CFR 32.56.

**Criteria:** Applicants for a specific license to initially transfer luminous safety devices for use in aircraft containing tritium or promethium-147, for distribution to general licensees under 10 CFR 31.7, must provide sufficient information relative to annual material transfer reports. All devices distributed under 10 CFR 31.7 require an SSD review. All other requirements of 10 CFR 32.53 are handled in the SSD review (See Section 5.2).

For products distributed to general licensees pursuant to 10 CFR 31.7, the specific licensed distributor is required under 10 CFR 32.56 to file an annual report with NRC before July 30 of each year, covering the year ending June 30. The report must include the following information:

- Name of each general licensee to which a product was transferred (distributed);
- Types and numbers of each product transferred (distributed);
- Quantity of tritium or promethium-147 contained in each type of product; and
- Total quantity of tritium or promethium-147 transferred (distributed).

The report should also identify the specific licensee submitting the report (the distributor) and the specific license number.

**Response from Applicant:** Submit the following:

A statement that: "We will provide annual material transfer reports in accordance with 10 CFR 32.56."

**References:** Appendix G contains a checklist for use in reviewing a general distribution license application for luminous safety devices for aircraft.

# 8.7.3 10 CFR 32.57: REQUIREMENTS FOR INITIAL TRANSFER OF CALIBRATION OR REFERENCE SOURCES CONTAINING AMERICIUM-241

Regulations: 10 CFR 31.8; 10 CFR 32.57; 10 CFR 32.58; 10 CFR 32.59.

**Criteria:** Applicants for a specific license to initially transfer calibration or reference sources containing americium-241, for distribution to persons generally licensed under 10 CFR 31.8, must provide sufficient information relative to 10 CFR 32.58.

Note that an SSD registration certificate is not required for americium-241 calibration sources that contain no more than 185 kBq (5.0 microcuries), and thus, the application process for a manufacturing license of such sources should include a review of 10 CFR 32.57 and 32.59. For information regarding applications for manufacturing, see NUREG-1556, Vol.12.

**Discussion:** This section outlines the requirements to obtain a license for an applicant wishing to distribute americium-241 reference and calibration sources.

The byproduct material must be prepared for distribution in calibration or reference sources consisting of americium-241 not exceeding 185 kBq (5.0 microcuries).

Each source or storage container for the source must bear a label that contains sufficient information relative to safe use and storage of the source and the following statement (or a substantially similar statement):

The receipt, possession, use, and transfer of this source, Model \_\_\_\_\_\_, Serial No. \_\_\_\_\_\_, are subject to a general license and the regulations of the United States Nuclear Regulatory Commission or of a State with which the Commission has entered into an agreement for the exercise of regulatory authority. Do not remove this label.
CAUTION - RADIOACTIVE MATERIAL - THIS SOURCE CONTAINS AMERICIUM-241.
DO NOT TOUCH RADIOACTIVE PORTION OF THIS SOURCE.
[Name of manufacturer or initial transferor]

1556-064.ppt 072700

Figure 8.1 Label.

**Response from Applicant:** Submit an actual label for each americium-241 check or reference source to be distributed. These labels must contain the information described in the Discussion section above.

**Reference:** Appendix H contains a checklist for use in reviewing a general distribution license application for americium-241 calibration or reference sources under 10 CFR 31.8.

# 8.7.4 10 CFR 32.61: REQUIREMENTS FOR INITIAL TRANSFER OF ICE DETECTION DEVICES CONTAINING STRONTIUM-90

Regulations: 10 CFR 31.10, 10 CFR 32.61.

**Criteria:** Applicants for a specific license to initially transfer ice detection devices containing strontium-90 for distribution to persons generally licensed under 10 CFR 31.10, must only provide sufficient information relative to Items 1 through 6 of NRC Form 313. An SSD review is required (See Section 5.2). All other requirements of 10 CFR 32.61 are handled in the SSD review.

Response from Applicant: No specific response required.

**References:** Appendix I contains a checklist for use in reviewing general distribution license applications for ice detection devices.

# 8.7.5 10 CFR 32.71: REQUIREMENTS FOR INITIAL TRANSFER IN VITRO KITS UNDER 10 CFR 31.11

**Regulations:** 10 CFR 20.1901(a); 10 CFR 20.2001; 10 CFR 30.42(d); 10 CFR 31.11; 10 CFR 32.71.

**Criteria:** Applicants for a specific license to initially transfer byproduct material for certain *in vitro* clinical or laboratory testing for distribution to persons generally licensed under 10 CFR 31.11, must provide sufficient information to satisfy 10 CFR 32.71(b)-(e).

**Discussion:** This section outlines the requirements to obtain a license for an applicant requesting authorization to distribute *in vitro* kits to persons who use them for a variety of clinical tests such as Schillings tests, red cell survival tests, hormone evaluations, and thyroid stimulating hormone tests (TSH). An SSD review is not required.

The byproduct material must be prepared for distribution in prepackaged units consisting of any of the following:

- Iodine-131, iodine-125, carbon-14, or selenium-75 not exceeding 370 kilobecquerels (kBq) (10 microcuries (10 μCi));
- Hydrogen-3 not exceeding 1,850 kBq (50 μCi);
- Iron-59 not exceeding 740 kBq (20 μCi);
- Mock iodine-125 not exceeding 1.85 kBq (0.05  $\mu$ Ci) of iodine-129 and 0.18 kBq (0.005  $\mu$ Ci) of americium-241.

Each prepackaged unit must bear a durable, clearly visible label including the following information:

- The radionuclide and chemical form;
- A statement that the radioactivity does not exceed the limit indicated above for each radionuclide;
- The radiation caution symbol described in 10 CFR 20.1901(a);
- The words, "Caution Radioactive Material," and "Not for Internal or External Use in Humans or Animals."

1 1

Each package must also have a statement, or a substantially similar statement, that contains the following information on a label affixed to the prepackaged unit or in a leaflet or brochure accompanying the package.

The radioactive material may be received, acquired, possessed, and used only by physicians, veterinarians in the practice of veterinary medicine, clinical laboratories or hospitals and only for *in vitro* clinical or laboratory tests not involving internal or external administration of the material, or the radiation therefrom, to human beings or animals. Its receipt, acquisition, possession, use and transfer are subject to the regulations and a general license of the U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission or of a State with which the Commission has entered into an agreement for the exercise of regulatory authority.

[Name of manufacturer]

1556-065.pp 072700

# Figure 8.2 Package Label.

This label or leaflet/brochure must contain adequate information about the precautions to be observed in handling and storing such byproduct material. Regarding Mock Iodine-125 reference/calibration sources, the information must also contain directions on disposing of waste in accordance with 10 CFR 20.2001. Usually, compliance with this requirement is achieved by transfer to an authorized recipient.

In accordance with 10 CFR 31.11(f), except for mock iodine-125 sources, these licensees are exempt from the requirements in 10 CFR Parts 19, 20, and 21, including the requirements on disposal of licensed material. The distribution licensees may wish to inform their customers of this exemption.

*Note:* The distributor of generally licensed *in vitro* kits must not transfer materials to a general licensee unless the general licensee has a properly completed NRC Form-483, "Registration Certificate - *In Vitro* Testing with Byproduct Material Under General License" on file with NRC. Distributors can verify this information by obtaining a copy of the general licensee's validated Form NRC-483. An NRC Form-483 has been validated if it has been assigned a registration number by NRC. Alternate methods for verification are listed in 10 CFR 30.41(d).

**Response from Applicant:** Submit an actual package label and/or leaflet/brochure for each type of prepackaged kit. These labels and/or leaflet/brochures must contain the information described in the Discussion section above.

**References:** Appendix J contains a checklist for reviewing general distribution license applications for certain *in vitro* kits under 10 CFR 31.11.

# 8.8 ITEM 12: FEES

On NRC Form 313, enter the appropriate fee category from 10 CFR 170.31 and the amount of the fee enclosed with the application. Applicants should be aware that they may be responsible for fees in each category applicable to their application or license. Refer to Section 7 for more information.

NRC may begin reviewing licensing requests without the proper fees; however, NRC will not issue a new license, amendment, renewal, or registration certificate before receiving the appropriate fee.

# 8.9 ITEM 13: CERTIFICATION OF APPLICATION

Individuals acting in a private capacity are required to date and sign NRC Form 313. Otherwise, representatives of the corporation or legal entity filing the application should date and sign the form. *Representatives signing an application must be authorized to make binding commitments and to sign official documents on behalf of the applicant*. As discussed previously in "Management Responsibility," signing the application acknowledges management's commitment and responsibilities for the radiation protection program. *NRC will return all unsigned applications for proper signature*.

#### Note:

- When the application references commitments, those items become part of the licensing conditions and regulatory requirements.
- It is a violation of 10 CFR 30.9 and 10 CFR 30.10 to make a false statement on an application. Civil sanctions, including revocation of the license and/or orders removing individuals from licensed activity, may be taken.
- It is a criminal offense to make a willful false statement or representation on applications or correspondence (18 U.S.C. 1001).

1 1

# 9 DEFICIENCY IN THE APPLICATION

If, in the process of evaluating an application, it is determined that insufficient information has been submitted, the license reviewer will contact the applicant to obtain the necessary information. Depending on the type and complexity of the information needed, the reviewer may request the additional information through a formal written request or, especially for simple answers and clarifications, via telephone or electronic mail. Submittal of an inadequate or deficient application may delay the issuance of the license. The application could be rejected by NRC for failure to provide a prompt or timely response to a deficiency in the application.

Applicants may request an extension of time in order to respond to any correspondence or request for additional information about its application, provided NRC determines there is good cause and the additional time is reasonable. The request may be in writing or via telephone. Typically, the reviewer notifies the applicant by telephone that an extension has been granted and gives the applicant the new proposed date.

# **10 ISSUANCE OF A LICENSE**

Licenses authorizing distribution of generally licensed products or devices under 10 CFR 32.51, 32.53, 32.57, 32.61, and/or 32.71 are prepared using NRC Form 374 (see Appendix M for a typical example). This is a separate license from the possession and use license, and it is commonly referred to as a "General Distribution" license. All general distribution licenses include the following information:

- Licensee's name and mailing address;
- License number, docket number and expiration date (all assigned by NRC);
- Byproduct material and its chemical and/or physical form;
- Authorized activity;
- Products, model number, and maximum activity per source or device;
- Location(s) from which generally licensed products may be distributed;
- Condition that "this license does not authorize possession or use of licensed material."

The general distribution license also contains a "tie-down" condition that commits the licensee to conducting its program in accordance with the statements, representations, and procedures contained in the documents, including any enclosures, submitted by the applicant.

# **11 AMENDMENTS AND RENEWALS TO A LICENSE**

It is the licensee's obligation to keep the license current and anticipate the need for a license amendment. If any of the information provided in the original application needs to be modified or changed, the licensee should consult the appropriate Regional Office to determine if an amendment to the license is required and if required, the licensee must submit an application for a license amendment before the change takes place. In general, you must submit an application for an amended license whenever there is a substantive change to text or labels accompanying the product. Substantive changes include such items as a change in name and address of the licensed distributor, wording required by regulations, or a change in colors used on the hazard warning labels. An application for a license amendment is not needed for minor changes. Minor changes include changes in format, color intensity, typographical corrections, changes to distributor's logo, telephone number, e-mail address or web-site address.

Also, to continue the license after its expiration date, the licensee must submit an application for a license renewal at least 30 days before the expiration date (10 CFR 2.109, 10 CFR 30.36(a)).

For renewal and amendment requests, applicants must do the following:

- Be sure to use the most recent guidance in preparing an amendment or renewal request.
- Submit, in duplicate, either an NRC Form 313 and/or a letter requesting amendment or renewal.
- Provide the license number.

In requesting renewal of a license, licensees should do the following:

• Review the current license and associated documents submitted to NRC in the past to determine if the information is up-to-date and accurately represents the current licensed activities and products. Identify in the application, by date, those documents that are applicable and those that are out-of-date or superseded, and indicate any changes necessary to reflect the current program.

Using the suggested wording of responses and committing to using any model procedures in this report will expedite NRC's review.

Applications for license renewal filed at least 30 days before the expiration date of the license will receive a "Deemed Timely" letter (see Appendix O for an example) confirming that the application has been filed in a timely manner and the present license will remain in effect until NRC takes final action on the renewal application. A copy of this letter should be maintained until the amended license is received. If a renewal application is not received by NRC before the expiration date, the licensee will be without a valid license when the license expires, at which point general distribution activities are no longer authorized and the licensee must cease all

### AMENDMENTS AND RENEWALS TO A LICENSE

distribution activities until a new license can be obtained. The licensee must then submit an application package for a new license.

Licensees not wishing to renew their general distribution license should send a letter to NRC before the expiration date of the license, with a request that the license be terminated (see Section 13 for additional guidance).

Amending or changing the general distribution license may also require amendments to the possession and use license(s) and/or the device registration sheet(s) for additions, deletions, or modifications to models of sealed sources or devices to be distributed.

1

# **12 APPLICATIONS FOR EXEMPTIONS**

Regulations: 10 CFR 19.31; 10 CFR 20.2301; and 10 CFR 30.11.

**Criteria:** Licensees may request exemptions to regulations. The licensee must demonstrate that the exemption is authorized by law, will not endanger life or property or the common defense and security, and is otherwise in the public interest.

**Discussion:** Various sections of NRC's regulations address requests for exemptions (e.g., 10 CFR 19.31, 20.2301, and 30.11(a)). These regulations state that NRC may grant an exemption, acting on its own initiative or on an application from an interested person. Key considerations are whether the exemption is authorized by law, will endanger life or property or the common defense and security, and is otherwise in the public interest.

Until NRC has granted an exemption in writing, NRC expects compliance with all applicable regulations.

Exemptions are not intended for large classes of licenses and are generally limited to a unique situation. Exemption requests must be accompanied by the following information:

- Request for the exemption and an explanation of why it is needed;
- Proposed compensatory safety measures intended to provide a level of health and safety equivalent to the regulation for which the exemption is being requested; and
- Alternative methods for complying with the regulation and why they are not feasible.

# **13 TERMINATION OF ACTIVITIES**

Regulations: 10 CFR 30.36.

Criteria: Termination of distribution activities.

**Discussion:** Pursuant to 10 CFR 30.36, general distribution licensees may request termination of their NRC license at any time. Licensees should notify NRC within 60 days of their decision to permanently cease licensed activities or the lack of licensed activities for 24 months.

General distribution licensees who intend to terminate their possession and use activities as well, are responsible for notifying and providing records to the appropriate NRC or Agreement State authorities concerning the disposition of the possession license and all radioactive material, etc.

A specific license is not terminated until NRC takes final action to terminate the license; therefore, an application for license termination does not relieve the licensee from its obligations to comply with NRC regulations and the terms and conditions of the license until the license is terminated in writing by NRC.

**Response from Applicant:** General distribution licensees who are required to submit material transfer reports under 10 CFR 32.52 or 10 CFR 32.56 are required to file material transfer reports when discontinuing activities authorized under the license. The report must include transfers since the period previously reported until the date of the last transfer. If no transfers of byproduct material have taken place, then the report should so indicate.

Appendix A

# List of Documents Considered in Development of this NUREG

This report incorporates, updates, and supersedes previous guidance found in Information Notice, "Standard Review Plan for Use of Sealed Sources in Nonportable Gauging Devices," and Technical Assistance Requests as it applies to manufacturing and initial distribution of generally licensed devices/products for use under 10 CFR Part 31. All superseded documents have been marked by an asterisk (\*).

Document Identification	Title	Date
IL 81-2*	Interpretive Letter 81-2	5/4/81
IN 81-37*	Information Notice 81-37, "Unnecessary Radiation Exposure to the Public and Workers During Events Involving Thickness and Level Measuring Devices"	12/18/81
IN 87-37*	Information Notice 87-37, "Compliance with the General License Provisions of 10 CFR Part 31"	8/10/87
IN 88-02*	Information Notice 88-02, "Lost or Stolen Gauges"	2/2/88
IN 88-90*	Information Notice 88-90, "Unauthorized Removal of Industrial Nuclear Gauges"	11/22/88
IN 94-15*	Information Notice 94-15, "Radiation Exposures During an Event Involving a Fixed Nuclear Gauge"	3/2/94
FC 85-04*	Policy and Guidance Directive, "Standard Review Plan (SRP) for Applications for Use of Sealed Sources in Nonportable Gauging Devices"	2/6/85
FC 85-08*	Policy and Guidance Directive, "Licensing of Fixed Gauges and Similar Devices," Revision 1	6/29/88

 Table A.1
 List of Documents Considered in the Preparation of this Report

**Appendix B** 

# United States Nuclear Regulatory Commission Form 313

## APPENDIX B

NRC FORM 31	13 Ų. S.	NUCLEAR REG	ULATORY COMMIS	SSION	APPROV	ED BY OMB: NO 31	150-0120	EXPIRES:08/31/2002
(6-1999) 10 CFR 30, 32, 33 34, 35 36, 39 and (		OR MATE		E	Estimated 7.4 hours and that regarding Regulator and to the Office of informatic conduct o	I burden per respons Submittal of the ap adequate procedurer burden estimate t y Commission, Waa o Desk Officer Officer Management and Bi in collection does not 4 sponsor, and a pers	se to comply with this ma pplication is necessary to ( a exist to protect the public to the Records Manager shington, DC 2055-0001, of Information and Regula udget, Washington, DC 2 of display a currently valies son is not required to respo	ndatory information collection request setermine that the applicant is qualified ic health and safety. Send comments nent Branch (1-6 EG). U.S. Nuclear or by infarnet a-mail to bjst@nrc gov. tory Afrairs, NEOB-10202, (3150-C122), 0503 H a means used to impose an 5 OMB control number, NRC may not ind to the information collection
INSTRUCTION SEND TWO C	NS: SEE THE AF	PROPRIATE LIC	CENSE APPLICATION	ON GUIO N TO TH	DE FOR	DETAILED INST OFFICE SPECIF	FRUCTIONS FOR C	OMPLETING APPLICATION
APPLICATION FO	R DISTRIBUTION OF	EXEMPT PRODUCTS	FILE APPLICATIONS WIT	TH:	IF YOU A	RE LOCATED IN:		
DIVISION OF IN OFFICE OF NUM U S NUCLEAR WASHINGTON	DUSTRIAL AND MED CLEAR MATERIALS S REGULATORY COM DC 20555-0001	ICAL NUCLEAR SAFE SAFETY AND SAFEGU MISSION	ETY UARDS		ILLINOIS SEND AP MATE US N	INDIANA, IOWA, MI PLICATIONS TO: RIALS LICENSING SI UCLEAR REGULAT(	ICHIGAN, MINNESOTA, M IECTION ORY COMMISSION REGIO	ISSOURI, OHIO, OR WISCONSIN, DN IIE
IF YOU ARE LOCA	ATED IN:	IONS AS FOLLOWS.			801 W	ARRENVILLE RD IL 60532-4351		
CONNECTICUT, D MASSACHUSETT RHODE ISLAND, C LICENSING AS	ELAWARE, DISTRICT S, NEW HAMPSHIRE, DR VERMONT, SEND SISTANT SECTION	FOF COLUMBIA, MAI NEW JERSEY, NEW APPLICATIONS TO:	NE, MARYLAND, YORK, PENNSYLVANIA,		ALASKA, LOUISIAI OKLAHO WASHING	ARIZONA, ARKANS IA, MONTANA, NEB MA, OREGON, PACI STON, OR WYOMING	SAS, CALIFORNIA, COLOP IRASKA, NEVADA, NEW N IFIC TRUST TERRITORIES G, SEND APPLICATIONS	IADO, HAWAII, IDAHO, KANSAS, IEXICO, NORTH DAKOTA, 5, SOUTH DAKOTA, TEXAS, UTAH, TO:
NUCLEAR MAT U.S. NUCLEAR 475 ALLENDAL KING OF PRUS	ERIALS SAFETY BRA REGULATORY COM E ROAD ISIA PA 19406-1415	NCH WISSION RÉGION I			NUCLEAR MATERIALS LICENSING SECTION U.S. NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION REGION IV 611 RYAN PLAZA DRIVE SUITE 400 ARLINGTON, TX: 78011-8084			VI V
ALABAMA, FLORI RICO, SOUTH CAP SEND APPLICATH	DA, GEORGIA, KENTI ROLINA, TENNESSEE ONS TO: DIANTA EEDERAL CE	UCKY, MISSISSIPPI, E, VIRGINIA, VIRGIN I NTER	NORTH CAROLINA, PUES SLANDS. OR WEST VIRG	RTO IINIA,				
0 S NUCLEAU 61 FORSYTH S ATLANTA GEO	R REGULATORY CON STREET, S W , SUITE DRGIA 30303-8931	IMISSION, REGION II 23785						
PERSONS LOCAT MATERIAL IN STA	ED IN AGREEMENT : TES SUBJECT TO U	STATES SEND APPLI SINUCLEAR REGULI	ICATIONS TO THE U.S. NU ATORY COMMISSION JUP	UCLEAR F	REGULATO	RY COMMISSION D	NLY IF THEY WISH TO PO	DSSESS AND USE LICENSED
1 THIS IS AN APPLICATION FOR (Check appropriate item) 2 NAME AND MAILING ADDRESS OF APPLICANT (Include Zip code)			clude Zip code)					
	C RENEWAL OF LICENSE NUMBER							
3 ADORESS(ES)	WHERE LICENSED	MATERIAL WILL BE U	JSED OR POSSESSED				4 NAME OF PERSON APPLICATION	TO BE CONTACTED ABOUT THIS
SUBMIT ITEMS 51	THROUGH 11 ON 8-17	2 X 11" PAPER. THE	TYPE AND SCOPE OF IN	FORMATIC		ROVIDED IS DESCR	RIBED IN THE LICENSE A	PPLICATION GUIDE
5 RADIOACTIV a Elementa which will	E MATERIAL ind mass number, b. ci be possessed at any	hemical and/or physici one time	al form, and c. maximum a	mount	6. PUR	POSE(S) FOR WHIC		WILL BE USED
7 INDIVIDUAL(S) RESPONSIBLE FOR RADIATION SAFETY PROGRAM AND THEIR TRAINING EXPERIENCE			8 TRAINING FOR INDIVIDUALS WORKING IN OR FREQUENTING RESTRICTED AREAS					
P FACILITIES AND EQUIPMENT			10 RADIATION SAFETY PROGRAM					
11 WASTE MANAGEMENT			12 LICENSEE FEES (See 10 CFR 170 and Section 170 31) FEE CATEGORY AMOUNT FEE CATEGORY					
13 CERTIFICAT	ION (Must be comple	led by applicant) THE	APPLICANT UNDERSTAN	NDS THAT	ALL STATE	MENTS AND REPR	ESENTATIONS MADE IN	THIS APPLICATION ARE BINDING
UPON THE APPLICANT THE APPLICANT AND ANY OFFICIAL EXECUTING THIS CERTIFICATION ON BEHALF OF THE APPLICANT NAMED IN ITEM 2 CERTIFY THAT THIS APPLICATION IS PREPARED IN CONFORMITY WITH TITLE 10 CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, PARTS 30, 32, 33, 34, 35, 36 39 AND 40, AND THAT ALL INFORMATION CONTAINED HEREIN IS TRUE AND CORRECT TO THE BEST OF THEIR KNOWLEDGE AND BELIEF. WARNING 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1001 ACT OF JUNE 25, 1948 63 STAT. 740 MAKES IT A CRIMINAL OFFENSE TO MAKE A WILLFULLY FALSE STATEMENT OR REPRESENTATION TO WARNING 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1001 ACT OF JUNE 25, 1948 63 STAT. 740 MAKES IT A CRIMINAL OFFENSE TO MAKE A WILLFULLY FALSE STATEMENT OR REPRESENTATION TO								
CERTIFYING OFFICER - TYPED/PRINTED NAME AND TITLE SIGNATURE DATE			DATE					
TYPE OF FEE	FEE LOG	FEE CATEGORY	AMOUNT RECEIVED	CHECK	NUMBER	COMMENTS		
			s	L				
APPROVED BY				DATE				

Appendix C

An Example of a Sealed Source and Device (SSD) Registration Certificate for Generally Licensed Products

# **REGISTRY OF RADIOACTIVE SEALED SOURCES AND DEVICES**

# SAFETY EVALUATION OF DEVICE (AMENDED IN ITS ENTIRETY)

No.: NR-109-D-122-B	DATE: June 27, 1994	<b>PAGE 1 OF 11</b>	
DEVICE TYPE: Transmission (	Gauge		
MODEL:	TG-1 (formerly registe and U-7D)	ered as the Models 0-7	', U-7,
MANUFACTURER/DISTRIBU	TOR: [Manufacturer's	name and address goe	es here]
SEALED SOURCE MODEL DI	ESIGNATION:	ABB Models:	S-11 S-16 S-18 S-20
		Amersham Model:	CLC.DI
ISOTOPE	MAXIMUM ACTIVITY	MODELS	
Promethium-147	1000 millicuries (37 GBq)	S-20	
Krypton-85	1000 millicuries (37 GBq)	S-11	
Strontium-90	70 millicuries (2.6 GBq)	S-18	
Curium-244	1000 millicuries (37 GBq)	CLC.DI	
Americium-241	5000 millicuries (185 GBq)	S-16	
LEAK TEST FREQUENCY:	6 Months Not required for	Krypton-85	
PRINCIPAL USE: (D) Gamma Gauge (containing Cm-244 or Am-241) (E) Beta Gauge (containing Pm-147, Kr-8 Sr-90)			4 or Gr-85 or
CUSTOM DEVICE:	YES	<u>X</u> NO	

# **REGISTRY OF RADIOACTIVE SEALED SOURCES AND DEVICES** SAFETY EVALUATION OF DEVICE (AMENDED IN ITS ENTIRETY)

No.: NR-109-D-122-B DATE: June 27, 1994

PAGE 2 OF 11

**DEVICE TYPE:** Transmission Gauge

#### **DESCRIPTION:**

The Manufacturer's Model TG-1 device is designed for gauging physical characteristics of processed materials such as the thickness, density, weight per unit area or length, or composition of the measured material. The device is always mounted in a fixed geometry with a detector housing. The detector housing is mounted in front of the beam port of the device. The material to be measured is either passed between the device and detector or the device and detector are moved simultaneously, maintaining their geometrical relationship over the material to be measured. The air gap between source housing and detector ranges from 0.5 cm (0.20 inch) to 10 cm (3.93 inch) for beta-emitting sources and up to 50 cm (19.69 inch) for gamma-emitting sources.

The device is installed at fixed locations by the manufacturer or another specific licensee of NRC or an Agreement State which is licensed to do so. The device may be installed into existing manufacturing equipment or onto a frame or scanner which is incorporated into the process. The device may be mounted in laboratory or similar locations.

The dimensions of the device range from 190 to 243 mm (7.48 to 9.57 inches) high by 419 mm (16.50 inches) long by 203 mm (7.99 inches) wide. The device consists of an outer shell, the sealed source, source holder, shutter mechanism, source holder adapter, and various electronic components. A drawing of the device is shown in Attachment 1.

The outer shell consists of four pieces: the source base plate, source head, and two side covers. The source head, three sides of the box shape, is either cast from aluminum or fabricated from steel. It has a minimum wall thickness of 6.4 mm (0.25 inch). The source base plate is fabricated from steel, 19.1 mm (0.75 inch) thick, and mechanically fastened to the enclosure with heavy-duty latches. The side covers are made of aluminum or steel and are 6.4 mm (0.25 inch) thick. The side covers are bolted in place and locked to prevent removal. When needed, insulating material is inserted between dissimilar material interfaces.

# REGISTRY OF RADIOACTIVE SEALED SOURCES AND DEVICES SAFETY EVALUATION OF DEVICE (AMENDED IN ITS ENTIRETY)

No.: NR-109-D-122-B DATE: June 27, 1994

**PAGE 3 OF 11** 

DEVICE TYPE: Transmission Gauge

### DESCRIPTION (Cont.):

The source holder adapter is fabricated from steel and is bolted to the source base plate. It has a minimum thickness of 15.8 mm (0.62 inch).

The shutter mechanism is operated by an air or electric actuator. The actuator is equipped with a fail-safe spring mechanism which will automatically return the sintered tungsten or stainless steel shutter to the closed position if there is a power failure.

The source holder contains the sealed source and is fabricated from steel and/or sintered tungsten and lead shielding. The combination of materials and dimensions of the source holder depends on the isotope. The source contained in the device may be one of the sources listed on the first page of this document with the maximum activity listed.

The device is designed to withstand the environmental conditions listed in this document. If more extreme conditions are expected or realized, the manufacturer may substitute different materials for the source base plate, source head, and side covers and/or may plate, coat, or treat these components to achieve higher performance. Upon doing so, the manufacturer is required to submit details of the environmental conditions and design specifications of the device to the Materials Safety and Inspection Branch, Division of Industrial and Medical Nuclear Safety, NRC.

The device is operated as part of a larger measurement and control system which is computer controlled. The computer control system may be located in a remote location. The system software and logic determines if the conditions are appropriate (material to be measured is present, line is moving, etc.) for the shutter to open. The operator cannot override the system logic and open the device shutter mechanism. However, the operator at the computer can close the shutter by executing a command such as "Off sheet" which will automatically close the shutter. The device may also be equipped with a mechanism which allows the shutter to be closed by executing a lock-out control at the operator's station or at the scanner.

The shutter position is indicated by lights in the immediate vicinity of the device. The lights are red (shutter open) and green (shutter closed). An illustration of the indicator lights for O-frame installations is shown in Attachment 2.

# REGISTRY OF RADIOACTIVE SEALED SOURCES AND DEVICES SAFETY EVALUATION OF DEVICE (AMENDED IN ITS ENTIRETY)

No.: NR-109-D-122-B DATE: June 27, 1994

**PAGE 4 OF 11** 

**DEVICE TYPE:** Transmission Gauge

### DESCRIPTION (Cont.):

Large lantern lights are mounted to U- or C-frame applications. The lights are mounted so they are readily visible to anyone working in the area near the device. Additional indicator lights may be located throughout associated areas. This could include lights or video displays at the operators' monitoring and control stations.

The ABB source models listed on the first page of this document (and in attachment 4) are approved for use only in the Model TG-1. The sources may not be registered on separate certificates. The sources are manufactured to ABB specifications by Amersham Corporation or Du Pont Merck Pharmaceuticals.

The Model TG-l replaces the ABB Models 0-7, U-7, and U-7D. The primary change is that the Model TG-l is the source housing which was used in the Models 0-7, U-7, and U-7D, and this change allows the device to be mounted to various types of frames or existing process machinery.

### LABELING:

The device is labeled in accordance with Section 20.203, 10 CFR Part 20. When distributed to persons generally licensed, the device is additionally labeled in accordance with the requirements of Section 32.51, 10 CFR Part 32. Copies of the labels are shown in Attachment 3.

Label A is self-adhesive and will be attached to the source holder. The label will include isotope, activity, and date assay of the source contained in the source holder. The label has a yellow background with black lettering and magenta trefoil symbols.

Label B is attached to the end of the device and to the outer shroud, carriage, frame, or mounting assembly containing the device so that it is clearly visible after the device is installed. Label B is either self-adhesive with the added information (isotope, activity, date of assay, serial number, model number, test interval, and distance specification) entered by typing and covered by a clear laminate, or is fabricated from anodized aluminum, attached with screws, and the information die stamped.

# REGISTRY OF RADIOACTIVE SEALED SOURCES AND DEVICES SAFETY EVALUATION OF DEVICE (AMENDED IN ITS ENTIRETY)

No.: NR-109-D-122-B DATE: June 27, 1994

PAGE 5 OF 11

### **DEVICE TYPE:** Transmission Gauge

#### LABELING (Cont.):

The manufacturer will choose a label sufficient to withstand the environment in which the device is installed. The label has a yellow background with black lettering and a magenta trefoil symbol.

Additionally, label C will be attached to the end of the devices distributed to general licensees. The label will be attached to the device and to the outer shroud, carriage, frame, or mounting assembly containing the device so that it is clearly visible after the device is installed. The label is either self-adhesive and covered by a clear laminate or is fabricated from anodized aluminum, attached with screws. ABB will choose a label sufficient to withstand the environment in which the device is installed. The label has a white background with black lettering.

The manufacturer's name is displayed on other labels and emblems attached to the supporting structures of the device.

The manufacturer's source models are engraved or stamped with the isotope, activity, serial number, and date of manufacture.

DIAGRAM:

See Attachments 1-4.

## CONDITIONS OF NORMAL USE:

The device is intended for use in industrial gauging applications. Typical environments are those associated with measurement and control applications such as paper machines, metals rolling mills, plastics extrusions lines, fiberglass mat lines, or tire fabric calendars. Operating temperatures may vary from 0°C to 200°C (32°F to 392°F). The temperatures will typically not exceed 125°C (257°F). The device will withstand humidity up to 100% RH. Vibration, shock, and corrosion will be typical of those associated with applications listed above.

In operation in non-benign environments, the source housing is typically temperature controlled. It may be purged.

# REGISTRY OF RADIOACTIVE SEALED SOURCES AND DEVICES SAFETY EVALUATION OF DEVICE (AMENDED IN ITS ENTIRETY)

No.: NR-109-D-122-B DATE: June 27, 1994

PAGE 6 OF 11

**DEVICE TYPE:** Transmission Gauge

CONDITIONS OF NORMAL USE (Cont.):

This controlled internal environment is designed to prevent condensation and corrosive conditions that might adversely affect shutter operation.

If the source housing is to be subjected to more extreme environments which would require different materials of constructions, or coatings or treatments of the materials, the manufacturer shall make the substitution and upon doing so, shall submit the environmental conditions and design specifications to the Source Containment and Devices Branch, NRC.

### **PROTOTYPE TESTING:**

According to the manufacturer, the expected useful life of the shutter design is 200,000 cycles. This represents the typical number of shutter operations a device may encounter during 10 years of use.

A prototype of a shutter mechanism (source, source holder, and complete shutter mechanism), similar in design to the Model TG-l shutter mechanism, was subjected to the Underwriter's Laboratories four hour fire test. The test consisted of the device being subjected to a temperature of 2000° F (1093°C) for four hours, followed by being dropped six feet while incandescent. The shutter mechanism was then immediately quenched in water at 68°F (20°C) and then dropped fifteen feet on each of its three major axes. After the test, the source remained in the device and leak tests indicated no leakage of byproduct material.

As stated, the Model TG-l has been manufactured and distributed as part of the Models 0-7, U-7, and U-7D. The device has demonstrated the capability to withstand the typical shock, vibration, and corrosion expected in typical operating environments.

The Models NER-584 and CLC.DI have been tested and meet the ANSI N542-1977 classifications of 77C33232 and 77C64344 respectively. A13B has indicated that their source models meet the ANSI N542-1977 classifications listed in the table in Attachment 4.

# REGISTRY OF RADIOACTIVE SEALED SOURCES AND DEVICES SAFETY EVALUATION OF DEVICE (AMENDED IN ITS ENTIRETY)

No.: NR-109-D-122-B DATE: June 27, 1994 PAGE 7 OF 11

DEVICE TYPE: Transmission Gauge

### EXTERNAL RADIATION LEVELS:

The following is the maximum external radiation levels from the device when mounted with a detector unit. These levels were taken from isodistance radiation patterns submitted by the manufacturer. The manufacturer states the patterns were prepared using the procedures specified in ANSI N538-1979 and represent the worst-case situations, as determined from data of actual measurements of all of the geometric combinations envisioned.

Containing a 1000 mCi, promethium-147 source and having a 13 mm (0.51 inch) air gap between the source housing and detector:

Distance		Shutte	er open	Shutter closed			
<u>(cm)</u>	<u>(in)</u>	mR/hr	<u>µSv/hr</u>	<u>mR/hr</u>	<u>µSv/hr</u>		
5	1.97	6.8	68	Background			
30	11.81	Background		Background			
100	39.37	Background		Background			

Max Radiation Level

# NUREG - 1556, Vol. 16

# REGISTRY OF RADIOACTIVE SEALED SOURCES AND DEVICES SAFETY EVALUATION OF DEVICE (AMENDED IN ITS ENTIRETY)

No.: NR-109-D-122-B DATE: June 27, 1994

**PAGE 8 OF 11** 

**DEVICE TYPE:** Transmission Gauge

EXTERNAL RADIATION LEVELS (Cont.):

As stated, the above levels represent the worst-case mounting configurations. However, once installed, the external radiation levels may be lower because of external shielding. In addition, because these housings are usually mounted within a frame or existing machinery, the workers will usually not be able to get within 30 cm of the device.

When installed at a general licensee's facilities, the radiation levels will be controlled with external shielding, barriers, and location such that dose rates at continuously occupied work stations will not exceed 0.25 mR/hr (2.5  $\mu$ Sv/hr). In addition, maximum radiation levels on the surface of the application will not exceed 50 mR/hr (500  $\mu$ Sv/hr) when the shutter is in the closed position.

QUALITY ASSURANCE AND CONTROL:

The manufacturer maintains a quality assurance and control program which has been deemed acceptable for licensing purposes by NRC. A copy of the program is on file with the Source Containment and Devices Branch.

# **REGISTRY OF RADIOACTIVE SEALED** SOURCES AND DEVICES SAFETY EVALUATION OF DEVICE (AMENDED IN ITS ENTIRETY)

No.: NR-109-D-122-B DATE: June 27, 1994 PAGE 9 OF 11

DEVICE TYPE: Transmission Gauge

## LIMITATIONS AND/OR OTHER CONSIDERATIONS OF USE:

The device may be distributed to specific or general licensees of NRC or an Agreement State.

Handling, storage, use, transfer, and disposal: To be determined by the licensing authority.

Source housings intended for use under a general license shall be initially tested for external radiation levels, required labels, and leakage/contamination of radioactive material by persons specifically licensed by NRC or an Agreement State.

The device, except when it contains Kr-85, shall be leak tested at intervals not to exceed 6 months using techniques capable of detecting 0.005 microcurie (185 Bq) of removable contamination.

When installed at a general licensee's facilities, the radiation levels shall be controlled such that dose rate levels at continuously occupied work stations will not exceed 0.25 mR/hr (2.5  $\mu$ Sv/hr). Maximum radiation levels on the surface of the application shall not exceed 50 mR/hr (500  $\mu$ Sv/hr) when the shutter is in the closed position.

When the source housing is to be subjected to extreme environments which require different materials of constructions, or coatings or treatments of the materials, the manufacturer shall make the substitution and upon doing so, shall submit the environmental conditions and design specifications to the Source Containment and Devices Branch, NRC.

When the device contains a beta-emitting source, the air gap between the source housing and the detector unit shall not exceed 10 cm (3.93 inches).

When the device contains a gamma-emitting source, the air gap between the source housing and the detector unit shall not exceed 50 cm (19.69 inches).

Servicing of the source housing, including installation and removal, and mechanisms essential to its inherent safety features (e.g. external shielding, automatic shutter closing mechanisms), shall be performed by persons specifically licensed by NRC or an Agreement State.

# REGISTRY OF RADIOACTIVE SEALED SOURCES AND DEVICES SAFETY EVALUATION OF DEVICE (AMENDED IN ITS ENTIRETY)

No.: NR-109-D-122-B DATE: June 27, 1994 PAGE 10 OF 11

**DEVICE TYPE:** Transmission Gauge

LIMITATIONS AND/OR OTHER CONSIDERATIONS OF USE (Cont.):

The manufacturer's models S-11, S-16, S-18, and S-20 are approved for use in the Model TG-1 as part of this registration.

This registration sheet and the information contained within the references shall not be changed without the written consent of NRC.

## SAFETY ANALYSIS SUMMARY:

The manufacturer/distributor has submitted sufficient information to provide reasonable assurance that:

- The device can be safely operated by persons not having training in radiological protection.
- Under ordinary conditions of handling, storage, and use of the device, the byproduct material contained in the device will not be released or inadvertently removed from the source housing, and it is unlikely that any person will receive in any period of one year a dose in excess of 10% of the limits specified in Section 20.1201(a), 10 CFR Part 20.

Under accident conditions associated with handling, storage, and use of the source housing, it is unlikely that any person would receive an external radiation dose or dose commitment in excess of the dose to the appropriate organ as specified in the following chart:

## PART OF BODY

Whole body; head and trunk; active blood-forming organs; gonads; or 15 rem (0.15 Sv) lens of eye

Hands and forearms; feet and ankles; localized areas of skin averaged 200 rem (2.0 Sv) over areas no larger than 1 square centimeter

Other organs

50 rem (0.50 Sv)

DOSE

# REGISTRY OF RADIOACTIVE SEALED SOURCES AND DEVICES SAFETY EVALUATION OF DEVICE (AMENDED IN ITS ENTIRETY)

No.: NR-109-D-122-B DATE: June 27, 1994 PAGE 11 OF 11

**DEVICE TYPE:** Transmission Gauge

SAFETY ANALYSIS SUMMARY SECTION (Cont.):

Based on review of the Model TG-l device, the information and test data cited below, and the years of usage as part of the Models 0-7, U-7, and U-71), we conclude that this device is acceptable for licensing purposes.

Furthermore, we conclude that this device would be expected to maintain it's containment integrity for normal conditions of use and likely accidental conditions which might occur during uses specified in this certificate.

### **REFERENCES:**

The following supporting documents for the Model TG-l are hereby incorporated by reference and are made a part of this registry document:

- Manufacturer's application dated July 23, 1991.
- Manufacturer's letters dated April 21, 1993 (two letters), and August 13, 1993, with enclosures thereto.
- Manufacturer's dated July 2, 1993, July 6, 1993, and October 18, 1993.

## **ISSUING AGENCY:**

U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission

Date:	June 27, 1994	Reviewer: John Lubinski
Date:	June 27, 1994	Concurrence: Steven L. Baggett

# REGISTRY OF RADIOACTIVE SEALED SOURCES AND DEVICES SAFETY EVALUATION OF DEVICE (AMENDED IN ITS ENTIRETY)

No.: NR-109-D-122-B DATE: June 27, 1994 ATTACHMENT 3

LABELS:

[example of the manufacturer's proposed labeling of the device would go here]

1 1

# **Appendix D**

# 10 CFR 2.790: Withholding Letter

[Applicant Name] [ATTN: Contact Name] [City, State Zip Code]

Dear [ \_\_\_\_\_ : ]

# SUBJECT: REQUEST FOR WITHHOLDING INFORMATION CONTAINED IN LICENSE APPLICATION

By NRC Form 313, "Application for Material License," or letter from (Licensee's Name) dated \_\_\_\_\_\_, and affidavit dated \_\_\_\_\_\_, you submitted proprietary material consisting of client information and requested it be withheld from public disclosure pursuant to 10 CFR 2.790.

You stated that the submitted information should be considered exempt from public disclosure for the following reasons:

1.

2.

We have reviewed your application and the material in accordance with the requirements of 10 CFR 2.790 and, on the basis of your statements, have determined that the submitted information may/may not be withheld.

Therefore, we have determined that the information contained in Items \_\_\_\_\_\_ of NRC Form 313 or the letter from (Licensee's name) dated \_\_\_\_\_\_, marked as proprietary, will be withheld from public disclosure pursuant to 10 CFR 2.790(b)(5) and Section 103(b) of the Atomic Energy Act of 1954, as amended. Your request for withholding will be maintained by this Office indefinitely or for as long as you continue to hold NRC License No. \_\_\_\_\_G.

Withholding from public inspection will not affect the right, if any, of persons properly and directly authorized to inspect the documents. If the need arises, we may send copies of this information to our consultants working in this area. We will, of course, ensure that the consultants have signed the appropriate agreements for handling proprietary information.

If the basis for withholding this information from public inspection should change in the future such that the information could be made available for public inspection, you should promptly notify NRC. You should understand that NRC may have cause to review this determination in the future, for example, if the scope of a Freedom of Information Act request includes your

#### APPENDIX D

information. In all review situations, if NRC makes a determination adverse to the above, you will be notified in advance of any public disclosure.

Sincerely,

[Reviewing Official]

1

In order to request that NRC withhold information contained in an application from public disclosure, the applicant must submit the information and application, including an affidavit, in accordance with 10 CFR 2.790. The applicant should submit all of the following:

0	A proprietary copy of the information. Brackets should be placed around the material considered to be proprietary. This copy should be marked as proprietary.
0	A non-proprietary copy of the information. Applicants should white out or black out the proprietary portions (i.e., those in the brackets), leaving the non-proprietary portions intact. This copy should <b>not</b> be marked as proprietary.
Ο	An affidavit that:
	Is notarized.
	Clearly identifies (such as by name or title and date) the document to be withheld.
٥	Clearly identifies the position of the person executing the affidavit. This person must be an officer or upper-level management official who has been delegated the function of reviewing the information sought to be withheld and authorized to apply for withholding on behalf of the company.
٥	States that the company submitting the information is the owner of the information or is required, by agreement with the owner of the information, to treat the information as proprietary.
	Provides a rational basis for holding the information in confidence.
	Fully addresses the following issues:
	Is the information submitted to, and received by, NRC in confidence? Provide details.
	To the best of applicant's knowledge, is the information currently available in public sources?
	Does the applicant customarily treat this information, or this type of information, as confidential? Explain why.
Ū	Would public disclosure of the information be likely to cause substantial harm to the competitive position of the applicant: If so, explain why in detail. The explanation should include the value of the information to your company, the amount of effort or money expended in developing the information, and the ease or difficulty of others to acquire the information.

# **Appendix E**

# Information Needed for Transfer of Control Application (Excerpted from Information Notice 89-25)

Licensees must provide full information and obtain NRC's *prior written consent* before transferring control of the license; some licensees refer to this as "transferring the license." Provide the following information, excerpted from IN 89-25, Rev. 1, "Unauthorized Transfer of Ownership or Control of Licensed Activities," concerning changes of control by the applicant (transferor and/or transferee, as appropriate). If any items are not applicable, so state.

- 1. The new name of the licensed organization. If there is no change, the licensee should so state.
- 2. The new licensee contact and telephone number(s) to facilitate communications.
- 3. Any changes in personnel having control over licensed activities (e.g., officers of a corporation) and any changes in personnel named in the license such as radiation safety officer, authorized users, or any other persons identified in previous license applications as responsible for radiation safety or use of licensed material. The licensee should include information concerning the qualifications, training, and responsibilities of new individuals.
- 4. An indication of whether the transferor will remain in non-licensed business without the license.
- 5. A complete, clear description of the transaction, including any transfer of stocks or assets, mergers, etc., so that legal counsel is able, when necessary, to differentiate between name changes and transferring control.
- 6. A complete description of any planned changes in organization, location, facility, equipment, or procedures (i.e., changes in operating or emergency procedures).
- 7. A detailed description of any changes in the use, possession, location, or storage of the licensed materials.
- 8. Any changes in organization, location, facilities, equipment, procedures, or personnel that would require a license amendment even without transferring control.
- 9. An indication of whether all surveillance items and records (e.g., calibrations, leak tests, surveys, inventories, and accountability requirements) will be current at the time of transfer. Provide a description of the status of all surveillance requirements and records.
- 10. Confirmation that all records concerning the safe and effective decommissioning of the facility (pursuant to 10 CFR 30.35(g), 40.36(f), 70.25(g), and 72.30(d)), public dose, and waste disposal by release to sewers, incineration, radioactive material spills, and onsite burials, have been transferred to the new licensee (if licensed activities will continue at the same location) or to NRC for license terminations.
- 11. A description of the status of the facility. Specifically, the presence or absence of contamination should be documented. If contamination is present, will decontamination occur before transfer? If not, does the successor company agree to assume full liability for the decontamination of the facility or site?
#### APPENDIX E

- 12. A description of any decontamination plans, including financial assurance arrangements of the transferee, as specified in 10 CFR 30.35, 40.36, and 70.25. Include information about how the transferee and transferor propose to divide the transferor's assets, and responsibility for any cleanup needed at the time of transfer.
- 13. Confirmation that the transferee agrees to abide by all commitments and representations previously made to NRC by the transferor. These include, but are not limited to maintaining decommissioning records required by 10 CFR 30.35(g), implementing decontamination activities and decommissioning of the site, and completing corrective actions for open inspection items and enforcement actions.

With regard to contamination of facilities and equipment, the transferee should confirm, in writing, that it accepts full liability for the site, and should provide evidence of adequate resources to fund decommissioning; or the transferor should provide a commitment to decontaminate the facility before transferring control.

With regard to open inspection items, etc., the transferee should confirm, in writing, that it accepts full responsibility for open inspection items and/or any resulting enforcement actions; or the transferee proposes alternative measures for meeting the requirements; or the transferor provides a commitment to close out all such actions with NRC before license transfer.

- 14. Documentation that the transferor and transferee agree to transferring control of the licensed material and activity, and the conditions of transfer; and the transferee is made aware of all open inspection items and its responsibility for possible resulting enforcement actions.
- 15. A commitment by the transferee to abide by all constraints, conditions, requirements, representations, and commitments identified in the existing license. If not, the transferee must provide a description of its program to ensure compliance with the license and regulations.

## **Appendix F**

## Review Checklist for General Distribution License Application: Certain Measuring, Gauging, or Controlling Devices (10 CFR 32.51)

#### **ITEM 1: ACTION TYPE**

ACTION TYPE:	ADMINISTRATIVE REVIEW:
<ul> <li>New</li> <li>Amendment</li> <li>Renewal</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Current Guidance Used</li> <li>References in Application Based on Current Regulations</li> <li>All Attachments Referenced Included</li> <li>Signature on Application</li> </ul>

#### **ITEM 2: LEGAL IDENTITY**

NAME:	

#### ITEMS 2 AND 3: ADDRESS

LOCATION OF DISTRIBUTION ADDRESS:	MAILING ADDRESS:

#### **ITEM 4: PERSON TO BE CONTACTED ABOUT THIS APPLICATION**

CONTACT PERSON:	
TELEPHONE NUMBER:	

#### **ITEMS 5 AND 6: MATERIAL TO BE DISTRIBUTED**

Item	Isotope	Mfg/ Model No.	Maximum Quantity per Device	Purpose of Device	SSD Registry Number
List as stated in application					
Defined in SSD registry certificate for a generally licensed device?	yes/no	yes/no	yes/no	yes/no	yes/no

#### ITEMS 7, 8, 9, AND 11: NOT APPLICABLE

#### **ITEM 10: RADIATION SAFETY PROGRAM**

Issue	Suggested Response	Provided? Yes/No
Transfer Reports	"We will provide quarterly transfer reports in accordance with 10 CFR 32.52(a) and (b)"	
Recordkeeping	"We will maintain records in accordance with 10 CFR 32.52(c)"	
Information to Customers	"We will provide the appropriate information to customers in accordance with 10 CFR 32.51a (a) and (b)"	

## **Appendix G**

## Review Checklist for General Distribution License Application: Luminous Safety Devices for Use in Aircraft (10 CFR 32.53)

#### **ITEM 1: ACTION TYPE**

ACTION TYPE:	ADMINISTRATIVE REVIEW:
<ul> <li>New</li> <li>Amendment</li> <li>Renewal</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Current Guidance Used</li> <li>References in Application Based on Current Regulations</li> <li>All Attachments Referenced Included</li> <li>Signature on Application</li> </ul>

#### **ITEM 2: LEGAL IDENTITY**

NAME:

#### **ITEMS 2 AND 3: ADDRESS**

LOCATION OF DISTRIBUTION ADDRESS:	MAILING ADDRESS:

#### **ITEM 4: PERSON TO BE CONTACTED ABOUT THIS APPLICATION**

CONTACT PERSON:	
TELEPHONE NUMBER:	

#### **ITEMS 5 AND 6: MATERIAL TO BE DISTRIBUTED**

Item	Isotope	Mfg/ Model No.	Maximum Quantity Per Device	Purpose of Device	SSD Registry Number
List as Stated in Application				<u> </u>	
Defined in SSD Registry Certificate for a Generally Licensed Device?	yes/no	yes/no	yes/no	yes/no	yes/no

#### ITEMS 7, 8, 9, AND 11: NOT APPLICABLE

#### **ITEM 10: RADIATION SAFETY PROGRAM**

Issue	Suggested Response	Provided? Yes/No
Transfer Reports	"We will provide annual transfer reports in accordance with 10 CFR 32.56"	

## **Appendix H**

Review Checklist for General Distribution License Application: Americium-241 in the Form of Calibration or Reference Sources (10 CFR 32.57)

#### **ITEM 1: ACTION TYPE**

ACT	TION TYPE:	ADMINISTRATIVE REVIEW:	
	New Amendment Renewal		Current Guidance Used References in Application Based on Current Regulations All Attachments Referenced Included Signature on Application

#### **ITEM 2: LEGAL IDENTITY**

NAME:	

#### ITEMS 2 AND 3: ADDRESS

LOCATION OF DISTRIBUTION	MAILING ADDRESS:
ADDRESS:	

#### **ITEM 4: PERSON TO BE CONTACTED ABOUT THIS APPLICATION**

CONTACT PERSON:	
TELEPHONE NUMBER:	

#### **ITEMS 5 AND 6: MATERIAL TO BE DISTRIBUTED**

Item	Isotope	Maximum Quantity per Source	Purpose of the Source
List as Stated in Application			
<b>Defined in</b> 10 CFR <b>32.57</b> ?	AM-241	<5 microcuries	Distribution for use under a GL of 10 CFR 31.8 (in calibration or reference sources)
	yes/no	yes/no	yes/no

#### ITEMS 7, 8, 9, AND 11: NOT APPLICABLE

#### APPENDIX H

#### **ITEM 10: RADIATION SAFETY PROGRAM**

Issue	Suggested Response	Provided? Yes/No
Labeling (10 CFR 32.58)	Submit an actual label that contains sufficient information relative to safe use and storage of the source and a statement, or a substantially similar statement, with the following:	
	"The receipt, possession, use, and transfer of this source, Model, Serial No, are subject to a general license and the regulations of the United States Nuclear Regulatory Commission or of a State with which the Commission has entered into an agreement for the exercise of regulatory authority. Do not remove this label.	
	CAUTION - RADIOACTIVE MATERIAL - THIS SOURCE CONTAINS AMERICIUM-241 DO NOT TOUCH RADIOACTIVE PORTION OF THIS SOURCE.	
	(Name of manufacturer or initial transferor)"	

1

1

## **Appendix I**

## Review Checklist for General Distribution License Application: Strontium-90 in Ice Detection Devices (10 CFR 32.61)

#### **ITEM 1: ACTION TYPE**

ACTION TYPE:	ADMINISTRATIVE REVIEW:
<ul> <li>New</li> <li>Amendment</li> <li>Renewal</li> </ul>	<ul> <li>Current Guidance Used</li> <li>References in Application Based On Current Regulations</li> <li>All Attachments Referenced Included</li> <li>Signature on Application</li> </ul>

#### **ITEM 2: LEGAL IDENTITY**

10°.	

#### ITEMS 2 AND 3: ADDRESS

MAILING ADDRESS:

### ITEM 4: PERSON TO BE CONTACTED ABOUT THIS APPLICATION

CONTACT PERSON:	
TELEPHONE NUMBER:	

#### ITEMS 5 AND 6: MATERIAL TO BE DISTRIBUTED

Item	Isotope	Mfg/ Model No.	Maximum Quantity per Device	Purpose of Device	SSD Registry Number
List as Stated in Application					
Defined in SSD Registry Certificate for a Generally Licensed Device?	yes/no	yes/no	yes/no	yes/no	yes/no

#### **ITEMS 7 - 11: NOT APPLICABLE**

## **Appendix J**

## Review Checklist for General Distribution License Application: Certain *In Vitro* Clinical or Laboratory Testing (10 CFR 32.71)

#### **ITEM 1: ACTION TYPE**

ACT	TION TYPE:	ADMINISTRATIVE REVIEW:
	New Amendment Renewal	<ul> <li>Current Guidance Used</li> <li>References in Application Based on Current Regulations</li> <li>All Attachments Referenced Included</li> <li>Signature on Application</li> </ul>

#### **ITEM 2: LEGAL IDENTITY**

_
•

#### **ITEMS 2 AND 3: ADDRESS**

LOCATION OF DISTRIBUTION	MAILING ADDRESS:
ADDRESS:	

#### **ITEM 4: PERSON TO BE CONTACTED ABOUT THIS APPLICATION**

CONTACT PERSON:	
TELEPHONE NUMBER:	

#### **ITEMS 5 AND 6: MATERIAL TO BE DISTRIBUTED**

Item	Isotope	Maximum Quantity Per Prepackaged Unit	Purpose of The Prepackaged Unit
List as Stated in Application			
Defined in 10 CFR 32.71?	I-125 I-131 C-14 H-3 Fe-59 Se-75 MOCK I-125	<10 microcuries <10 microcuries <10 microcuries <50 microcuries <20 microcuries <10 microcuries <10 microcuries I-129 and < 0.005 microcuries Am-241	Distribution for use under a GL of 10 CFR 31.11 ( <i>in vitro</i> test kits for non- human/non-animal use only)
	yes/no	yes/no	yes/no

#### ITEMS 7, 8, 9, AND 11: NOT APPLICABLE

#### APPENDIX J

#### **ITEM 10: RADIATION SAFETY PROGRAM**

Issue	Suggested Response	Provided? Yes/No
Labeling (10 CFR 32.71(c))	<ul> <li>Submit an actual package label that contains the following:</li> <li>The radionuclide and chemical form;</li> <li>A statement that the radioactivity does not exceed the limit indicated above for each radionuclide;</li> <li>The Radiation Caution Symbol Described in 10 CFR 20.1901(a); and</li> <li>The Words, "Caution - Radioactive Material," and "Not for Internal or External Use in Humans or Animals;"</li> </ul>	
(10 CFR 32.71(d))	Subilit an actual package label (or leaflet/brochure to accompany package) that contains a statement, or a substantially similar statement with the following: "The radioactive material may be received, acquired, possessed, and used only by physicians, veterinarians in the practice of veterinary medicine, clinical laboratories or hospitals and only for <i>in vitro</i> clinical or laboratory tests not involving internal or external administration of the material, or the radiation therefrom, to human beings or animals. Its receipt, acquisition, possession, use and transfer are subject to the regulations and a general license of the U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission or of a State with which the Commission has entered into an agreement for the exercise of regulatory authority. (Name of Manufacturer)"	
Label/leaflet (10 CFR 32.71(e))	Submit an actual package label (or leaflet/brochure to accompany package) that contains the precautions to be observed in handling and storing such byproduct material.	
Label/leaflet (10 CFR 32.71(e)) - for Mock I-125 Kits	Submit an actual package label (or leaflet/brochure to accompany package) that contains directions on disposing of waste in accordance with 10 CFR 20.2001.	

1

1

Appendix K

## Guidance for 10 CFR 31.5 General Licensees (Q&As)

#### 1. What is a generally licensed (GL) device?

Generally licensed (GL) devices contain radioactive material and are typically used to detect, measure, or control the density, level, or chemical composition of various items. Examples of such devices are gas chromatographs, density gauges, fill-level gauges, and static elimination devices. One of the more widely used devices are self-luminous exit signs.



Figure K.1 Fixed Gauges. Certain fixed nuclear gauges may be possessed and used under the general license in 10 CFR 31.5.



556-068 ppt. 092000

**Figure K.2 Gas Chromatograph Unit.** Certain gas chromatograph units (detector cells) used for analysis of chemical composition can be possessed under the general license in 10 CFR 31.5.

APPENDIX K



092000

Figure K.3 Self-Luminous Exit Sign. Certain self-luminous, tritium exit signs can be possessed under 10 CFR 31.5 (typical devices initially contain 25 curies of tritium per sign).

#### 2. What is a 10 CFR 31.5 general licensee?

A general licensee is a company or person who uses or stores a GL device. The device is obtained through an authorized transfer from the device manufacturer/distributor or by a change of company ownership whereby the device remains in use at a particular location. If you have received a device through unauthorized means, contact your regulatory authority immediately (see Question 14).

#### 3. What is NRC registration of generally licensed devices?

NRC requires that certain devices authorized in 10 CFR 31.5 be registered each year. Registration of the device depends upon the type and quantity of radioactive material in the device (see Question 4). Registration involves completing NRC Form 664, "General Licensee Registration," and submitting it to NRC (see Questions 4 and 6).

#### 4. Which GL devices are subject to NRC registration?

Devices that are subject to NRC registration are devices used and/or stored in NRC jurisdiction that contain, at the time of manufacture, at least 370 megabecquerels (MBq) (10 millicuries (mCi)) of cesium-137, 3.7 MBq (0.1 mCi) of strontium-90, or 37 MBq (1 mCi) of cobalt-60, americium-241, curium-244, or any transuranic isotope, i.e., element with atomic number greater than uranium (92).

Tritium exit signs and gas chromatographs are not subject to registration.

NRC registration is not required for a general licensee using a device in NRC jurisdiction for less than 180 days in any calendar year.

See Question 14 for a listing of states where NRC has jurisdiction (non-Agreement States), as well as a listing of states where NRC has given the state the authority for regulating use of radioactive material (Agreement States).

#### 5. How do I know if I have a GL device?

If you have a device as described in Question 1 above, look at the device for any and all labels.

GL devices should have labels containing such words as:

"Caution-Radioactive Material"; "The receipt, possession, use, and transfer of the device are subject to a general license"; OR identification of the radioactive material, such as "5 millicuries of cesium-137" or "1 mCi of Am-241."

Also, review any paperwork (such as manuals or brochures) that you received with the device. It can provide you with information on the radioactivity contained within the device and whether or not the device is subject to NRC regulations. If you are still unsure, contact the manufacturer or distributor of the device for help. If the manufacturer is not available, contact NRC (see Question 14).

Possession or use of similar devices may require a specific license. Manufacturers or distributors cannot transfer specifically licensed devices to customers who do not have a specific license to possess such a device. The customer should apply to NRC or the appropriate Agreement State for such a license.

#### 6. How do I know if I have a GL device that is subject to registration?

The device manufacturer should be able to answer questions regarding the registration of any devices you have purchased. However, you could look at the identification of the radioisotope and quantity of radioactive material listed on a label on the device. If the device contains at least 370 megabecquerels (MBq) (10 millicuries (mCi)) of cesium-137, 3.7 MBq (0.1 mCi) of strontium-90, 37 MBq (1 mCi) of cobalt-60, 37 MBq (1 mCi) of americium-241, 37 MBq (1 mCi) of curium-244 or any other transuranic, then it is subject to registration by NRC. NRC will contact you when registration is required.

#### 7. What are the requirements for a GL device?

GL devices used within NRC jurisdiction are subject to the NRC regulations listed in 10 CFR 31.5. General licensees are required to appoint a responsible individual who will know about the requirements and have the authority to carry out the necessary duties to comply with the regulatory requirements. These requirements are summarized in the following four tables:

#### **Routine Maintenance**

#### Maintain labels.

Comply with the instructions and precautions provided on the labels, including any referenced documents such as operating and service manuals.

If required, perform leak tests every six months in accordance with manufacturer's instructions (unless in storage or otherwise indicated on the label), and maintain this record for three years.

If required, perform shutter tests every six months in accordance with manufacturer's instructions (unless in storage or otherwise indicated on the label), and maintain this record for three years.

#### APPENDIX K

#### Requirements if the Device Becomes Damaged or Fails a Shutter or Leak Test

Suspend operation of the device.

Have the device repaired or properly disposed of by the manufacturer or distributor.

Provide to NRC, within 30 days, a brief description of the event and remedial actions taken. If contamination is measured as greater than 185 Bq (0.005 microcuries) or is likely to have resulted from the event, develop and submit a plan to NRC for ensuring that the premises and environs are acceptable for unrestricted use.

#### Additional Actions to be Taken in the Case of Significant Damage to the Device

Immediately secure the area and keep people away from the device until the situation is assessed and radiation levels are known. If equipment is involved, isolate it until it is determined there is no contamination present. Perform first aid for any injured individuals but remove them from the area only when medically safe to do so.

Arrange for a radiation survey to be conducted as soon as possible by a knowledgeable person using an appropriate radiation detector (survey meter). This person could be a representative of a manufacturer or distributor, a local emergency responder, a consultant, or a licensee employee using a radiation survey meter. To accurately assess the radiation hazard, it is essential that the person performing the survey be competent in the use of a radiation survey meter.

In addition to any required notification of NRC, you may report any incident to NRC by calling NRC's Emergency Operations Center at (301) 816-5100, which is staffed 24 hours a day and accepts collect calls. Local authorities may also be able to provide assistance.

Type of Report	Contents of Report	Frequency	Send to
Transfer, or disposal	Identification of device by manufacturer's (or initial transferor's) name, model number and serial number; name, address and license number of recipient; and date of transfer.	Within 30 days of transfer, disposal, or export.	Director of NMSS, Attn: GLTS, U.S. NRC, Washington, DC 20555-0001
Transfer report for change of ownership (where device remains in use at a particular location)	Manufacturer's (or initial transferor's) name, model number and serial number; name and address of the transferee; and name, title and phone number of the responsible individual of the transferee.	Within 30 days of transfer.	Director of NMSS, Attn: GLTS, U.S. NRC, Washington, DC 20555-0001

#### Reporting Requirements (Applicable to All 10 CFR 31.5 General Licensees)

Type of Report	Contents of Report	Frequency	Send to
Report if device becomes damaged or fails a shutter or leak test	Brief description of the event and remedial actions taken and a plan (if contamination is measured or likely) for ensuring that the premises and environs are acceptable for unrestricted use.	Within 30 days of occurrence.	Director of NMSS, Attn: GLTS, U.S. NRC, Washington, DC 20555-0001
Report name change of licensee	New name of general licensee.	Within 30 days of occurrence.	Director of NMSS, Attn: GLTS, U.S. NRC, Washington, DC 20555-0001
Report of change of mailing address of the location of use ( <i>Note:</i> In the case of portable devices, this only applies to the mailing address of the device's primary place of storage.)	New mailing address where device is used or stored.	Within 30 days after moving the device.	Director of NMSS, Attn: GLTS, U.S. NRC, Washington, DC 20555-0001
Report of incidents or lost or stolen devices	<ul> <li>The following information:</li> <li>(A) Description of the radioactive material;</li> <li>(B) Description of the circumstances under which the loss or theft occurred;</li> <li>(C) Disposition of the radioactive material;</li> <li>(D) Radiation exposure to individuals;</li> <li>(E) Actions taken to recover the material;</li> <li>(F) Actions taken to prevent recurrence.</li> </ul>	Telephone report within 30 days of occurrence; written report within 30 days of the telephone report.	Administrator of the appropriate NRC Regional Office

#### APPENDIX K

#### Additional Reporting Requirements for GL Devices Subject to Registration

Type of Report	Contents of Report	Frequency	Send to
Registration	The following information and any other information specifically requested by NRC:	Annual	Director of NMSS, Attn: GLTS,
	(A) Name and mailing address;		USNRC, Washington, DC
	<ul> <li>(B) Information about each device: the manufacturer or initial transferor, model number, serial number, radioisotope, and activity;</li> </ul>		20555-0001, or as otherwise indicated in the request for registration
	(C) Name, title, and telephone number of the responsible individual;		
	<ul> <li>(D) Address where the device(s) is used and/or stored;</li> </ul>		
	<ul> <li>(E) Certification that the information concerning the device(s) has been verified through a physical inventory and checking of the label;</li> </ul>		
	(F) Certification by the responsible individual that he/she is aware of the requirements of the general license.		
	<i>Note</i> : This information should be submitted using NRC Form 664.		
Bankruptcy	Notification of a voluntary or involuntary petition for bankruptcy under any chapter of Title 11 (Bankruptcy) of the U.S. Code.	Immediately following the filing of a voluntary or involuntary petition for bankruptcy.	Administrator of the appropriate NRC Regional Office

#### 8. Can I relocate my device(s) from one location to another?

Some GL devices have been approved for installation and relocation by the general licensee; however, this does not apply to all GL devices. You should contact the manufacturer or distributor to determine if your device(s) has been approved for relocation/installation by the general licensee.

#### 9. Is there reciprocity for GL devices?

No, there is no reciprocity provision applicable to general licensees. If a general licensee obtains a device in an Agreement State and wishes to use the device within NRC's jurisdiction, it must do so under 10 CFR 31.5. In this case, the general license in 10 CFR 31.5 applies automatically without application for license or other permission as long as the device has been manufactured and distributed appropriately. The general licensee is subject to the provisions of 10 CFR 31.5. However, NRC registration is not

Т

required for a general licensee using a device in NRC jurisdiction for less than 180 days in any calendar year.

The general license in 10 CFR 31.5 only applies within NRC's jurisdiction. General licensees intending to move from one jurisdiction to another should contact the applicable regulatory authority, NRC, or the particular Agreement State before moving to determine the applicable regulations in their jurisdictions. All jurisdictions do not have a comparable general license, and specific provisions of the general license may vary among jurisdictions.

## 10. I am an Agreement State general licensee. Does NRC allow me to use my GL device at temporary job sites within NRC jurisdiction?

Yes. For portable devices, such as devices used for demonstration purposes, which may be transported from an Agreement State to NRC jurisdiction, use of the device in NRC jurisdiction is permitted as long as the general licensee follows the requirements of 10 CFR 31.5.

## 11. Would an Agreement State allow me to use my GL device at temporary job sites within that Agreement State's jurisdiction?

For portable devices that may be transported from one Agreement State to another, or from NRC jurisdiction to an Agreement State, use of the device comes under the regulations of the Agreement State where the device is being used. Be sure to know the requirements in the area where you are using the device by contacting the particular Agreement State. Some Agreement States currently require that the device be registered or specifically licensed before it can be used in that State.

#### 12. How can I get rid of a GL device?

GL devices can only be transferred (for disposal or to obtain a replacement device) to: (1) a person holding a specific license under 10 CFR Parts 30 and 32 or equivalent Agreement State regulations, such as *the device manufacturer; or* (2) a person holding a specific license that authorizes waste collection, such as a *waste broker*.

In the case of a change of ownership where a GL device remains in use at a particular location, the new owner will be the new general licensee. The seller must provide copies of 10 CFR 30.51, 31.2, 31.5, 20.2201, and 20.2202, and any safety documents identified in the device label to the new general licensee.

#### 13. Can I keep a device that I am not using?

GL devices not in use can only be stored for two years. After two years, the device must be properly transferred. During this period of non-use, the shutter must be locked in the closed position. Devices kept in standby for future use are excluded from the two-year time limit if the general licensee performs a quarterly physical inventory of the device while it is in standby.

#### 14. Who can answer additional questions?

Call the device manufacturer, who should be able to assist you. If the manufacturer is no longer in business, or you cannot contact the manufacturer, call the appropriate NRC

#### APPENDIX K

Regional Office or Agreement State for assistance. Phone numbers for the NRC Regional Offices are listed below.

Note that states where NRC has jurisdiction are called non-Agreement States. States where NRC has given the state the authority to regulate use of radioactive material are called Agreement States.



#### **Locations of NRC Offices and Agreement States**

#### Figure K.4 U.S. Map.

#### 15. What other requirements apply?

Persons who possess devices listed in 10 CFR 31.5 are exempt from the requirements of Parts 19, 20, and 21, with the exception of the provisions in 10 CFR 20.2201 and 20.2202. They are subject to the following sections of 10 CFR Part 30: 30.1 through 30.10, 30.14(d), 30.34 (a) to (e), 30.41, 30.50 to 30.53, and 30.61 to 30.63.

## 16. My company has a specific license for use of radioactive material and also has generally licensed devices. Do I have to include these devices on my inventory of radioactive materials?

No, you do not have to include GL devices on your inventory that is required by your specific license. However, many companies have chosen to keep track of their devices through periodic inventory along with their specifically licensed material.

## Appendix L

# Guidance on Self-Luminous Exits (Q&As)

#### 1. What is a self-luminous exit sign?

A self-luminous exit sign is a non-electrical product that uses radioactive tritium gas to produce light. Specifically, the signs contain light sources that consist of glass tubes, internally coated with phosphor, and filled with tritium gas. Tritium (H-3) is an isotope of hydrogen that emits low-energy beta radiation in the form of electrons. These electrons excite the phosphor, causing the glass tubes to continuously emit light.

A self-luminous sign is a generally licensed (GL) device because it contains radioactive material.



092000

**Figure L.1 Self-Luminous Exit Sign.** Certain self-luminous, tritium exit signs can be possessed under 10 CFR 31.5 (typical devices initially contain 25 curies of tritium per sign).

#### 2. Do I need to obtain or apply for a license to use a self-luminous exit sign?

No. Self-luminous exit signs are generally licensed by NRC. Any company, institution, or individual conducting business can use self-luminous exit signs without a specific license from NRC. The companies, institutions, or individuals do not have to apply for a license; they are automatically considered "general licensees" of NRC and must follow the NRC requirements for use of the signs. NRC maintains a database of owners and the locations of the self-luminous exit signs.

The distributors of self-luminous exit signs are, however, specifically licensed by NRC. They provide information to NRC to maintain the database of self-luminous exit signs owners.

#### 3. What is a 10 CFR 31.5 "general licensee"?

Any company, institution, or person conducting business who uses, stores, or possesses a self-luminous exit sign acquired in an authorized manner is a general licensee.

#### 4. What are the obligations of a general licensee?

As a general licensee using a self-luminous exit sign, you must appoint an individual responsible for fulfilling the regulatory requirements listed in 10 CFR 31.5. In general, these requirements are:

- You cannot remove the labeling or radioactive symbol on the sign.
- You cannot abandon a self-luminous exit sign.

APPENDIX L

- You must properly dispose of a self-luminous exit sign by transferring it to a manufacturer or radioactive waste broker specifically licensed by NRC or an Agreement State.
- Any lost, stolen or broken sign(s) must be reported to NRC.
- You *cannot* give away or sell the self-luminous exit sign to another individual, company, or institution unless the device is to remain in use at a particular location; for example in a transfer of ownership of a building. In this case, you are obligated to pass on a copy of the regulatory requirements to the new general licensee *and* you must notify NRC.
- You must inform NRC of a company name change or change of address.
- You are required to make certain reports. These reports are summarized in the following table.

Type of Report	Contents of Report	Frequency	Send to
Disposal or transfer report	Identification of device by manufacturer's (or initial transferor's) name, model number, and serial number; name, address, and license number of recipient; and date of transfer.	Within 30 days of transfer, or disposal.	Director of NMSS, Attn: GLTS, U.S. NRC, Washington, DC 20555-0001
Transfer report for change of ownership (where device remains in use at a particular location)	Manufacturer's (or initial transferor's) name, model number, and serial number; name and address of the transferee; and name, title, and phone number of the responsible individual of the transferee.	Within 30 days of transfer.	Director of NMSS, Attn: GLTS, U.S. NRC, Washington, DC 20555-0001
Report if device becomes damaged	Brief description of the event and remedial actions taken.	Within 30 days of occurrence.	Director of NMSS, Attn: GLTS, U.S. NRC, Washington, DC 20555-0001
Report name change of licensee	New name of general licensee.	Within 30 days of occurrence.	Director of NMSS, Attn: GLTS, U.S. NRC, Washington, DC 20555-0001
Report change of address	New mailing address where device is used or stored.	Within 30 days after moving the device.	Director of NMSS, Attn: GLTS, U.S. NRC, Washington, DC 20555-0001

#### **Reporting Requirements**

Т

Type of Report	Contents of Report	Frequency	Send to
Report of incidents or lost or stolen devices	<ul> <li>Contents of Report</li> <li>The following information: <ul> <li>(A) Description of the radioactive material;</li> <li>(B) Description of the circumstances under which the loss or theft occurred;</li> <li>(C) Disposition of the radioactive material;</li> <li>(D) Radiation exposure to individuals;</li> <li>(E) Actions taken to recover the material;</li> <li>(F) Actions taken to prevent</li> </ul></li></ul>	Telephone report within 30 days of occurrence; written report within 30 days of the telephone report.	Administrator of the appropriate NRC Regional Office
	<ul><li>the material;</li><li>(F) Actions taken to prevent recurrence.</li></ul>		

#### 5. How do I identify a self-luminous exit sign?

All Self-luminous Exit signs are required to have a permanent label affixed to the sign that identifies it as containing radioactive material. The label will contain the words "Caution – Radioactive Material" and may also include the radiation symbol.



In addition, the label will include the name of the manufacturer (or initial transferor), the product model number, the serial number, and the quantity of tritium contained.

#### 6. How can I tell if it is working?

Because self-luminous exit signs will not appear to be lit in ambient light conditions, they must be viewed in darkness to evaluate their performance. When viewed in the dark, all letters should be visible. If the letters are clearly legible and uniformly lit, the sign is functioning properly.

If the luminance appears to be uniformly low, check the UL label to determine the expiration date of the sign. If the sign has passed its expiration date, it no longer meets the

#### APPENDIX L

luminance requirements of the applicable fire or building code. Contact the manufacturer for replacement and disposal information.

If any letter(s) or part(s) of letters are not lit when viewed in the dark, the sign is not functioning properly. This may mean that the sign has been damaged and that one or more of the internal light sources has been damaged. In this instance, contact the manufacturer immediately for return instructions.

#### 7. What should I do if a sign is broken or damaged?

Most signs that are broken do not cause a release of tritium. If a sign is excessively damaged, the tritium gas could be released and would dilute rapidly in the air. Keep in mind that for this to occur, the outer frame and inner protective housing would also have to be damaged. The area should be evacuated and ventilated to avoid unnecessary exposure to the radioactive material. The material does not pose any immediate health hazard to workers at the location or members of the public. However, the sign would be expected to have relatively high levels of tritium on it and should be properly handled. Do not move the sign into other areas to avoid spreading contamination prior to disposal.

Contact the manufacturer for directions on proper handling of the damaged sign, as well as proper shipping and disposal. If you do not know who the manufacturer is, carefully look on the sign itself for the name and phone number of the manufacturer. If you still cannot identify a manufacturer, call NRC to request assistance in dealing with the broken sign.

Typically, manufacturers will advise a procedure such as the following: Wear rubber gloves and eye protection since you may come in contact with broken glass and/or radioactive material. Wipe the entire surface of the sign with a paper towel. Wrap the sign, paper towel, and gloves in a plastic bag (i.e., garbage bag) and tape it closed. Wash your hands with soap and water. Wrap the sign a second time in a plastic bag (i.e., garbage bag) and tape it closed. Wash your hands with soap and water. Place each sign in a sturdy carton. Use filler materials to assure a tight, rattle-free fit. Tape the seal flaps and seams. Label the carton: "RADIOACTIVE". Place this package into a second sturdy cardboard carton and include a piece of paper with the following words: "This package conforms to the conditions and limitations specified in 49 CFR 173.424 for radioactive material, excepted package-instruments or articles, UN2910." Use filler materials to assure a tight fit. Tape the seal flaps and seams. DO NOT label this outer carton "RADIOACTIVE." Before shipping, contact the manufacturer whose name appeared on the sign label. Make a report to NRC (see the table of reporting requirements in Question 4).

#### 8. Can broken signs contaminate buildings and require cleanup?

Yes. If the sign is severely damaged and mishandled, the contamination can be spread throughout a room, or building - wherever the sign traveled. If contamination occurs, appropriate cleanup is required by a person specifically authorized by NRC for this activity. Keep in mind that for this to occur, the outer frame and inner protective housing would have to be damaged and the sign mishandled. To avoid spreading contamination, follow the instructions in the previous question.

#### 9. Do I need a license to sell self-luminous exit signs?

It depends on whether or not the exit signs are stocked for sale. If you intend to maintain an inventory of exit signs for sale to customers, you must obtain a specific NRC license for distribution. You do not need a license if you sell signs to individual customers and obtain the signs through a specifically licensed distributor. You must provide this distributor with the customer's name, address, and the name of the responsible individual (see Question 4) prior to shipment.

#### 10. Can I throw a self-luminous exit sign in the trash?

No. It is unlawful to abandon or dispose of self-luminous exit signs except by transfer to a manufacturer or other person specifically licensed by NRC. Most manufacturers will accept the return of any self-luminous exit signs.

It is important that these signs be properly disposed of and that they not be abandoned because they can end up damaged. They can also end up in the hands of individuals who do not know that they are radioactive and may inadvertently contaminate themselves.

#### 11. Can I give away or sell a self-luminous exit sign to someone else?

No, you cannot transfer the sign to someone else. The only exception is when the sign remains in use at a particular location, such as when a building is sold. In the specific case of a change of ownership with a GL device remaining in use at a particular location, the new owner will become the new general licensee. You are then obligated to provide a copy of the regulatory requirements to the new general licensee, and you must notify NRC.

#### 12. My company has a specific license for use of radioactive material and also has selfluminous exit signs. Do I have to include the signs in my inventory of radioactive materials?

No, you do not have to include these signs in the inventory that is required by your specific license. However, many companies have chosen to keep track of their signs through periodic inventory, along with their specifically licensed material.

#### 13. To whom can I go with additional questions?

Call the product manufacturer, who should be able to assist you. You may also call the appropriate NRC Regional Office or Agreement State for assistance. The phone numbers for the NRC Regional Offices are listed below.

APPENDIX L



#### Locations of NRC Offices and Agreement States

#### 14. What other requirements apply?

Persons who possess devices listed in 10 CFR 31.5 are exempt from the requirements of Parts 19, 20, and 21, with the exception of the provisions in 10 CFR 20.2201 and 20.2202. They are subject to the following sections of 10 CFR Part 30: 30.1 through 30.10, 30.14(d), 30.34 (a) to (e), 30.41, 30.50 to 30.53, and 30.61 to 30.63.

Appendix M

NRC Form 664 – General License Registration Form for Certain Devices Listed in 10 CFR 31.5



#### UNITED STATES NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION WASHINGTON, D.C. 20555-0001

#### TO: All Organizations Who Have Devices Containing Radioactive Material

SUBJECT: REGISTRATION OF GENERALLY LICENSED DEVICES

The U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission (NRC) is starting a registration program for certain devices possessed under the general license issued in section 31.5 of Title 10 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (10 CFR). Devices subject to registration include those containing at least one of the following radionuclides in an amount equal to or greater than the indicated quantity at the time of manufacture:

- 3.7 megabecquerel (0.1 millicurie) of strontium-90
- 37 megabecquerel (1 millicurie) of cobalt-60
- 37 megabecquerel (1 millicurie) of any transuranic element, (i.e., atomic number greater than uranium (92), including americium-241, curium-244, plutonium-238, plutonium-239, and californium-252]
- 370 megabecquerel (10 millicurie) of cesium-137

You are receiving this notice because NRC records indicate that you have one or more such devices. See the attached instructions for more details. Information about this program was sent to you and published in the *Federal Register* on July 26 and August 4, 1999 (64 FR 40295 and 64 FR 42269).

Please note that under 10 CFR 31.5(c)(11), the attached General Licensee Registration Form must be completed, signed, and returned to the NRC within 45 days from the date of this letter. Please mail the completed form using the enclosed return envelope to:

DIRECTOR OF NUCLEAR MATERIAL SAFETY AND SAFEGUARDS ATTN: GLTS U S NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION WASHINGTON DC 20555-0001

No fee is required for registration at this time. You will be notified if fees are required in the future.

Questions may be directed to the address above, or by telephone to 301-415-7138.

Attachment: NRC Form 664, "General Licensee Registration"

#### INSTRUCTIONS FOR COMPLETING NRC FORM 664, "GENERAL LICENSEE REGISTRATION"

Complete all six sections included in this registration form. If any of the information is incorrect or missing, provide the corrections in the applicable boxes. If you have more devices than the form allows you to report, make photocopies of the form as necessary. Use black ink and print using CAPITAL LETTERS. Start information in the first box provided. If the information contains a number which contains a dash (-) or a decimal point (.), include the dash or decimal point as an individual character.

Verify information about the devices by reviewing the label on the <u>outside</u> of the device. For safety reasons, DO NOT TRY TO TAKE APART any device to verify this information. If you are uncertain how to identify the labeling of the device, contact the manufacturer or an authorized service agent of the device for this information. Also contact the manufacturer for any additional information about NRC requirements. You may also review 10 CFR 31.5 and other applicable regulations on the NRC web site at www.nrc.gov/NRC/CFR/index.html.

Section 1 - General Licensee Information. Provide the requested information about you, the general licensee. Provide the street address for the use or storage location of the device(s). Do not specify a Post Office Box as the physical location. Ensure that the mailing address is associated with the physical location where the devices are used and/or stored. For portable devices, this would be the mailing address for the primary place of storage. Do not specify a Post Office Box unless this is the only available mailing address.

Provide the name, title, and telephone number of the person who is the responsible individual for the device. If the responsible individual is not an employee of the general licensee, provide the name of the individual's employer.

Do not write in the box marked For NRC Use Only.

Section 2 - Devices Subject to Registration. This section contains a list of each device subject to registration which NRC records indicate you have. If you are not in possession of a device on this list, blacken the "not in possession of device" circle, and provide the information contained in Section 4. Note that each device is assigned a unique six-digit number called the NRC Device Code.

Devices subject to registration include those containing at least one of the following radionuclides, in an amount equal to or greater than the indicated quantity at the time of manufacture:

- 3.7 megabecquerel (0.1 millicurie) of strontium-90
- 37 megabecquerel (1 millicurie) of cobalt-60
- 37 megabecquerel (1 millcurie) of any transuranic element, [i.e., atomic number greater than uranium (92), including americium-241, curium-244, plutonium-238, plutonium-239, and californium-252)
- 370 megabecquerel (10 millicune) of cesium-137

Section 3 - Additional Devices. If you have any generally licensed devices that meet the conditions of registration listed above, that are not listed in Section 2, provide information about the additional device(s) in this section. Also show how you acquired each additional device by blackening the proper circle.

The codes for isotopes are:

The codes for units are:

Section 4 - Not in Possession of Device. Use this section to report any devices that are preprinted in Sections 2 or 6, but which you no longer have. Enter the six-digit NRC Device Code, as listed in Section 2 or 6. Blacken the circle (choose only one) that best describes the disposition of the device. If the device was returned to the Manufacturer/Initial Transferor, provide only the license number (If finown) and date the device was transferred; otherwise, provide all applicable information in the appropriate boxes. If the device was disposed of by, or transferred to, a specific licensee, provide all information indicated on the form for the specific licensee, except for the contact/responsible individual (required only when the device is transferred to another general licensee).

Section 5 - Certification and Signature. The responsible individual must sign and date Section 5.

Section 6 - Devices Not Subject to Registration. This list contains information on devices which NRC records indicate you have, but that are not subject to registration. If you no longer have one or more of the listed devices, you are required to make a transfer report to NRC in accordance with 10 CFR 31.5(c)(8)-or (9), as applicable. You may use Section 6 for this purpose. Please note: This section does not list any static eliminators containing polonium 210 (Po-210), or luminous exit signs containing tritium (H-3). These devices are not subject to registration, and are not included in this section in an effort to reduce the length of this form.

1





NRC FORM 864 (MM-YYYY) 10 CFR 31.5

U.S. NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION

#### **GENERAL LICENSEE REGISTRATION**

A COMPANY AND A	-	

EXPIRES: MINDOWWY

Estimated burden per response to comply with this mandatory collection request: 20 minutes. NRC will use this information to track general acenses and ther devices to ensure a higher level of device accountability. Send comments regarding burden estimate to the Records Management Branch (T-6 E6), U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission, Washington, DC 20555-0001, or by internet e-mail to best@minute.com/estimation collection does not intermation and Regulatory Afters, NECB-10202, (3155-0000), Office of Management and Budget Washington, DC 29539. If a means used to impose an intermation collection does not depley a currently valid OMB control number, the NRC may not conduct or sponsor, and a person is not required to respond to, the information collection

Complete all six sections of this registration form. If any of the preprinted information is incorrect, provide the changes in the applicable boxes. USE CAPITAL LETTERS.

General Lice	150
Registration	Number

SECTION 1 - GENERAL LICENSEE INFORMATION

GL-3683-01

Enter the company name and street address for the physical location of use for the device. Do not use P. O. Boxes.

Company Name: CLINC

	abau	IY FUE	<b>me</b> .	G	. IPPC											· .			_
Dep	minac	ent:																-	
Add	iress	Line	1:	A	IYPL	ACE							_						
Add	ress	Line	2:																
City				AN	nto	WN					•								
										_									
Stat	e: X	x					Zip	Code	e XX	xxx	-xx	CX		Γ		] -			







- í

#### SECTION 1 - GENERAL LICENSEE INFORMATION (Continued)

En	ter th	e na	me o	f the	indi	ividu	al rec	spon	sible	for	this	devic	:0.										
	t Nar	ne:	DOE																				
L																							
Fire	it Nar	ne:	JOH	N					-				_	Mid	die in	itial:	z						
							Γ					Γ	]		]								
Tel	epho	ne :	301-5	55-1	234									Exte	ensio	n	111						
	Γ		-				] - [					]							1				
Title	,	SAFI	Ety i	MAN	AGE	R				•													
Γ										Γ										Γ	Τ	Τ	٦
Ent For Dep	er the port	e ma able ent	iling devic SAF	addi ces, ETY	ress prov	of th ide t	e loc he m	ation	n of i g ad	use d dres	of yo s of (	ur de the p	wice rima	ry pk	ace o	of sto	vrago	).					-
																				Τ	Τ	Т	7
Add	ress	Line	1:	AN	YPL	ACE											بيور بيونية ال						
																				Γ	Τ	Τ	7
Add	ress	Line	2									•											-
																					Τ	Τ	]
City				AN	YTO	WN						a											
																						Τ	]
Stat	e: X)	< [				·	Zip	Cod	e: X	xxx	(-XX	xx						•				Ţ	]
							SE	ĊTIO	N 2	- DE'	VICE	S SL	IBJE	стт	'O RI	EGIS	TRA	TIOI	ł				
Our NR(	reco : Dev	rds i vice (	ndic: Code	ate ti 27	hat y 1372	ou h 2	ave t	hese	dev	ices	. Pie	-226	upda	ite th	e inf	omi	<b>itio</b> n	) <b>as</b> (	nece	<b>1558</b>	ry.		
Man	ufact	urer f	lame	: G	il M/	- NNUF	ACT	URE	R, IN	C.													
			Τ																	Γ	Τ	1	٦
Man	ufact	urer L	.icens	se Nu	umbe	n: 99	99-9	9GL	(if kr		  }		Dev	ice Si	erial	Num	ber:	1234	;	•	<b>.</b>		
		T	Т																	Γ		Т	٦
Dev	ce M	odeli	Numi	ber:	99G	Ř	1	4						L					<b>.</b>	<u> </u>	-	_	
		Τ	Τ																		Τ	Τ	ך
Isote	pe: )		<u>с</u>				Rece	int D	ate:	MM/		<u> </u>	(if la		<b>/</b> )			L	•		-		
		T	Τ			ſ	Τ	Ť	Γ	Τ	ור						$\cap$	Net	0 1000		of de	VICE	
						L	M	J N		DD		L]	YY	<b>YY</b>				(Alec	comp	mene Sa	10200n -	•}	





#### SECTION 2 - DEVICES SUBJECT TO REGISTRATION (Continued)

#### **NRC Device Code**

Man	wfac	turer	Nam	e:							_			-	_								<b>—</b> —––
Man	wfac	turer	Licer	150 N	umbi	er: (il	f knov	MTI)						Dev	rice S	ieriał	Num	ber:					
								Γ	Γ			Γ	1										
Devi	ice h	lode	Nun	nber:	8				•														
								Γ		T	Γ	Γ	Ι	Ţ									Π
ientr		1 XXX	<u>.</u> 	<b>I</b>			Rec		L			~~~			) )							<b>-</b>	لحمط
							Ē		ĪΓ	T	Ĩ		T.	Γ	Í		$\cap$	Not	n pose	noisea	of devi		
ليسيا	L		L				N	im.	J L	DD			Υ Υ	m		•	0	(/1000	Camp		-		
											·												
NRC	: De	vice	Cod																				
							<u> </u>	<u> </u>	T	<b>T</b>	T	T	<u>г</u>										
		<b></b>					L	L	L	L		I	1		ing P		است. المراجعة			t			لسسا
Man	ulac	Uner	Licer		umbe	er: (m	Know	<u>/n)</u>	<u> </u>	T			1					Der.		<b></b>		<b></b>	
			<u> </u>				L	I		1	I	I	J							<b></b>		L	
Devi	ice N	lodel	Num	iber:				<u> </u>	<b>—</b>	<b>1</b>	T	<u> </u>	<b>—</b>						-	<b></b>	r	r –	<b>T1</b>
								L	<u> </u>											L.,			
Isoto	pe:	XXX	xx				Rec	eipt (	Dete:	MM		$\underline{m}$	(if lo	nown	)								
									IL			L					Ο	Not i (Also	in pose I compi	eseion lete Se	of devi ction 4		
	-						M	M		DD			Ŷ	~~									
NRC	: De	vice	Cod	8																			
Man	ufaci	urer	Nam	e:																			
								Γ	Γ			Γ											$\square$
Man	utaci	uner	Licer	ise N	umbe	ы. Эг.			<b>.</b>	<u>.</u>		<u>×</u>		Dev	ice S	erial	Num	ber:				******	لسندية
									Γ	T	Γ	Γ	]									Γ	Π
Devi	ice M	است. امارون	Num	i der			<u>.</u>	1	L		<b>-</b>	<b>.</b>	1	<b>L</b>		نى بىر يا سى		·	B.,	<u>R</u>		<b>-</b>	لــــ
										1	<b>r</b>	Ť	Γ	T							Γ	Γ	
		~~~					<b></b>		ـــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــ		L	<u> </u>	, <b>1</b>	1	<b>I</b>		L		L	<b></b>	L	<b>_</b>	ليبينا
	ADG:				ł	1		ज्यून्द्र ध 1				r	א ה) 1	T	" T	1	$\sim$	Nol	in poes	-	of dev	108	
				L	l				١L								U	(Alm	e comp	iete Se	ction 4	)	
							N	M		DD			Ŷ	~~~						_			





#### SECTION 3 - ADDITIONAL DEVICES SUBJECT TO REGISTRATION

Provide information about other devices you have that are subject to registration.

M	anufa	cture	r/initia	<b>el Tra</b>	nslei	or Na	me																				
								1	Г	Т	T	Γ	Τ	Γ	Γ	T	Γ	Τ	Γ	Т	T	T		Γ	7		
M	anufa	cture	r/Initia	ni Tra	nsfer	or Lie	cense	Nun	nber (	(if knc	wn)	<b>.</b>		Den	rice S	Seriel	Nur	iber	<u> </u>		_			<b>-</b>	J		
		Γ	Γ	Г	Г	Γ	Γ	Γ	Γ	T	Г	Γ	٦	Γ		Γ	Γ	Γ	Г	Т	Т	Т			Τ	Т	ר
De	wice	Mode	H Nur	nber			-				<b>.</b>	4		<b>L</b>	<b>.</b>	4	L	<u> </u>	<b>_</b>	<b>.</b>		-		<b>.</b>	<u> </u>	1	_
			T	Γ	Γ		T		Ι	Γ			Τ	Γ	Γ	Γ			Γ	Г	Т	T	-	Γ	Γ	Т	٦
Isc	tope			Γ	Ι	Γ	]	Act	ivity								]	Unit		Γ	Ī	]	Sic	ee c risc	irecti tope	ions and	<b>]</b>
Ho (e.) ma lice	w aci g., fro inufac insee	quirec om a c clurer, clurer, clurer,	l and listrit , othe Fr sou	d <b>ate</b> Nutor/ Ir Irce):	?	000	) Ma ) Oth ) Oth	nufac Ier Gi Ier Sc	iturer Bnera Durce	/Initia N Lice	i Trar INSE	<b>isle</b> r	or list	de be Ac i)	ove Dati guisit f knoi	e of ion wn)	N	IM		DC	ļ	E				Γ	]
				_	_	_		_		_																	
Ma	nufac	turen	Initia	Trar	sferc	y Na	me																-				
Ma	nufac	turen	Initia	Trar	sferc	or Na	me														T	Т	-				
Ma Ma	nufac		Initia Initia	Tran		or Na	me Ense	Num	ber (i	f knov	MU)			Dev	ice S	erial	Num	ber			Γ	Ι			]		
Ma Ma	nufac	turer/	'Initia Initia	Tran		or Na	ense	Num	ber (i	f knov	MN)			Dev	ice S	erial	Num	ber			I T	T			]		7
Ma Ma Dev	nufac nufac	turer/	Initia Initial Num	Tran		or Na	ense	Nym	ber (i	f knov	MN)		]	Dev	ice S	erial	Num	ber				I			]	E	]
Ma Ma Dev	nufac nufac vice N	turer/	Initia Initia Num	Tran		or Na	ense	Num	ber (i	f knov	wn)		]	Dev	ice S	erial	Num	ber							]	 	 ] ]
Ma Ma Den Isot	nufac nufac rice A		Initia Initia Num	Tran				Num Activ	ber (i		(mn)			Dev	ice S		Num	ber					S. for	De di riso rit co	]	ons	]

NUREG - 1556, Vol. 16

1

1




### SECTION 4 - NOT IN POSSESSION OF DEVICE

Provide information about devices which are preprinted in Section 2 or 6 that you no longer have.

							N (1	RC [	Devic Secti	e Co on 2	de or 6)				Ι		Ι	]							
Loca	tion	of ti	ne De	vice	:																				
	Ο	W	eara	bouts	s Unix	nown	)			Ο	Tran	sferr	red to	o anot	her g	ener	al lice	nsee	: <b>(Co</b>	mple	te inf	oma	tion l	belov	V)
	Õ	Ne	ver P	0556	ssed	the [	Devic	e		0	Disp (Cor	nosec noiei	t of/1 Ini al	ransf ormat	erred ion b	i to a elow	Spe )	cific L	.icen:	500					
	0	Re	tume	d to I	vlanu	factu	er						-			-									
	Transfer Date																								
Licen	ise !	lumi	per of	f Rec T	ipieni I	t (if kr 1	nown	)	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	<b>T</b>		ר						ור					1	
					L			L	L			L	J		L	I M	IL				<b>Y</b>	~~		i	
Com	peny	/ Nai	ne:		<b>_</b>	<del></del>		<b></b>	r	<u> </u>	T	<b>_</b>	<b>-</b>	<del></del>		T	r					<b></b>		<u> </u>	
$\Box$								L																L	
Depa	ntm	ent:					_					<u>,</u>			<b></b>	<b>-</b>						<b></b>	<u> </u>	<del>.                                    </del>	<b></b> -7
																		L							
Addr	<b>ess</b>	Line	1																				<del>r –</del>	<del></del>	T1
$\square$																									
Addr	ess	Line	2						_											-			<b>_</b>		
$\square$												Γ													
City	City																								
																								<u> </u>	
0				1		7 in	Cod	• Y Y			Г	Т	T	Т	].	<b>F</b>	T	<u>г</u> -	<b></b>	]					
State				J		210		<b>G-</b> ~^	~	L	<u> </u>	<u>I</u>	<u> </u>		] -	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	L	I	J					
Ente	r th	e na	me o	f the	indi	vidua	al res	spon	sible	for	this/	thes	e de	vice(s	<b>5)</b> .										
Last	Nan	ne:																			<u> </u>		1		
																						<u> </u>			
First	Nar	ne:							-				_	Mid	<b>idie</b> li	nitial:									
		ſ		Τ	Γ	Γ									]										
Tele	Telephone Extension																								
$\square$			] -				] -					]							]						
Title			_												-				<del></del>	<b>.</b>		<del></del>	<b>-</b>		
		[																1							
<u> </u>																									
		- 4																						_	

### APPENDIX M



## 

1 1

#### **SECTION 5 - CERTIFICATION**

I hereby certify that:

- A. All information contained in this registration is true and complete to the best of my knowledge and belief.
- B. A physical inventory of the devices subject to registration has been completed, and information on the devices has been checked against the device labeling.
- C. I am aware of the requirements of the general license, provided in 10 CFR 31.5. (Copies of applicable regulations may be viewed at the NRC web site at www.nrc.gov/NRC/CFR/index.html.)

SIGNATURE - RESPONSIBLE INDIVIDUAL

DATE

WARNING: FALSE STATEMENTS MAY BE SUBJECT TO CIVIL AND/OR CRIMINAL PENALTIES. NRC REGULATIONS REQUIRE THAT SUBMISSIONS TO THE NRC BE COMPLETE AND ACCURATE IN ALL MATERIAL ASPECTS. 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1001 MAKES IT A CRIMINAL OFFENSE TO MAKE A WILLFULLY WRONG STATEMENT OR REPRESENTATION TO ANY DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY OF THE UNITED STATES AS TO ANY MATTER IN ITS JURISDICTION.

NRC Device Code: 123456 Manufacturer Name: GL PRODUC	Manufacturer License Number: TS, INC.	111-11GL
Model Number: 12345	Serial Number: 09876	Transfer Date: MM/DD/YYYY
Isotope: CS137	Activity: 5	Unit: MCI
NRC Device Code:	Manufacturer License Number:	
Manufacturer Name:		
Model Number:	Serial Number:	Transfer Date:
Isotope:	Activity:	Unit:
NRC Device Code:	Manufacturer License Number	
Manufacturer Name:		
Model Number:	Serial Number:	Transfer Date:
Isotope:	Activity:	Unit

## SECTION 6 - DEVICES NOT SUBJECT TO REGISTRATION

**Appendix N** 

NRC Form 374 – Materials License

The following pages show examples of a "G" license.

NRC FORM 374

U.S. NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION

PAGE <u>1</u> OF <u>2</u> PAGES Amendment No. 01

### MATERIALS LICENSE

Pursuant to the Atomic Energy Act of 1954, as amended, the Energy Reorganization Act of 1974 (Public Law 93-438), and Title 10, Code of Federal Regulations, Chapter I, Parts 30, 31, 32, 33, 34, 35, 36, 39, 40, and 70, and in reliance on statements and representations heretofore made by the licensee, a license is hereby issued authorizing the licensee to receive, acquire, possess, and transfer byproduct, source, and special nuclear material designated below; to use such material for the purpose(s) and at the place(s) designated below; to deliver or transfer such material to persons authorized to receive it in accordance with the regulations of the applicable Part(s). This license shall be deemed to contain the conditions specified in Section 183 of the Atomic Energy Act of 1954, as amended, and is subject to all applicable rules, regulations, and orders of the Nuclear Regulatory Commission now or hereafter in effect and to any conditions specified below.

	Licensee		In accordance with application dated					
			January 1, 2000					
1. Industrial Gauging Corporation, Inc			3. License number 37-XXXXX-02G is amended in					
			its entirety to read as follows:					
2. 1	234 Corporation Drive		4. Expiration date January 31, 2010					
Anytown, Pennsylvania 12345			5. Docket No. 030-XXXXX Reference No.					
	·							
6.	Byproduct, source, and/or special nuclear material	7. Chemical and/or p	physical form8.Maximum amount that licensee may possess at any one time under this license					
Α.	As specified in Condition 11	A. As specified in	Condition 11 A. Not applicable					
9.	Authorized use:	• <u>••••</u> • <u>•</u> •• <u>•</u> •••						
Α.	Pursuant to 10 CFR 32.51, the li specified in Condition 11 of this equivalent provisions of the regu	censee is authorize license to persons ç Jations of any Agre	ed to distribute the devices containing sealed source generally licensed pursuant to 10 CFR 31.5, or ement State.					
		CONDIT	IONS					
10.	The licensee may distribute mate Anytown, Pennsylvania.	erial from the licens	ee's facilities located at 1234 Corporation Drive,					

NRC	C FORM 374A	U.S. NUCLEAR REGULATORY	COMMISSION		PAGE2OF2PAGES
				License Number 37-XXXXX-02G	
	MATEF SUPPLE	NALS LICENSE MENTARY SHEET		Docket or Reference Numbe	er
				Amendment No. (	0
11.	Each device distribute following table:	d pursuant to the condit	tions of this	icense shall be in ac	ccordance with the
					Maximum
					Activity Per
					Source
	Device Model Number	Isotone	Sol	rce Model Number	(Millicuries)
	XXABC	Cesium 137			30
	And DC	Cesiulii 197			50
	XYABC	Cobalt 60	ABO	200	500
12			And the second s		
12.	This license does not aut	norize possession or use or	licensed mate		
			<b>ra</b> aad Arithteen		
				8°	
13.	Except as specifically pro	ovided otherwise in this lice	ense, the licen	see shall conduct its pr	ogram in accordance with the
	statements, representation	ns, and procedures contain	ed in the docu	ments, including any er	nclosures, listed below. The
	Nuclear Regulatory Com the licensee's application	mission's regulations shall and correspondence are m	govern unles	the statements, repres	sentations, and procedures in
	the needsee supplication		44	man the regulations.	
	Application dated Januar	y 1, 2000			
		· · · ·			
			94 - A. E. A.		
			For the U.S.	Nuclear Regulatory Co	ommission
			Orig	inal signed by NRC L	icensing Reviewer
Date	e (Insert license issue date)	1	By		
Full	And Cheshie Mile Chile		Nuc	ear Materials Safety P	Branch 3
			nuc	sion of Nuclear Materi	iale Safety
				sion of reuclear wrateri	iais Salety
			Reg		. 10404
			King	ot Prussia, Pennsylva	nia 19406
					· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·

		······································							
NRC FORM 374	U.S. NUCLEAR REGULATO	RY COMMISSION	PAGE <u>1</u> OF <u>2</u> PAGES						
MATERIALS LICENSE									
Pursuant to the Atomic Energy Act of 1954, a of Federal Regulations, Chapter I, Parts 30 heretofore made by the licensee, a license is source, and special nuclear material design deliver or transfer such material to persons license shall be deemed to contain the cond to all applicable rules, regulations, and orde specified below.	as amended, the Energy R , 31, 32, 33, 34, 35, 36, 3 hereby issued authorizing ated below; to use such m authorized to receive it i itions specified in Section ers of the Nuclear Regular	Reorganization Act of 1974 39, 40, and 70, and in relia g the licensee to receive, act naterial for the purpose(s) a in accordance with the reg 183 of the Atomic Energy tory Commission now or h	(Public Law 93-438), and Title 10, Code nce on statements and representations equire, possess, and transfer byproduct, and at the place(s) designated below; to ulations of the applicable Part(s). This Act of 1954, as amended, and is subject hereafter in effect and to any conditions						
Licensee	<u> </u>	In accordance with	application dated						
		December 1, 2000							
1. Any Pharmaceutical Manufacturi	ng Company	3. License number 37-	XXXXX-02G is amended in						
Medical Products Division its entirety to read as follows:									
2. 1234 Main Street		4. Expiration date Dec	cember 31, 2010						
Anytown, Pennsylvania 12345		5. Docket No. 030-XX	XXX						
		Reference No.							
<ol> <li>Byproduct, source, and/or special nuclear material</li> </ol>	7. Chemical and/or	physical form 8.	Maximum amount that licensee may possess at any one time under this license						
A. Hydrogen 3	A. Prepackaged	<i>in vitro</i> kits A.	Not applicable						
B. lodine 125	B. Prepackaged	<i>in vitro</i> kits B.	Not applicable						
9. Authorized use:									
A. and B. Pursuant to 10 CFR 32.71, the licensee is authorized to distribute <i>in vitro</i> kits containing prepackaged units to persons generally licensed pursuant to 10 CFR 31.11, or equivalent provisions of the regulations of the regulations of any Agreement State.									
	CONDI	TIONS	······						
10. The licensee may distribute <i>in</i> Anytown, Pennsylvania.	vitro kits from the lice	ensee's facilities locat	ed at 1234 Main Street,						
11. This license does not authoriz	e possession or use (	of licensed material.							

1

NRC FORM 374A	U.S. NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION		PAGE	2	of	2	PAGES	
		License Number 37-XXXXX-02G						
	MATERIALS LICENSE SUPPLEMENTARY SHEET	Docket or Reference Number 030-XXXXX						
		Amendment No. 01						

- 12. Except as specifically provided otherwise in this license, the licensee shall conduct its program in accordance with the statements, representations, and procedures contained in the documents, including any enclosures, listed below. The Nuclear Regulatory Commission's regulations shall govern unless the statements, representations, and procedures in the licensee's application and correspondence are more restrictive than the regulations.
- A. Application dated December 1, 2000

 $\frac{5}{4}$ 

1

 $\langle f \rangle$ 

Date \_\_\_(Insert license issue date) \_\_\_\_

By

Original signed by NRC Licensing Reviewer

Nuclear Materials Safety Branch 3 Division of Nuclear Materials Safety Region I King of Prussia, Pennsylvania 19406 **Appendix O** 

# **Deemed Timely Letter**

APPENDIX O

[Date]

License No. XX-XXXX-XXG Docket No. 030-XXXXX Mail Control No. XXXXXX

[Licensee's Name] ATTN: [ [Street/P.O. Box] [City, State Zip]

SUBJECT: LICENSE RENEWAL APPLICATION

]

Dear [ ]:

This is to acknowledge receipt of your application for renewal of the materials license identified above. Your application is deemed timely filed and, accordingly, the license will not expire until final action has been taken by this office.

Any correspondence regarding the renewal application should reference your license number and the mail control number specified above.

Sincerely,

[Licensing Assistant]

**Appendix P** 

NRC Form 483 – Registration Certificate In Vitro Testing with Byproduct Material Under General License

### APPENDIX P

The problem of the p	NPC FORM 483		CONNISSION	APPROVED BY OMB: NO. 3150	-0038 EXPIRES: 07/31/2002
Section 31.11 of 10 CFR 31 establishes a general license authorizing hydroidins, clinical laboratores, hospitals, and veterinarians in 1 practice of veterinary medicine to possess certains and quantifies of byproduct material for <i>in Vice</i> drinical relations or veterinal administration of the byproduct material or the radiation therefore to human beings or animas. Possession byproduct material administration of the byproduct material or <i>in Vice</i> drinical laboratory. The solution advantation of the byproduct material or <i>in Vice</i> drinical laboratory. The above named chincal laboratory. Copy of NRC Transmann of the registration of the registration for the regist	REGISTRATIO WITH BY	ON CERTIFICATE <i>in vitr</i> o TE PRODUCT MATERIAL UNDE GENERAL LICENSE	Estimated burden per response to c request 7 minutes. The validated regi of byproduct material burt the registrin material. Send comments regardi Management Branch (Tra F33), U- Washington, DC 20555-0001, or by i the Deat Officer, Office of Informatio (3150-0039), Office of Management an a means used to impose an informatio valid OMB control number, the NRC person is not required to respond to, th	comply with this mandatory collection strates and the system of the bypoduct ing burden estimate to the Records S. Nuclear. Regulatory Commission, internet e-mail to bjs1@nrc.gov, and bo and Regulatory Affairs. NEOB-10202, di Budget, Washington, Dc 20503 # in collecton does not display a currently may not collection.	
	Section 31.11 of 10 CFR practice of veterinary med the internal or external ac byproduct material under veterinary medicine, has number.	31 establishes a general license authoriz dicine to possess certain small quantities o dministration of the byproduct material or 10 CFR 31.11 is not authorized until the filed NRC Form 483 and received from the filed NRC Form 483 and received from the file of the second	ing physicians, f byproduct ma the radiation t physician, clinic e Commission	clinical laboratories, hospitu tterial for <i>in vitro</i> clinical or la herefrom to human beings cal laboratory, hospital, or ve a validated copy of NRC F	als, and veterinarians in the aboratory tests not involving or animals. Possession of eterinarian in the practice of orm 483 with a registration
In the box show, print or tops the name, address (including ZIP)     Order, and the second show or for which this registration form a predictive of which this registration form a field.      In the box show, print or tops the name, address (including ZIP)     (dt this an initial registration, leave this space blank – number to      be assigned by NRC. If this is a change of information form a      predictive of medicine including ZIP      (dt this an initial registration, leave this space blank – number to      be assigned by NRC. If this is a change of information form a      predictive of medicine including ZIP      (dt this an initial registration, leave this space blank – number to      be assigned by NRC. If this is a change of information form a      predictive of medicine including ZIP      (dt this an initial registration, leave this space blank – number to      be assigned by NRC. If this is a change of information form a      predictive of medicine to      weterinary medicine for whom or for which this registration form a      number.)  I hereby certify that:  A All information in this registration certificate is true and complete.  B The registrant has appropriate radiation measuring instruments to carry out the tests for which byproduct material will be used      under the general license of 10 CFR 31.11. The tests will be performed only by personnel competent in the use of the instrumentiand.  C I understand that Commission regulations regulations regulations regulations to CRP and and the registration form      the creates and understand the provisions of Section 31.11 of NRC regulations 10 CFR 31 (reprinted on the reverse side of this frequired to comply with those provisions as to all byproduct material which the      receivers acquires, possesses, uses, or transfers under the general license for which this Registration certificate is filed with the      receivers acquires, possesses, uses, or transfers under the general license for which this Registration Certificate is filed with the	1. NAME AND ADDRESS OF A	PPLICANT (See Instruction 3.8. below)		2. APPLICATION (Check	one box only)
			I hereby apply Section 31.11	for a registration number pu for use of byproduct mater	ursuant to 10 CFR 31, ials for:
TELEPHONE NUMBER (Include Area Code):  The above named hospital  Veterinarian in the practice of veterinary medicine.  A Submit this form in duplicate to: Materials Safety Branch (T-8 F5) Division of Industrial and Medical Nuclear Safety Outs Nuclear Regulatory Commission Washington, DC 20555-0001  (At NRC, a registration number will be assigned and a validated copy of NRC Form 483 will be returned.)  In the box above, print or type the name, address (including ZIP Code), and telephone number of the registration form and telephone number of the registration form and telephone number of the registration form of or which this registration form is field  A dl information for whom or for which this registration form and in the paradices of the complete and complete.  A dl information regulations regulations requires that any change in the information furnished by a registration the instruments and in the handling of the Director of Nuclear Material Safety and Safeguards within 30 days from the effective date of such campe.  I have read and understand that the registrant is required that any change in the information furnished by a registration certificate is required to the Director of Nuclear Material Safety and Safeguards within 30 days from the effective date of such change.  I have read and understand that the registrant is required to comply with those provisions as to all byproduct material will be used under the general license, or transfers under the general license or transfers under the general license or to INCLEAR Material Safety and Safeguards within 30 days from the effective date of such campe.  I have read and understand that the registrant is required to comply with those provisions as to all byproduct material which he registrations Requires possesee, uses, or transfers under the general license for which			Myself, a the pract	duly licensed physician auth ce of medicine.	iorized to disperse drugs in
TELEPHONE NUMBER (include Area Code):               The above named hospital.           INSRUCTIONS                 Veterinarian in the practice of veterinary medicine.          A. Submit this form in duplicate to:               Materials Safety Branch (T-8 F5)               Registration NUMBER:          Division of Industrial and Medical Nuclear Safety             Office of Nuclear Material Safety and Safey and Saf			The abov	e-named clinical laboratory.	
Veterinarian in the practice of veterinary medicine.     NSRUCTIONS     Submit this form in duplicate to:     Materials Safety Branch (T-8 F5)     Division of Industrial and Medical Nuclear Safety     Office of Nuclear Material Safety and Safeguards     U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission     Washington, DC 2055-0001     (At NRC, a registration number will be assigned and a validated     copy of NRC Form 483 will be returned.)     In the box above, print or type the name, address (including ZIP     Code), and telephone number of the registrant physician,     cinical laboratory, hospital, or veterinarian in the practice of     veterinary medicine for whom or for which this registration form     is field     field     field     field     field         Lerepstrant from address tailet above, we complete address         S. CERTIFICATION     li hereby certify that:         A All information in this registration regulations require that any change in the information furnished by a registrant on this registration         and in the handling of the byproduct materials.     C I understand that Commissions require that any change in the information furnished by a registrant on this registration         certificate is true and complete.     D. I have read and understand that the registrant is required to comply with those provious so to all byproduct material will be used         change.     D. I have read and understand that the registrant is required to comply with these provisions of 0 days from the effective date of such         change.     D. I have read and understand that the registrant is required to comply with these provisions of 0 certificate is field with the         US. Nuclear Regulatory Commission     PMITED OR TYPED MWA AND TITLE OF APPLICANT     Such and the provisions of Section 31.11 of NRC regulations Certificate is field with the         US. Nuclear Regulatory Commission     PMITED OR TYPED MWA AND TITLE OF APPLICANT     Such and thaterest that appropriate that services to the general license for w	TELEPHONE NUMBER (Includ	e Ares Code):	e named hospital.		
INSRUCTIONS A Submit the form in duplicate to: Materials Safety Branch (T-8 F5) Devision of Industrial and Medical Nuclear Safety Office of Nuclear Regulatory Commission Washington, DC 20355-0001 (At NRC, a registration number will be assigned and a validated Copy of NRC Form 483 will be returned.) In the box above, print or type the name, address (including ZIP Code), and telephone number of the registrant physician, chincal laboratory, hospital, or veterinarian in the practice of veterinary medicine for whom or for which this registration form is field I hereby certify that: A All information in this registration certificate is true and complete. B The registrant has appropriate radiation measuring instruments to carry out the tests for which byproduct material will be used under the general license of 10 CFR 31.11. The tests will be performed only by personnel competent in the use of the instruments and in the banding of the byproduct materials. C. I understand that Commission regulations require that any change in the information furnished by a registration of the verses saide of succertificate be reported to the Director of Nuclear Medicates saide saide solutions regulations require that any change in the information furnished by a registration certificate be reported to the Director of Nuclear Material Safety and Safeguards within 30 days from the effective date of succertificate be reported to the Director of Nuclear Material Safety and Safeguards within 30 days from the effective date of succertificate be reported to the Director of Nuclear Material Safety and Safeguards with this Registration Certificate is filed with the U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission. PRWTED OR TYPED NAME AND TITLE OF APPLICANT WARNING: FALSE STATEMENTS IN THIS CERTIFICATE MAY BE SUBJECT TO CIVIL AND/OR CRIMINAL PENALTIES. IN REGULATIONS REQUIRE THAT SUBMISSIONS TO THE NRC BE COMPLETE AND ACCURATE IN ALL MATERUAL RESPECT IS U.S.C. 1001 MAKES IT A CRIMINAL OFFENSE TO ANY DEPRATIES NOTHER WITHIN ITS. JUPSINGTION			🗌 Veterinar	ian in the practice of veterina	ary medicine.
A Submit this form in duplicate to:     Materials Safety Branch (T-8 F5)     Drwsion of Industrial and Medical Nuclear Safety     Office of Nuclear Regulations Composition     Washington, DC 20555-0001     (At NRC, a registration number will be assigned and a validated     copy of Nuclear Regulatory Commission     Washington, DC 20555-0001     (At NRC, a registration number will be assigned and a validated     copy of Nuclear Regulatory Commission     washington, DC 20555-0001     (At NRC, a registration number will be assigned and a validated     copy of NRC Form 403 will be returned.)     In the box above, print or type the name, address (including ZIP     Code), and telephone number of the registrant physician,     clinical laboratory, hospital, or veterinarian in the practice of     veternary medicine for whom or for which this registration form     is field     fue due <b>6. CERTIFICATION</b> I hereby certify that:     A All information in this registration certificate is true and complete.     B. The registrant has appropriate radiation measuring instruments to carry out the tests for which byproduct material will be used     under the general license of 10 CFR 31.11. The tests will be performed only by personnel competent in the use of the instruments     and in the handling of the byproduct materials.     C. I understand that Commission regulations require that any change in the information furnished by a registration this registration     certificate be reported to the Director of Nuclear Material Safety and Safeguards within 30 days from the effective date of succ     change.     J. I have read and understand the provisions of Section 31.11 of NRC regulations 10 CFR 31 (reprinted on the reverse side of the     form), and I understand that the registrant is required to comply with those provisions as to all byproduct material which he     receives, acquires, possesses, uses, or transfers under the general license for which this Registration Certificate is filed with th     U.S. Nuclear Regu	INSRUCTIONS			4. REGISTRATIO	ON
U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission Washington, DC 20555-0001 (At NRC, a registration number will be assigned and a validated Copy of NRC Form 483 will be returned.) In the box above, print or type the name, address (including ZIP Code), and telephone number of the registrant physician, clinical laboratory, hospital, or veterinarian in the practice of veterinary medicine for whom or for which this registration form is field. (If this an initial registration, leave this space blank – number to be assigned by NRC. If this is a change of information from a previously registered general license, include your registration is field. (If this an initial registration, leave this space blank – number to be assigned by NRC. If this is a change of information from a previously registered general license, include your registration number.)  * plex of use is different from address lated above, give complete address  * C. CERTIFICATION I hereby certify that: A. All information in this registration certificate is true and complete. B. The registrant has appropriate radiation measuring instruments to carry out the tests for which byproduct material will be used under the general license of 10 CFR 31.11. The tests will be performed only by personnel competent in the use of the instruments and in the handling of the byproduct materials. C. I understand that Commission regulations require that any change in the information furnished by a registrant on this registrator certificate be reported to the Director of Nuclear Material Safety and Safeguards within 30 days from the effective date of such change. D. I have read and understand the provisions of Section 31.11 of NRC regulations 10 CFR 31 (reprinted on the reverse side of this form), and I understand the trovisions of Section 31.11 of NRC regulations 10 CFR 31 (reprinted on the reverse side of this form), and I understand the provisions of Section 31.11 of NRC regulations 10 CFR 31 (reprinted on the reverse side of this form), and I understand the provisions of Section 31.11 o	A. Submit this form in du Materials Safety Brand Division of Industrial a Office of Nuclear Material	plicate to: ch (T-8 F5) ind Medical Nuclear Safety erial Safety and Safeguards	W WOLEAR F	EGULT REGIS	STRATION NUMBER:
<ul> <li>(At NRC, a registration number will be assigned and a validated copy of NRC Form 483 will be returned.)</li> <li>In the box above, print or type the name, address (including ZIP Code), and telephone number of the registrant physician, chinical laboratory, hospital, or veterinarian in the practice of veterinary medicine for whom or for which this registration form is filed.</li> <li>If this an initial registration, leave this space blank – number to be assigned by NRC. If this is a change of information from a previously registered general license, include your registration number.)</li> <li>If plead due is different from address lastel above, give complete address</li> <li>I hereby certify that:</li> <li>All information in this registration certificate is true and complete.</li> <li>The registrant has appropriate radiation measuring instruments to carry out the tests for which byproduct material will be used under the general license of 10 CFR 31.11. The tests will be performed only by personnel completent in the use of the instruments and in the handling of the byproduct materials.</li> <li>I understand that Commission regulations require that any change in the information furnished by a registrant on this registration certificate be reported to the Director of Nuclear Material Safety and Safeguards within 30 days from the effective date of such change.</li> <li>I have read and understand the provisions of Section 31.11 of NRC regulations 10 CFR 31 (reprinted on the reverse side of this form), and I understand that the registrant is required to comply with those provisions as to all byproduct material which he receives, acquires, possesses, uses, or transfers under the general license for which this Registration Certificate is filed with the U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission.</li> <li>Regulations Reguire THAT SUBMISSIONS TO THE NCC BE COMPLETE AND ACCURATE IN ALL MATERIAL RESPECT 18 U.S.C. 1001 MAKES IT A CRIMINAL OFFENSE TO MAKE A WILLIFULLY FLASE STATEMENT OR</li></ul>	U.S. Nuclear Regulate Washington, DC 205	ory Commission 55-0001	S GJLINKS		
In the box above, print or type the name, address (including ZIP Code), and telephone number of the registrant physician, chincial iaboratory, hospital, or veterinarian in the practice of veterinary medicine for whom or for which this registration form is filed. Tplace of use is different from address lated above, give complete address <b>6. CERTIFICATION</b> I hereby certify that: A All information in this registration certificate is true and complete. B. The registrant has appropriate radiation measuring instruments to carry out the tests for which byproduct material will be used under the general license of 10 CFR 31.11. The tests will be performed only by personnel competent in the use of the instruments and in the handling of the byproduct materials. C. I understand that Commission regulations require that any change in the information furnished by a registrant on this registration certificate be reported to the Director of Nuclear Material Safety and Safeguards within 30 days from the effective date of such change. D. I have read and understand the provisions of Section 31.11 of NRC regulations 10 CFR 31 (reprinted on the reverse side of this form), and I understand that the registrant is required to comply with those provisions as to all byproduct material which the receives, acquires, possesses, uses, or transfers under the general license for which this Registration Certificate is filed with the U. S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission. PRINTED OR TYPED NAME AND ITILE OF APPLICANT WARNING: FALSE STATEMENTS IN THIS CERTIFICATE MAY BE SUBJECT TO CIVIL AND/OR CRIMINAL PENALTIES. NE REGULATIONS REQUIRE THAT SUBMISSIONS TO THE NRC BE COMPLETE AND ACCURATE IN ALL MATERIAL RESPECT 18 U.S.C. 1001 MAKES IT A CRIMINAL OFFENSE TO MAKE A WILLIFULLY FALSE STATEMENT OR REPRESENTATION TO ANY DEPRANTMENT OR AGENCY OF THE UNITED STATES AS TO ANY MATTER WITHIN ITS. UNITED STATEMENT ON TREPRESENTATION TO ANY DEPRANTMENT OR AGENCY OF THE UNITED STATES AS TO ANY MATTER WITHIN ITS. UNITED STATEMENT ON TREPRESENTAT	(At NRC, a registration copy of NRC Form 48	n number will be assigned and a validated 33 will be returned.)	<sup>*</sup> *•	. ★ <sup>★</sup> `	
	In the box above, prin Code), and telephone clinical laboratory, hos veterinary medicine fo is filed.	t or type the name, address (including ZIP number of the registrant physician, spital, or veterinarian in the practice of r whom or for which this registration form	(If this an in be assigned previously r number.)	itial registration, leave this s d by NRC. If this is a chang egistered general license, ir	pace blank — number to e of information from a nclude your registration
	If place of use is different from addre	ss listed above, give complete address.			
<ul> <li>I hereby certify that:</li> <li>A All information in this registration certificate is true and complete.</li> <li>B. The registrant has appropriate radiation measuring instruments to carry out the tests for which byproduct material will be used under the general license of 10 CFR 31.11. The tests will be performed only by personnel competent in the use of the instruments and in the handling of the byproduct materials.</li> <li>C. I understand that Commission regulations require that any change in the information furnished by a registrant on this registration certificate be reported to the Director of Nuclear Material Safety and Safeguards within 30 days from the effective date of such change.</li> <li>D. I have read and understand the provisions of Section 31.11 of NRC regulations 10 CFR 31 (reprinted on the reverse side of this form); and I understand that the registrant is required to comply with those provisions as to all byproduct material which he receives, acquires, possesses, uses, or transfers under the general license for which this Registration Certificate is filed with the U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission.</li> <li>PRINTED OR TYPED NAME AND TITLE OF APPLICANT</li> <li>WARNING: FALSE STATEMENTS IN THIS CERTIFICATE MAY BE SUBJECT TO CIVIL AND/OR CRIMINAL PENALTIES. NEREGULATIONS REQUIRE THAT SUBMISSIONS TO THE NRC BE COMPLETE AND ACCURATE IN ALL MATERIAL RESPECT 18 U.S.C. 1001 MAKES IT A CRIMINAL OFFENSE TO MAKE A WILLFULLY FALSE STATEMENT OR REPRESENTATION TO ANY DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY OF THE UNITED STATES AS TO ANY MATTER WITHIN ITS. III FIGURED TO NOT THE DIRECT ON MAKE A WILLFULLY FALSE STATEMENT OR REPRESENTATION TO ANY DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY OF THE UNITED STATES AS TO ANY MATTER WITHIN ITS. III FIGURED IN NOT THE ON THE DIRECT ON THE WITHIN ITS. III FIGURED IN NOT THE ON THE DIRECT ON THE WITHIN ITS. III FIGURED IN NOT THE ON THE SUBJECT TO CIVIL AND/OR CRIMINAL OFFENSE TO MAKE A WILLFULLY FALSE STATEMENT OR REPRESENTATION TO ANY DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY OF THE UNIT</li></ul>		6 CERT	FICATION	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
<ul> <li>A. All information in this registration certificate is true and complete.</li> <li>B. The registrant has appropriate radiation measuring instruments to carry out the tests for which byproduct material will be used under the general license of 10 CFR 31.11. The tests will be performed only by personnel competent in the use of the instruments and in the handling of the byproduct materials.</li> <li>C. I understand that Commission regulations require that any change in the information furnished by a registrant on this registration certificate be reported to the Director of Nuclear Material Safety and Safeguards within 30 days from the effective date of such change.</li> <li>D. I have read and understand the provisions of Section 31.11 of NRC regulations 10 CFR 31 (reprinted on the reverse side of this form); and I understand that the registrant is required to comply with those provisions as to all byproduct material which he receives, acquires, possesses, uses, or transfers under the general license for which this Registration Certificate is filed with the U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission.</li> <li>PRINTED OR TYPED NAME AND TITLE OF APPLICANT</li> <li>WARNING: FALSE STATEMENTS IN THIS CERTIFICATE MAY BE SUBJECT TO CIVIL AND/OR CRIMINAL PENALTIES. NEREGULATIONS REQUIRE THAT SUBMISSIONS TO THE NRC BE COMPLETE AND ACCURATE IN ALL MATERIAL RESPECT 18 U.S.C. 1001 MAKES IT A CRIMINAL OFFENSE TO MAKE A WILLTPLILTY FALSE STATEMENT OR REPRESENTATION TA ANY DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY OF THE UNITED STATES AS TO ANY MATTER WITHIN ITS. ILIPISDICTION</li> </ul>	I hereby certify that:	0.0200			
<ul> <li>B. The registrant has appropriate radiation measuring instruments to carry out the tests for which byproduct material will be used under the general license of 10 CFR 31.11. The tests will be performed only by personnel competent in the use of the instruments and in the handling of the byproduct materials.</li> <li>C. I understand that Commission regulations require that any change in the information furnished by a registrant on this registration certificate be reported to the Director of Nuclear Material Safety and Safeguards within 30 days from the effective date of such change.</li> <li>D. I have read and understand the provisions of Section 31.11 of NRC regulations 10 CFR 31 (reprinted on the reverse side of this form); and I understand that the registrant is required to comply with those provisions as to all byproduct material which he receives, acquires, possesses, uses, or transfers under the general license for which this Registration Certificate is filed with the U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission.</li> <li>PRINTED OR TYPED NAME AND TITLE OF APPLICANT</li> <li>WARNING: FALSE STATEMENTS IN THIS CERTIFICATE MAY BE SUBJECT TO CIVIL AND/OR CRIMINAL PENALTIES. NF REGULATIONS REQUIRE THAT SUBMISSIONS TO THE NRC BE COMPLETE AND ACCURATE IN ALL MATERIAL RESPECT 18 U.S.C. 1001 MAKES IT A CRIMINAL OFFENSE TO MAKE A WILLFULLY FALSE STATEMENT OR REPRESENTATION TAMES.</li> </ul>	A. All information in this	s registration certificate is true and complet	<b>e</b> .		
C. I understand that Commission regulations require that any change in the information furnished by a registrant on this registration certificate be reported to the Director of Nuclear Material Safety and Safeguards within 30 days from the effective date of such change.      D. I have read and understand the provisions of Section 31.11 of NRC regulations 10 CFR 31 (reprinted on the reverse side of this form); and I understand that the registrant is required to comply with those provisions as to all byproduct material which he receives, acquires, possesses, uses, or transfers under the general license for which this Registration Certificate is filed with the U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission.      PRINTED OR TYPED NAME AND TITLE OF APPLICANT      WARNING: FALSE STATEMENTS IN THIS CERTIFICATE MAY BE SUBJECT TO CIVIL AND/OR CRIMINAL PENALTIES. NF REGULATIONS REQUIRE THAT SUBMISSIONS TO THE NRC BE COMPLETE AND ACCURATE IN ALL MATERIAL RESPECT 18 U.S.C. 1001 MAKES IT A CRIMINAL OFFENSE TO MAKE A WILLFULLY FALSE STATEMENT OR REPRESENTATION TO ADD CONTINUE.	B. The registrant has a under the general lic and in the handling	appropriate radiation measuring instrume cense of 10 CFR 31.11. The tests will be p of the byproduct materials.	nts to carry ou xerformed only	t the tests for which byproc by personnel competent in t	duct material will be used the use of the instruments
D. I have read and understand the provisions of Section 31.11 of NRC regulations 10 CFR 31 (reprinted on the reverse side of this form); and I understand that the registrant is required to comply with those provisions as to all byproduct material which he receives, acquires, possesses, uses, or transfers under the general license for which this Registration Certificate is filed with the U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission.  PRINTED OR TYPED NAME AND TITLE OF APPLICANT  WARNING: FALSE STATEMENTS IN THIS CERTIFICATE MAY BE SUBJECT TO CIVIL AND/OR CRIMINAL PENALTIES. NF REGULATIONS REQUIRE THAT SUBMISSIONS TO THE NRC BE COMPLETE AND ACCURATE IN ALL MATERIAL RESPECT 18 U.S.C. 1001 MAKES IT A CRIMINAL OFFENSE TO MAKE A WILLFULLY FALSE STATEMENT OR REPRESENTATION TAMES AND THE INTED OF THE UNITED STATES AS TO ANY MATTER WITHIN TS. ILLEISDICTION	C. I understand that C certificate be report change.	ommission regulations require that any ch ted to the Director of Nuclear Material Sai	ange in the inf lety and Safeg	ormation furnished by a reg uards within 30 days from t	istrant on this registration the effective date of such
PRINTED OR TYPED NAME AND TITLE OF APPLICANT WARNING: FALSE STATEMENTS IN THIS CERTIFICATE MAY BE SUBJECT TO CIVIL AND/OR CRIMINAL PENALTIES. NF REGULATIONS REQUIRE THAT SUBMISSIONS TO THE NRC BE COMPLETE AND ACCURATE IN ALL MATERIAL RESPECT 18 U.S.C. 1001 MAKES IT A CRIMINAL OFFENSE TO MAKE A WILLFULLY FALSE STATEMENT OR REPRESENTATION T ANY DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY OF THE UNITED STATES AS TO ANY MATTER WITHIN ITS. IURISDICTION	D. I have read and und form); and I unders receives, acquires, U.S. Nuclear Regula	derstand the provisions of Section 31.11 c stand that the registrant is required to co possesses, uses, or transfers under the g atory Commission.	of NRC regulate comply with the eneral license	ions 10 CFR 31 (reprinted on se provisions as to all bypi for which this Registration (	on the reverse side of this roduct material which he Certificate is filed with the
WARNING: FALSE STATEMENTS IN THIS CERTIFICATE MAY BE SUBJECT TO CIVIL AND/OR CRIMINAL PENALTIES. NF REGULATIONS REQUIRE THAT SUBMISSIONS TO THE NRC BE COMPLETE AND ACCURATE IN ALL MATERIAL RESPECT 18 U.S.C. 1001 MAKES IT A CRIMINAL OFFENSE TO MAKE A WILLFULLY FALSE STATEMENT OR REPRESENTATION T ANY DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY OF THE UNITED STATES AS TO ANY MATTER WITHIN ITS. IN RESOLUTION	PRINTED OR TYPED NAME AN	ND TITLE OF APPLICANT	SIGNATURE		DATE
	WARNING: FALSE STA REGULATIONS REQUIA 18 U.S.C. 1001 MAKES ANY DEPARTMENT OR	ATEMENTS IN THIS CERTIFICATE MA RE THAT SUBMISSIONS TO THE NRC I IT A CRIMINAL OFFENSE TO MAKE AGENCY OF THE UNITED STATES AS	Y BE SUBJEC BE COMPLET A WILLFULLY TO ANY MAT	T TO CIVIL AND/OR CRIN E AND ACCURATE IN ALI FALSE STATEMENT OF TER WITHIN ITS JURISDIO	MINAL PENALTIES. NRC L MATERIAL RESPECTS. R REPRESENTATION TO CTION.

NRC FORM 483 (7-1999)

PRINTED ON RECYCLED PAPER

Appendix Q

## NRC Form 653 – Transfers of Industrial Devices Report

### APPENDIX Q

						Page of		
NRC FORM 653	U.S. NU	CLEAR REGULATORY CO	MISSION	APPROVED	BY ONE: NO. 3150-	0001 EXPIRES: 08/31/20		
(Continue on N	<b>RS OF INDUSTRIA</b>	L DEVICES REPO	Estimated burden per response to comply with this mendatory collective request: 24 minutes. NRC requests quarterly reports to keep apprised device movements. Send comments regarding burden estimate to the Record's Management Branch (T-8 E6), U.S. Nuclear Regulato Commission, Washington, DC 20555-0001, or by internet e-mail bjs1@nrc.gov, and to the Deek Officer, Office of Information as Regulatory Affairs, NEOB-10202, (3150-0001), Office of Manageme and Budget, Washington, DC 20503. If a means used to impose information collection does not display a currently valid OMB cont number, the NRC may not conduct or sponsor, and a person is r					
			1	Tequires to re		ERIOD		
NAME OF VENDOR				FROM	REFORTING	TO		
UCENSE NUMBER								
Fo	r each "person" to whom a	device(s) has been transfer	red during t	he reporting	period, supply th	e following:		
			ERSON (If a	iny)				
NAME OF INTERMEDIATE	PERSON NAME OF R	RESPONSIBLE INDIVIDUAL	TITLE OF R	ESPONSIBLE	NDIVIDUAL	TELEPHONE		
		GENERAL LICENSEE U	SER INFOR	MATION				
NAME OF GENERAL LICEN	ISEE USER		MAILING AD	ORESS AT TH	E LOCATION OF U	SE (No P.O. Boxes, include Zip Co		
DEPARTMENT			1					
NAME OF RESPONSIBLE I	NDIMOUAL	TELEPHONE	-					
TITLE OF RESPONSIBLE I	NDIVIDUAL	<u>l`</u>	-					
		INFORMATION ON DEVIC	E(S) TRAN	SFERRED				
DATE OF TRANSFER	TYPE OF DEVICE		SERIAL	NUMBER	ISOTOPE	ACTIVITY AND UNITS		
			1					
		INTERMEDIATE P	ERSON (If a	nny)				
NAME OF INTERMEDIATE	PERSON NAME OF I	RESPONSIBLE INDIVIDUAL	TITLE OF F	ESPONSIBLE	INDIVIDUAL	TELEPHONE		
		GENERAL LICENSEE U	SER INFOR	MATION				
NAME OF GENERAL LICE	NSEE USER		MAILING AI	DORESS AT TI	HE LOCATION OF U	ISE (No., P.O. Boxes, include Zip )		
DEPARTMENT			-					
NAME OF RESPONSIBLE	INDIVIDUAL	TELEPHONE						
TITLE OF RESPONSIBLE	NDIVIDUAL	I	1					
		INFORMATION ON DEVIC	CE(S) TRAN	SFERRED				
DATE OF TRANSFER	TYPE OF DEVICE		SERIAL	NUMBER	ISOTOPE	ACTIVITY AND UNITS		
					<b> </b>			
NRC FORM 853 (11-2000)						PRINTED ON RECYCLED P		

\_\_\_\_

### APPENDIX Q

NRC FORM 653A (11-2000)			<u> </u>	U.S. NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION
10 CFR 32	TR	ANSFERS OF	NDUSTRIAL D	EVICES REPORT (Continuation)
	For each "	person" to whom a d	wice(s) has been recei	ved during the reporting period, supply the following:
			GENERAL LICENSEE	USER INFORMATION
NAME OF GENERA	L LICENSEE USE	R		MAILING ADDRESS AT THE LOCATION OF USE (No P.O. Bonne, include Zip Code)
DEPARTMENT	<b></b>	/ · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		-
		······································	INFORMATION ON D	EVICE(S) RECEIVED
DATE OF RECEIPT	TYPE OF DEVICE		SERIAL NUMBER	MANUFACTURER OR INITIAL TRANSFEROR (IF NOT REPORTING PARTY)
		*		
	·			
		- <u></u>	GENERAL LICENSEE	USER INFORMATION
NAME OF GENERAL	LICENSEE USEI			MAILING ADDRESS AT THE LOCATION OF USE (No P.O. Bonne, Include Zip Code)
			INFORMATION ON DE	EVICE(S) RECEIVED
DATE OF RECEIPT	TYPE OF DEVICE		SERIAL NUMBER	MANUFACTURER OR INITIAL TRANSFEROR (IF NOT REPORTING PARTY)
	·····			
			GENERAL LICENSEE	USER INFORMATION
NAME OF GENERAL	UCENSEE USER	L		MAILING ADDRESS AT THE LOCATION OF USE (No P.O. Bower, include Zip Code)
DEPARTIENT				
			INFORMATION ON DE	VICE(S) RECEIVED
DATE OF RECEIPT	TYPE OF DEVICE	MODEL NUMBER	SERIAL NUMBER	MANUFACTURER OR INITIAL TRANSFEROR (IF NOT REPORTING PARTY)
NAME OF GENERAL	LICENSEE USER			MAULING ADDRESS AT THE LOCATION OF LISE (No. P. O. Bower Include 7th Code)
DEPARTMENT			•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••	
			INFORMATION ON DE	VICE(S) RECEIVED
DATE OF RECEIPT	TYPE OF DEVICE		SERIAL NUMBER	MANUFACTURER OR INITIAL TRANSFEROR (IF NOT REPORTING PARTY)
:		+		

I I

U.S. NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION

NRC FORM 6538 (11-2000)

40.088.12	•		
IV GPR 32	10	CFR	32

## TRANSFERS OF INDUSTRIAL DEVICES REPORT (Continuation)

### For each device for which required label information has been changed, supply the following:

		G	ENERAL LICENSEE	USER INFORMAT	ION		
NAME OF GENERAL	LICENSEE USER			MAILING ADDRE	SS AT THE LOCATION	OF USE (No P.O. Boxe	es, include Zip Code)
DEPARTMENT							
		1		EVICE(S) RECEIV	ÆD		
TYPE OF DEVICE	MODEL NUMBER	PREVIOUS SERIA L NUMBER	NEW SERIAL NUMBER, IF CHANGED	PREVIOUS	NEW ISOTOPE, IF CHANGED	PREVIOUS LABEL ACTIVITY AND UNITS	LABEL ACTIVITY AND UNITS, IF CHANGED
- · • • •							
··· ·· ·							
		G	ENERAL LICENSEE	USER INFORMAT	TION		
NAME OF GENERAL	LICENSEE USER			MAILING ADDRE	ESS AT THE LOCATION	OF USE (No P.O. Box	es, include Zip Code)
DEPARTMENT							
			NFORMATION ON	EVICE(S) RECEIN	/ED		
TYPE OF DEVICE		PREVIOUS SERIA L NUMBER	NEW SENAL NUMBER, IF CHANGED	PREVIOUS ISOTOPE	NEW ISOTOPE, IF CHANGED	PREVIOUS LABEL ACTIVITY AND UNITS	LABEL ACTIVITY AND UNITS, IF CHANGED
		Ġ		USER INFORMA	TION		
NAME OF GENERAL	LICENSEE USER			MAILING ACOR	ESS AT THE LOCATION	N OF USE (No P.O. Box	ues, include Zip Code)
DEPARTMENT							
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	INFORMATION ON	DEVICE(S) RECEN	VED		
TYPE OF DEVICE	MODEL NUMBER	PREVIOUS SERIA L NUMBER	NEW SERIAL NUMBER, IF CHANGED	PREVIOUS	NEW ISOTOPE. IF CHANGED	ACTIVITY AND UNITS	AND UNITS, IF CHANGED
		<u>.                                    </u>	-		• 	 	
	· ··						
			GENERAL LICENSE	E USER INFORMA	TION		;=
NAME OF GENERA	L LICENSEE USER			MAILING ADOR	ESS AT THE LOCATIO	N OF USE (No P.O. Bo	nes, Include Zip Code)
DEPARTMENT							
			INFORMATION ON	DEVICE(S) RECEI	VED		
TYPE OF DEVICE	MODEL NUMBER	PREVIOUS SERIA L NUMBER	NEW SENAL NUMBER F CHANGED	PREVIOUS	NEW ISOTOPE, IF CHANGED	PREVIOUS LABEL ACTIVITY AND UNITS	LABEL ACTIVITY AND UNITS, IF CHANGED

NRC FORM 335 U.S. NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION	1 REPORT NUMBER							
BIBLIOGRAPHIC DATA SHEET	and Addendum Numbers, if any.)							
(See instructions on the reverse)								
2. TITLE AND SUBTITLE	Volume 16							
Consolidated Guidance About Materials Licenses	3. DATE REPORT PUBLISHED							
Program-Specific Guidance About Licenses Authorizing Distribution to General Licensees	MONTH YEAR December 2000							
4. FIN OR GRANT NUMBER								
5. AUTHOR(S)	6. TYPE OF REPORT							
S. Minnick, C. Mattsen, J. McCausland, B. Parker, D. Wiedeman	Final							
	7. PERIOD COVERED (Inclusive Dates)							
<ol> <li>PERFORMING ORGANIZATION - NAME AND ADDRESS (If NRC, provide Division, Office or Region, U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Comm provide name and mailing address.)</li> </ol>	ussion, and mailing address; if contractor.							
Office of Nuclear Material Safety and Safeguards								
Division of Industrial and Medical Nuclear Safety								
U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission Washington, DC 20555-0001								
YVaShington, DC 200001 9. SPONSORING ORGANIZATION - NAME AND ADDRESS (If NRC, type "Same as above"; if contractor, provide NRC Division, Office or Region, U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission, and mailing address.)								
Same as 8. above								
10. SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES								
11. ABSTRACT (200 words or less)								
This guide has been developed in parallel with the rulemaking on 10 CFR Parts 30, 31, and 32, "Requirements for Certain Generally Licensed Industrial Devices Containing Byproduct Material." This guidance document is consistent with the final rule								
As part of its redesign of the materials licensing process, NRC is consolidating and updating nu into a single comprehensive repository as described in NUREG-1539, "Methodology and Findir	umerous guidance documents ngs of the NRC's Materials							
Licensing Process Redesign," dated April 1996, and draft NUREG-1541, "Process and Design Materials Licensing Guidance," dated April 1996. NUREG-1556, Vol. 16. "Consolidated Guida	for Consolidating and Updating nce about Materials Licenses:							
Program-Specific Guidance about Licenses Authorizing Distribution to General Licensees," dat	ed December 2000, is the							
and general licensees, and NRC staff. It also will be available to Agreement States.	tor use by applicants, specific							
The requirements for an NRC general license for persons who receive, possess, use, transfer, material in generally licensed products are provided in 10 CFR Part31, "General Domestic Lice	own, or acquire byproduct inses for Byproduct Material."							
The requirements to obtain an NRC general distribution license for persons who distribute or in	itially transfer byproduct							
Transfer Certain Items Containing Byproduct Material." Generally licensed products include st	atic elimination devices, gauging							
devices, gas chromatograph detector cells, tritium signs, in vitro clinical or laboratory kits, and devices/products are distributed to general licensees by companies who have a specific license	check sources. These e from NRC or an Agreement							
State authorizing such distribution. This document combines and supersedes the guidance pr	eviously found in Information							
Notices and Policy and Guidance documents listed in Table A.1 of this NUREG.								
12. KEY WORDS/DESCRIPTORS (List words or phrases that will assist researchers in locating the report.)	13. AVAILABILITY STATEMENT							
General License	14. SECURITY CLASSIFICATION							
	(This Page)							
	unclassified							
	(Inis Report) unclassified							
	15. NUMBER OF PAGES							
	16. PRICE							



٠

L

Federal Recycling Program

### CONSULTER FOR GUIDANCE ABOUT MATERIALS ENCLASES: PROGRAM-SPECIFIC GUIDANCE ABOUT LICENSES AUTHORIZING DISTRIBUTION TO GENERAL LICENSEES

## UNITED STATES NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION

WASHINGTON, DC 20555-0001

OFFICIAL BUSINESS PENALTY FOR PRIVATE USE, \$300